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    Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent auditor’s report 

To the Members of PI Industries Limited 

Report on the audit of the Standalone financial statements 

 

Opinion  

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of  PI Industries Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as  at March 31, 2020  and the statement of Profit and Loss 
((including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year then ended. 

 

Basis for opinion 

 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matter  

4. We draw your attention to note 42 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the 
management’s assessment of the financial impact of the events arising out of Coronavirus (Covid-19) 
virus pandemic, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is dependent 
upon the circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Key audit matters  

 5.   Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our       
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Investment made in Isagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited  -  
assessment of carrying value in 
the standalone financial 
statements.  
 
(Refer to note 7(a) in the standalone 
financial statements) 
 

 The Company acquired 100% of the 
equity shares of Isagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited from 
Isagro S.p.a., Italy on December 27, 
2019.   The  purchase  consideration of 
INR 4432 MN was arrived at based on 
an independent valuation and 
subsequent negotiations / agreement 
thereon and is shown as Investments in 
the standalone financial statements.  In 
the consolidated financial statements, 
the company obtained independent 
valuation to arrive at the fair value of 
the net assets acquired / identified and 
recognised goodwill for the excess of the 
aforesaid purchase consideration over 
the identified net assets. 

 
The Company has reviewed the carrying 
values of the above investment on the 
balance sheet date and concluded on 
their appropriateness and of the same.  
 
We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter as the investments are 
material and the valuation based on 
which their carrying amounts were 
concluded as appropriate required 
significant management judgement, 
inputs,  assumptions and estimates. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Our audit procedures included  the following:  
 

 Understanding the design and testing the operating 
effectiveness of management controls around acquiring the 
aforesaid investment  and assessment of carrying values of 
the said investments in the Standalone financial statements.  
 

 Reviewing minutes of the meeting of the board of directors 
/ audit committee, share purchase agreement, testing  
payments made and ensuring  compliances with the relevant 
provision of the Companies Act 2013. 
 

 Reading the independent valuation report and 
understanding and evaluating, the projections thereon  and 
the fair valuation of net assets acquired thereon by testing 
key inputs and assumptions made in the valuations, 
projections and performing sensitivity analysis. 
 

 Involving auditor’s expert to review the key assumptions in 
the valuation, the basis of purchase price allocation, the fair 
valuation of the net assets acquired / identified, carrying 
value of investment. 
 
 

 Checking the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures made in the financial statements.  

 
Based on our procedures performed above, the 
management’s assessment of carrying value of the 
investment and goodwill was appropriate. 
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Key audit matter  
 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Estimation of provision for sales 
returns and discounts and volume 
rebates on sales impacting 
revenue on sale of products 
 
(Refer note 19 to the standalone 
financial statements) 
 
Revenue from sale of products is 
presented net of returns, discounts and 
volume rebates in the financial 
statements.  
 
The management determines provision 
for sales returns, discounts and rebates 
on the basis of various factors such as 
the current and expected business 
environment, sales returns variability 
and expected achievement of targets 
against various ongoing schemes 
floated. 
 

We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter  in view of it having 
significant impact on the recognised 
revenue and the involvement of 
management judgment in estimating 
the amounts at which these are 
expected to be settled. 

 
 
 
 
 
Our audit procedures included: 
 
Understanding the policies and procedures related to sales returns, 
discounts and volume rebates and evaluating the design and testing 
the operating effectiveness of related controls related to these 
estimates. 
 
Checking management’s calculations for the estimates and assessing 
the reasonableness of assumptions used by the management in 
arriving at the amount of provisions. 
 
Assessing the reasonableness of estimates made by the management 
in the past by comparing the provisions recognised in the earlier 
financial years with their subsequent settlement, performing ratio 
analysis of discounts, volume rebates and sales returns as a 
percentage of sale of the current year and comparing the same with 
those in prior years. 
 
Testing on a sample basis, credit notes issued and/or adjustments 
made after the balance sheet date and their impact if any on the 
reported amounts. 
 
Based on the above procedures performed, the estimates made by 
the management in respect of provision for sales returns and 
discounts and rebates on sales were considered to be reasonable 

 

 

Other Information 

6.   The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. 

 

       Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

       In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact.  

 

       We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 
statements 

7.  The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 
133 of the Act  This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances; Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

11.  We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that  
we identify during our audit.  

12.  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical  
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

13.  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  

 14.    As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

15.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account.  

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.  
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.  

 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:   

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

financial statements – Refer Note 15 and 33 to the financial statements; 
 

ii. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020 for 
which there were no material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company  

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company 
for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  
 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP Firm  
Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
 
 
Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number 057084 
 
UDIN:20057084AAAABR8894 
Place: Gurugram 
 
Date: June 04, 2020 

  

Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number 057084 

UDIN:20057084AAAABR8894 
Place: Gurugram 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PI Industries   
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the 
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

6.  A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.  

Opinion 

8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (Refer paragraph 4 on emphasis of matter of main audit 
report)  

                                                                                                   For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP   
                                                                                                   Firm Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
                                                                                                   Chartered Accountants 

 

                                                                                                    Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurugram                                                                     Partner 
Date: June 04, 2020                                          Membership Number 057084 

                                                                                                    Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurugram                                                                     Partner 
Date: June 04, 2020                                          Membership Number 057084 
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i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation, of fixed assets. 

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  Pursuant to the programme, 
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.  

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 4 on fixed assets to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company.    

ii.   The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties have been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year.  In respect of inventory lying with third 
parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.  

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, in our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made by it and the Company has not provided 
any loans, guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 
75 and 76  of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 

vi.           Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to 
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. 
We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed 
accounts and records have been made and maintained.  We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.  

  

 
 
 



Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report 
Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of PI Industries Limited 
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues in respect of goods and service tax, though there has been slight delay in few cases 
and is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, 
with the appropriate authorities. Further, for the month of March 2020, the company has paid 
Goods and Service Tax and filed GSTR 3B (after the due date but) within the timelines allowed by 
Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs under the Circular no: 136/06/2020-GST  dated April 
3, 2020 on fulfilment of conditions specified therein. Also refer note 33 to the financial statements 
regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.  

Name of the 
statute 

Nature of dues Amount 
Demanded  
(Rs. In Million) 

Amount Paid 
under Protest 
(Rs. In Million) 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Forum where the 
dispute is pending 

Assam Value 
Added Tax Act 

Value Added 
Tax (excluding 
interest and 
penalty) 
 

0.15 0.04 2007-08 Joint Commissioner 
Guwahati 

Kerala Value 
Added Tax Act 

0.34 0.34 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) Earnakulam 

Kerala Value 
Added Tax Act 

0.18 0.18 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals) Earnakulam 

Gujarat Value 
Added Tax Act 

1.30 - 2009-10 Joint Commissioner, 
Baroda 

Madhya 
Pradesh Value 
Added Tax Act 

0.40 0.40 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals), Indore 

Gujarat Value 
Added Tax Act 

15.68 15.68 2011-12 Joint Commissioner, 
Baroda 

Gujarat Value 
Added Tax Act 

18.59 18.59 2012-13 Joint Commissioner, 
Baroda 

Gujarat Value 
Added Tax Act 

11.69 11.69 2013-14 Joint Commissioner, 
Baroda 

West Bengal 
Value Added 
Tax Act 

0.25 0.25 2013-14 Taxation Tribunal, 
Kolkata 

Gujarat Value 
Added Tax Act 

13.26 - 2014-15 Joint Commissioner, 
Baroda 

Income Tax 
Act 

Income Tax 
(Excluding 
interest and 
penalty) 

24.61 - 2011-12 Rajasthan High Court 

Income Tax 
Act 

20.42 - 2012-13 Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeal) 

Income Tax 
Act 

32.99 - 2013-14 Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeal) 

Central Excise 
Act 

Excise Duty 
(Excluding 
interest and 
penalty) 

4.49 4.49 1987-88 Rajasthan High Court
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Central Excise 
Act 

Cenvat Credit 
(Excluding 
interest and 
penalty) 

15.92 - March 2011 to 
June 2013 

CESTAT 

Custom Act Custom Duty 
(Excluding 
interest and 
penalty) 

127.48 -* 2008 Assistant 
Commissioner of 
Customs, Mumbai 

*Company has issued Bank Guarantee amounting to INR 127.48 Million towards custom duty demand. 
        

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial 
institution or bank as at the balance sheet date. The Company does not have any loan or borrowings 
from Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at balance sheet date. 

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer and further public offer 
(including debt instruments). In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the moneys raised by way of term loans have been applied for the purposes for which 
they were obtained. 

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  

xii.         As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions 
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act.  The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related 
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

xiv.   The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 
3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
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xv.    The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

xvi.    The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934.  Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

              For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
              Firm Registration Number: FRN 012754N 
              Chartered Accountants 

       Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurugram                                                                         Partner 
Date: June 04, 2020     Membership Number: 057084 

       Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurugram                                                                         Partner 
Date: June 04, 2020     Membership Number: 057084 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent auditor's r eport 

To the Members of PI Indus tl'ies Limited 

Rep ort on the a udit of the S tandalone financial s tatements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PI Industries Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the statement of Profit and Loss 
((including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting pol icies and other explanatory information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for opinion 

3. We conducted OLU' audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibi lities under those Standards are fu rther described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

E mphasis of Matter 

4. We draw your attention to note 42 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the 
management's assessment of the financial impact of the events arising out of Coronavirns (Covid-19) 
virus pandemic, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent per iod is dependent 
upon the circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Key auditn"latter s 

s. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgmen t, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our auJit of the financial s tatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these mat ters. 

Key audit matter 

Investment made in Isagro (Asia) 

I Agrochemicals Private Limited -
assessment of cruTying value in I 
the stand alon e financial 

1 state1nents. 

How ow· audit addressed the key a udit mattet· 

I (Refer to note 7(a) in the s tandalone Our audit procedures included the following: 
financial statements) 

I The Company acquired 100% of the 
equity shares of l sagro (Asi'!-) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited from 

I 
Jsagro S.p.a., Italy on December 27, 
2019. The purchase consideration of 
11'-l'R 4432 MN was arrived at based on 

I 
an independent valuation and 
subsequent negotiations I agreement 
thereon and is shown as Investments in 
the standalone financial statements. In I 
the cOL)solidated financial statements, 
the company obtained independent 
valuation to arrive at the fair value of 

/ the net assets acquired I identi fied and I 
recognised goodwill for the excess ofthe 

I aforesaid purchase consideration over 
the identified net assets. 

The Company has reviewed the carrying 
1 

values of the above investment on the 
balance sheet date and concluded on 
Lheir appropriateness and of the same. 

I 
We have considered th is to be a key 
audit matter as the investments are I 
material and the valua tion based on 
which their carrying amounts were 
concl uded as appropriate required 
significant management judgement, 
inputs, assumptions and estimates. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Understanding the design and testing the operating 
effectiveness of management controls around acquiring the 
aforesaid inveshnent and assessment of carrying values of 
the said investments in the Standalone financial s tatements. 

Reviewing minutes of the meeting of the board of directors 
I audit committee, share purchase agreement, testing 
payments made and ensuring compliances with the relevant 
provis ion of the Companies Act 2013. 

Reading the independent valuation report and 
understanding and evaluating, the projections tl1ereon and 
the fa ir valuation of net assets acquired thereon by testing 
key inputs and assumptions made in the valuations, 
projections and petforming sensitivity analysis. 

Involving auditor's expert to review the key assumptions in 
the valuation, the basis of purchase price allocation, the fair 
valuation of the net assets acquired I identified, carrying 
value of invesb11ent. 

Checking the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures made in the financial statements. 

Based on our procedures 
management's assessment of 
investment and goodwill 

performed above, t he 
canying value of the I 

was appropriate. 
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Key audit m atte!' How o ur audit a ddressed the key au d it matte r 

Estimation of p t·ovis ion for sales I 
returns and discounts a n d volume 
rebates on s ales impacting 
revenue on sale of p r o·d u cts 

(Refer note L9 to the standalone 

1 

Our audit procedures included: 
financia l s tatements) 

Understanding the policies and procedures related to sales returns, 
discounts and volume rebates and evalua ting the design and testing 
the operating effectiveness of related controls related to these 
estimates. 

Revenue from sale of products is 
presented net of returns, discounts and 
volume rebates in the financial 
s tatements. 

The management determines provision 
for sales returns, discounts and rebates 
on lhc basis of various factors such as 
the cu rrent and expected business 
environment, sales returns variability 
and expected achievement of targets 

1 
against various ongoing schemes 
floated. 

Checking management's calcula tions for the est imates and assess ing 
the reasonableness of assumptions used by the management in I 
arriving at the amount of provisions. 

Assess ing the reasonableness o f estimates made by the management 
in the past by comparing the provis ions recognised in the earlie r J 

financial years with their subsequent settlement, performing ratio 
analysis of discoun ts, volume rebates and sales returns as a 
percentage of sale of the current year and comparing the same with 
those in prior years. 

We have considered th is to be a key . . . . . 
audit matter in view of it having I Testmg on a sample bas1s, cred1t notes 1ssued and/or adJustments 
significant impact on the recognised madet a~ter the ~alance sheet date and their impact if any on the 

1 

revenue and the involvement of repor ec amoun s. 

management judgmen ~ in estimating I Based on the above pmcedures performed, the estimates made by 
the amounts at wh1ch these are 1 the management in respect of provision for sales returns and 
expected to be se ttled. discounts and rebates on sales were considered to be reasonable 

Other I nforma tio n 

6. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read t he other informa tion 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be ma terially misstated. If, b ased 
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required lo rep01t that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Respons ibilities of managem ent an d th ose ch as·ged with governa nce fo l' the financial 
s tatements 

7· The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mallcrs staled in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a tr ue and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 
133 of the Act This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
witl1 the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of t he Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate intemal financial controls, thal were opera ting effectively for ensuring the a<.:curacy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
s tatements that give a true and fa ir view and a re free from mater ial misstatement, whether due to fTa ud or 
error. 

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abili ty to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless managem ent eith er intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no real istic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's respons ibilities for t h e audit of the financial s tatements 

g. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes ou r 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gua rantee that an a udit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will a lways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess Lhe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, wh ether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulling from fraud is h igher than for one resulti ng from error, as fraud m ay involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate iJ1 the circumstances; Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial s tatements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's usc of the going concern basis of accounting and , 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertain ty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast s ignificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncer tainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures a re inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our a uditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may canse the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, s tructure and content of the finan cial statements, including th e 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

J 1. We communicate with tl1ose charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
Liming oft he audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identifY during our audit. 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a s tatement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate wi th them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

13. From tl1e matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore th e key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about th e matter or when, in ell.1:remely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be commun icated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

R eport on other legal and reg ulatory t•equirements 

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (n) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a s tatement on t he 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

15. As requi red by Section 143(3) of ilie Act, we report Lha t: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the in fo rmation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accoun t as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by th is Report are in agreement wi th 
the books of accounl. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from tbe directors as ou March 31, 2020 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqual ified as on March 31, 2020 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveoess of such controls, refer to ou r separate Report in "Annexure A". 

(g) ·with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit a nd Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
accord ing to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company bas disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements- Refer Note 15 and 33 to the financial s tatements; 

ii. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020 for 
which there were no material foreseeable losses. 

11 1. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company 

tv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company 
for the year ended March 31, 20 20 . 

16. The Company h as paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requ isite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Sched ule V to the Act. 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP Firm 
Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 

/J~~ k t...i,_,(-
ougata 6fuk11erjee {) 

Partner 
Membership Number 057084 

UDIN :20057084AAJ\ABR8894 
Place: Gurugram 

Dale: June 04,2020 
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- R eport on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statem.ents und er 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of S ection 143 oftheAct 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PI Industries 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conju nction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with r eference to fmancial 
stateJnents 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
with reference to fi nancial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essent ial components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
ofCha1tered Accountants oflndia (I CAl) . These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repmting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abou t whether adequate 
internal financial controls with refe rence to financial statements was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about t he adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and tl1eir operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedmes selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of t he financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements . 
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Mean ing of Internal Financial ContTols with reference to financial statem.ents 

6. A company's intemal fi nancial controls with reference to fina ncial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and t he preparation of 
financi al statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes t hose policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurate ly and 
fairly reflect the t ransactions and disposit ions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, a nd that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and di rectors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or t imely detection of 
unauthorised acqu is ition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inheren t Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with r eference to financial statements 

7· Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal fi nancial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to fi nancial statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that th e degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal fi nancial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls ·with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering t he essential components of internal co ntrol 
stated in the Guidance Note on Aud it of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Ins titute of Chartered Accountants of India. (Refer paragraph 4 on emphasis of matter of main audit 
rep01t) 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: June 04, 2020 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accou ntants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: FRNo12754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 

ow;rh~"7~ 
Sougata Mukhetjee 
Pattner 
Membership Number 057084 
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1. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing fu ll particulars, including quantitative delails 
and situation, of fixed assets. 

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme 
designed t o cover all the items over a ped od of th ree years wh ich, in om opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pu rsuant to the program me, 
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

(c) The t itle deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 4 on fixed assets to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

11. The physical verificalion of inventory excluding stocks wi th third parties have been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. I n respect of inventoty lying with third 
pmtics, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical 
verification of inventmy as compared to book records were not material. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other patties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii ), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii )( c) of the said Order arc not 
applicable to the Company. 

iv. The Company bas not gran ted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties 
covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, in our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the investments made by it and the Company has not provided 
any loans, guarantees or security to the patties covered under Section 186 of the Act. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Govemment of India, the Company is required to 
maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. 
We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed 
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
exam ination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
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vii . (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in ou r opinion, the Company is generally regular in deposit ing undisputed 
statutory dues in respect of goods and service tax, though there has been s light delay in few cases 
and is regu lar in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, includ ing provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income t<Lx, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, 
with the appropriate authorities. Flnther, for the month of March 2020, the company has paid 
Goods and Service Tax and fil ed GSTR 38 (after the due date but) within the timelines allowed by 
Central Board oflndirect Taxes and Customs under the Circular no: 136/o6j 2020-GST dated April 
3, 2020 on fulfi lment of conditions specified therein. Also refer note 33 to the financial statements 
regarding management's assessment on cettain matters relat ing to provident fund. 

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Amount Paid Period to which Forum where the 
statute Demanded under Protest the amount dispute is pending 

(Rs. In Million) (Rs. In Mill ion) relates 
Assam Value Value Added 0.15 0.04 2007-08 Joint Commissioner 
Added T<L"X Act Tax (excluding Guwahati 
Kerala Value interest and 0.34 0-34 2008-09 Deputy Commissioner 
Added Tax Act penalty) (Appeals) Earnakulam 
Kerala Value 0.18 0.18 2009-10 Deputy Commissioner 
Added Tax Act (Appeals) Earnakulam 
Gujarat Value 1.30 - 2009-10 Joint Commissioner, 
Added 'f<L'< Act Baroda 
Madhya 0-40 0-40 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner 
Pradesh Value (Appeals), Indore 
Added Tax Act 
Gujarat Value 15.68 15.68 2011-12 Joint Commissioner, 
Added T<L"X Act Baroda 
Gujarat Value 18.59 18.59 2012-13 Joint Com missioner, 
Added Tax Act Baroda 
Gujarat Value 11.69 11.69 2013-14 Joint Commissioner, 
Added T<L"X Act Baroda 
West Bengal 0.25 0 .25 2013-14 Taxation Tr ibunal, 
Value Added Kolkata 
Tax Act 
Gujarat Value 13.26 - 2014-15 Joint Commissioner, 
Added Tax Act Baroda 
Income Tax Income T<L'< 24.61 - 2011-12 Rajasthan High Comt 
Act (Excluding 
Income Tax interest and 20-42 - 2012-13 Commissioner of 
Act penalty) Income Tax (Appeal) 
Income Tax 32.99 - 2013-14 Commissioner of 
Act Income Tax (Appeal) 
Central Excise Excise Duty 4-49 4-49 1987-88 Rajasthan High Court 
Act (Excluding 

~~···· interest and "V'-~~ penalty) ,j ~~ . 
t $~ t·U"-'fJ.<S -c."" 
Cur~aO'' It 
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Central Excise Cenvat Credit 15-92 - March 2011 t o CESTAT 
Act (Excluding June 2013 

interest and 
penalty) 

Custom Act Custom Duty 127-48 -* 2008 Assistant 
(Excluding Commissioner 
interest and Customs, Mumbai 
penalty) 

*Company has 1ssued Bank Guarantee amountmg to lNR 127-48 M1lhon towards custom duty demand. 

Vtll . According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company has not defaul ted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial 
institution or bank as at the balance sheet date. The Company does not have any loan or borrowings 
from Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at balance sheet date. 

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer and further public offer 
(including debt instruments). In our opinion, and according to the information and explanat ions 
given to us, the moneys raised by way of term loans have been applied for the purposes for which 
they were obtained. 

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in I ndia, and according to t he 
info rmation and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of materia l 
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial rem uneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. AJso, refer to 
p aragraph 16 of main audit repo1t . 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xii ) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xiii. The Company has entered into t ransactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions 
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the fi nancial statements as requi red under I ndian Accounting Standard (Tnd AS) 24, Related 
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 oftheAct. 

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordi ngly, the provisions of Clause 
3(xiv) of the Order arc not applicable to the Company. 

of 
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xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with ils directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

xv·i. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Com pany. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: June 04, 2020 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Finn Registration Nmnber: FRN 012754N 
Charter ed Accountants 

So:gti::v~-
Partner 
Membership Number: 057084 
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I' I 1."\D LIS'J'Il i ES LJ~ Jrl ED 
B:tl:wcr S hee t ns nt -' lurch 3 1, 202(1 

(A ll amounts in t i\li ll inn, unll'SS othcnvisc stat eel) 

Pani<'ulur~ 

ASSJ::'J'S 

Nonwcu rrcnt assets 
Property, plunt nnd Cfluipmcnt 
Capital work-in-progress 
O ther intangible assets 

lttHtn~il>ll• :tsset uttder dc,·clopmcnt 
Financi:tl assets 

(i) lnves llnents 

( ii) l oans 
(iii ) Oth ~.:r fi nomcial rtssets 

0 \!fem::cltnx assets 
Other non-c ttrrent assets 

Tot:l l non-currcut asse ts 

Current assets 
)U\CiliOtics 

Finnnc inl assets 
(i) Investments 
(i i) Tmdc receivables 

(iii) C'ash and cash equi,•nlcnts 

(iv) Bank balances other than ( iii) abo1·c 

(1) I oans 

(vi) Other financial assels 

Contracts assets 
Current tax assets 
Other c mTt nt assets 
Tot :-~ 1 current nssrls 

Totnl nsscts 

EQUIT Y eli LIAB ILITI ES 
Equ ity 
Equity shnrc c:1pital 
O ther equity 
T otal equi ty 

Li:'1l> ilit ie!; 
Non current lia bilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i ) Bon·o11ings 
( ii) Other finnncinl li<lbil ities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabili ties (Net) 

To t:-~ 1 non current l i:-~b il iti rs 

CuiTcnt Linbilities 
Financiallinbilities 

(i) BotTOiviugs 

(i i) Trade pnyables 
n) totttl outstanding dues of micro 

cnteq>rises and small enterprises 
b) totnl outstanding dues of c reditors other 

limn micro enterprises and small 
(iii) Other fi nancial liabilit ies 

Provisions 
Other em rent liabilities 
Current tax liabi lities 
Total current liubilit ics 
T otal Jiobilit ies 
T otal eq uity and liabililics 

Noh'S to :lccounts 

5 
6 

7(n) 

7(c) 

7(g) 

16 
q 

7(b ) 

7(d) 
7(c) 

7(0 
7(c) 
7(g) 
7(h) 

10 

9 

11 
12 

14(a) 

l<l(d) 
15 

16 

l•l(b) 
14(c) 

l·l(d) 

15 
17 

18 

I to 43 

\ H 

\ l.trdt "'J. :lJ.!IJ 

The accompanying notes rcfcn cd to above formed the integra l part of the linnncial stntcmcnt 

T his is the S l:t l('m cnt of B:tlanc(' Sheet referred to our I'CI)Ort of even dnte 

16.579 

2.359 

99 

33h 

~.5~ I 

56 
30 

357 

H360 

7. 199 

5.483 

1,077 

25 

157 
306 

1.022 

85 
1,350 

1 6,70~ 

~I ,Q6~ 

n8 
25,773 
25,9 11 

3 .994 
748 

107 

113 
~ ,962 

1,083 

56 

5.482 

2.714 
284 

52S 
4~ 

10, 191 
15,153 
~ 1 ,06~ 

\s nt 

\ larch 31 2UI'J 

For P l"icco \V:1 1~rhousr Ch :tr·trrttl t\ f ('Oun t:tnU L LP Fol' :wd 0 11 bt h:.lr or !111.• Bo:t l'd o r ll il't('lors 

C h:ll"ft'rt cl ,\ ('con nl :lll ls 

Fir e . No. 0 12754N/N500016 

l; horjee ~,_ ~~ 
Partner tJ 
~lcmbash ip Number: 057084 

Place: Gurugnun 
Date: June 0 I. 2020 

,,~ 
Vice Chairmnn & ~bnaging Director 
DIN: 0000665 I 

Su iJ llflsh AntHill 
Chief Financial Officer 

nnju ish s~ _../ 
Director ~ 
DIN: 06429468 

Nnresh l<.apoor 
('ompnny Secrctaty 

I 1,773 

1,5·1•1 
66 

28~ 

I 10 

97 
I 18 

127 

454 
1~ ,573 

5,357 

1, 119 

6.6 18 

587 
24~ 

109 
2 19 

520 

2. 10 1 
1 6,87~ 

31,4~7 

1.18 
22,609 
22,747 

99 
190 

289 

578 

43 

5,0? 3 

2,4 14 

126 
435 

6 
8,122 

8,700 
3 1 ,~~7 



I' I I !~ I> L'STR I[S I 1,\I ITED 
St:ti ("JIH~nt of Pro tit & Loss fnr the )C'ill" cnc.Jcd 1\ l:ln:h 3 1. 20::!0 
(All :1mo u11tS in ""< M il lion, unle,)!t otherwise S l :lt ~d ) 

l'nrricul.tr' 

llcvcnue from operations 
O thc•· inconH' 
T otnl incona • 

Expenses: 
Cost of materials consume<! 
Purchase of stock m rrade 
Changes in inventories of finished goods. \\ Ork in 
progress and stod~ in trade 
Employee benefit e:\pcnsc 
Fimwcc cost 
Depreciation and mnortisat ion cxpcn:;c 
O ther expense 
Totn l expcnsr s 

Pr ofi t befor e t :l X 

Incom e tax ex:pcnsc 
CmTent tax 
Deferred tax 
T otal tax expense 

Profi t for the year 

Other comprcheusi\'e income 

I'J 
20 

21 

22 
26 
25 
23 

(i) Items that will not be reclassi fied to profit or loss 
Remcasurcments gains/(losscs) on dd incd benefit plans 
Income tax relating to the above item 

( ii) Items that " ill be reclassified to profit or loss 
Effective ponion of ~:t ins/(losses) on cash now hedges 
Income t ~:r< relating to tht! above it!!m 

T ot:ll comprehensive incom e for the )'('nr 

Earnings per C<Juily sha r e 
I) Basic (in ~ I 

2) Diluted (i n ~) 

F:tce \':tlue pet· sh:tre (in t) 

Notes to nccounts 

29 

I to 43 

hu- th'-· 't':l r Ench·d 
.\ l arch .\1. .W.!O 

33,068 

479 
JJ SH 

16.55 1 
1,600 

(23) 

3. 113 
ISO 

1,332 
4,850 

27,603 

5,944 

(1,2•19) 
(272) 

( 1,52 1) 

4,423 

(22) 

8 

(840) 

294 
3 863 

32.04 
32.02 

1.00 

The accompanying notes referred to above formed the integml pa11 of the fimmcial statement 

This is the statement of prorit ~n tl l oss r eferred to out· report of C\'en date 

I nr tlH•' t':lr E1Hii·d 
\ l;ll <h J I. 101'! 

28.'109 
600 

29.009 

13.728 
1.274 

500 

2.625 
59 

926 
·1.55 1 

2J,66J 

5 J -16 

( 1, 169) 
( 100) 

(I ,269) 

4.077 

(2) 

I 

120 
(42) 

~ . 1 54 

29.56 
29.54 

1.00 

For Price \Vaterh ousc Chartered Accountants LLP f'or and on bchn lf of the Bonn l of Dir·cct 

Place: Gumgram 
Date: June 04. 2020 

r\ 1~ 
Vice Chainnatt & rvlanagittg Director 
DIN: 0000665 1 

Sublwsh Anand 
Chief Financial Officer 

ll~jn ish Sar 1~ 
Dtrector 
DIN: 06429•168 

Nar·esh Kapoor· /' 

Company Secretmy 



1'1 1 .\' I)[!STiliE~ LJ,\JITI::D 
Stm cn1ent of C:tsh FIO \\ S fnr the ye:u· cntletl ;\ l!lrl'h J I, 20.!0 
(:\II :uuuunts in~ J\1illion, unless otherwise StlttCt.l ) 

1'\IHI( ll Ill' 

A. CAS II FLOW I'RO~I OPI~RATI N(; ACTIVITIES 
Pr·nfil before Income Ta~ 

.\dj ustm cnts for:-
Ut!prcciation nnd amortis;uion cxp~.:usc 
Finance costs 

l'roliSIOII for £3ad a11d Do11btful debts & Ad1ances 
Interest Income on fi nancial Assets nt arnortiscd cost 
l"nwinding of discomll on Security Deposits 
E'pellse/(R<I·ersnl} on Employee Stock Option Scheme 
(Gnin)/Loss on Sale/Retirement of property, plant & equipment (Net) 

(Gain)/Loss 011 sale uf lnvcstme11 ts (Net) 
(Gnin)/Loss on lin;mcinl assets measured at fai r valut: through proftt or loss (Ncl) 
Impact of lnd AS 115 adjustmelll taken to retained earnings 
Unre:iliscd (G:tin)/Loss on foreign currcnC)' transactions (Net) 
Opcru ting Profit befor e \Vorldng Crq)itnl ch:tngcs 

(lncr(!asc) / Dccre3se in Trade Receivables 
(Increase) t Decr~ase in ('urreltt fi nancial assets- Lonns 
(lncre11sc) / Decrease in Current Contract Assets 
( I11Crcnse) I Dccrea~c in Non-curn:nt financiftl nsscts- Loans 
(Increase) / l)ccrcase in Other current financial assets 
(Increase) / Dcctease in Other non-current financial :t!isets 
( lncrensc) I Decrcnse in Otlu:r current ;~sset s 

( Increase) I Dcct case in Other non-current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in other hank balanct.·s 
(lncrease)/Decrcasc in lnvcntori.:s 
lncrc;~ se I (D~crease) in Current PrO\ isions and Tr:tdl.! Payabh:s 
Increase I (Dccrense) in Non-current Pro~vision s 

Increase I (Decrease) in Other current fmaucia lliabihties 
Increase I (D.:creasc) in Other non-current financial liabilities 
Increase I (Dccrc<lse) in Otlwr current liabilities 
C:lsh gener:lled from Oper:1tions l.Jrforc tax 
Income Taxes paid 
NN c:1sh in now (outflow) from O pernting Activities 
B. CAS H FLOW I'RO~ I INVESTIN(; ACTIVITitS 

Pa} mcnts for purchase of property. plant & equipment includins C'01pi tal 
\Vork 111 Progress. [ntangiblc t-\ssets and Capital Ad\'anccs 
Proceeds fro m s11le of property. plant & equipment 
Pu1chase of ln \Cstmcnt in Subsidiary 
Purchase ;~nd Sale of Current Investments (Nel) 
fntcrcst Received 
Net c a.~th used in Investing Activities 
Net c:1sh inflow (outflow) from Opcr~ ting ami l n,1csting ..\cth1ities 

\ l'lll' ~1Hit1d '\';l r c111 h ·4 l 

\ fnf'Ch 31.1U!I) \LII'th .II, ! 1)!9 

5,9H 5,3·16 

1.332 926 
180 59 

122 179 
( 163) ( 193) 

( 15) (1 0) 

(41 13 

13 13 
(19) ( 198) 

G 89 

216 
194 127 

7,590 6 ,567 
1,161 ( 1.493) 

(33) (2 1) 

(502) (520) 
42 (23) 

(210) (•IS) 
88 (82) 

7 19 (437) 

10 (5) 
17 16 

( 1.842) (8371 
265 1,490 

( 182) 56 
120 I 19 
301 7 

92 ::!36 
7,636 5,025 

( 1.025) (1.177) 
6,61 I 3,848 

(6.7221 (3.683) 
28 8 

(-U J4) (95) 
1.339 379 

163 193 
(9,626) (3 ,1 98) 
(3,015} 650 



I' IRTI! I I ,\ll 'i \ l'al' l·ntJell 

\ l anh 11. 21)2() 

- C. CASII FLOW FIIOM FI'IAi\'CI\G \( ri\TI"If:~ 
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share C:1p1tal 
Premium 0 11 issue of equity sh:1res unt!cr ESOP s~hcm~,; 
Short T.::nn 13orro" ings (Nell 
Oorro\\ing~ -Tenn Loan· R~p;t~·mcnB 

IJorrowln~s- Term Loan- 'J :1kc:n 
Principal C'lcmcnts of Dcfc1 red lt:asc payments 
In terest paid (Net) 
l)j, idends paid (including Ta'<) 
Net C:.sh inflow (outflo,\) from Financing ,\cti\'itic~ 
Net C:~sh inflow (outflow) from Op~nHi11g, Investing & Finnncing :\l'ti\'itics 
Net increase (tlt'neasc) in Cash\..~ C'ush rquh·rlfcnt s 
Opening hahuu:c of Cash,~ Cnsh ClJuivnlcrus 
Closing bai:IIICC of Cash & Cash cqui\':tlcnls 

Note: Cash nnd cash cquiv:tlcnts includcc! 111 the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the foiJo,,ing (Refer Note No 7(e)):­

i) Cash un II :lrHI 
ii) B~l:wcr ''ith B:wks: 

-In Current A(:coums 

-In Fi~cd Deposits 
Total 

The abo\c C'ash Flow Statem~nl has b(!en prepared unckr the Indirect method as :-ct out in I~D AS- 7. 
Figures in brnckcts indictlle cnsh outOO\\S. 

This is the s tntrmcut of Cash Flow refe r red to our r cpon of even dat e 

0 
53 

1.083 
( 107) 

3.836 
( 175) 
( 188) 
(747) 

J,305 
~90 

~90 

5~7 

1,077 

0 

H7 
600 

1,077 

For Price \Vntcrhousc Chartered Accountnnts LLP 
Char ter ed Accountants 

For nnd nn behalf of thl' lJoard of DircC'Iors 

Fiun Reg. No 012754Nr.-l500016 

:.~!"7!" 
Pnnncr 
~leml>ership Number: 05708,1 

Place: Gumgr;un 
Date: June 0.1. 2020 

Vice chnirmo111 & JVIanaging Director 
IJIN: 0000665 1 

Subh:lsh Annnd 
Chief Financial Officer 

\(':II' \'111\t•J 

\funh 31. '11 14) 

0 
75 

D9')) 

(59) 

(832) 
(1.2 15) 

(565) 
(565) 

1.152 

587 

ll5 
~61 

5N7 

RnjnishS~ 
Director 
IJIN: 06429468 

Narcsh l~:lpoor 
Company Sccn.!tal) 



1'1 1."-IDliSTRIES U ,\IITEil 
Sta tem ent of Chaugcs in Ef(Uity for the year ended i\ lnn:h J 1, 2020 
(r\11 amounts in { j\ln, uulc.'>~ othcn,iscs t:1 H'tl ) 

a. Eltuit\· share ca )itnl 
Pu rticular\ 

Oalance at the hcguming of the rcportmg period 
Changes in cquny share C[tpltu1 during the per1od 
Unlance :at the ~ud of thr repurting period 

Amount "0'' is below rounding uff nonns 

h. Other ec1uitv 

II 

·' ~lit \l:tr'l'il 31. !0.!11 
~n.ufShn1·c..; Amnunt 

13,80,30,65 1 133 

77.3~2 0 
13,8 1,07,993 138 

\ ~ Ul \l.l l'l'l l Jl. "'Ul'J 

13.79,07.318 

1.23.333 
13,80,30,65 I 

\ mnunt 

IJS 
0 

138 

;\lfltl"'l ~ ... '\.'iurplu~ 

Bnl:uu:c at April I , 1018 

Pro fa for the year 
Adjustment of hut AS 11 5 
Other comprehens1"c 1n<.:OIIIC 

Total com pn•hcnsiv(' income ror the yea r 

Transac tions \\ith O\\ncrs in lhrir capacity as O\\ncrs: 

Prcmmm on issue of equity shares through ESOP 
Shares issued uncler ESOP scheme 
Expl'nse on Employee Stock Op11 un Srhcme 

Div1dends paid 
D1v1dend Dosmhulion Tax (DDT) 
Balance at Mar ch 31,2019 

Profit for the ye~n 

Otl1er coJnprchcnsJve 1ucomc 
T o tal compn~hcnsi\'c inco me for the year· 

Trnnsnctions with owners in I heir capacity a s owners: 

PremiUm on issue of Equity Shares through ESOP 
Shares issued und~r ESOP SC"h~me 
Expense on Employee Stock Option Sche1ne 
DIVidends pa1d 
D1vidond Dis1nbuuon Tax (DDT) 
Balance at March 3 1, 2020 

{";1pit.11 n· ... cnL' 

15 

I::! c 
12 t!, ( 

I~ b 
1:! c 
12 c 

13 

13 
IS 

11 c. r 

12 b 

12 c 
12 c 

13 

I> 
IS 

This is the .st:ttCIIH.'Ilt of C hnngcs in Equily referred to our report of l'VCII date 

Fo1 Price \Valrrhousc Chn rlcl'l.11 Acconnl:tnts LLP 
(hnrtered A ccounl:tn ls 

Fmn eg No. 01~75·1NIN500016 

...... ~-t~7J--
Partner 
~lcmb\.•rs:hip Number 05708~ 

Pinel'· Gumgmm 
Dale June 0-1, ~020 

Securities 
pn:mium 

n·'I:L'I"'l' 

2,053 

I ll> 

2,169 

so 

2.2~9 

Sh ~H'l' optiuo 

nut\tanc..lint! 
GL~IIL'ra l Rt•tuincd 
l't'<;;en·, L':u·nin:.:~ 

an;nunl 

102 1,857 1·1,908 

~.077 

~16 

II) 
4,292 

(42) 

n 
(690) 
( ~ ~~) 

73 1.857 18.368 

~.4:!3 

( 14) 

4.409 

(27) 

t4) 
(621) 

1 ~7 ) 

42 1,857 22,029 

For and on behalf of th e llo:trd o f Oircttors 

Maynnk Sil vI 
Vice Chm , & " lmmgmg D1rcctor 
DIN· 0000665 1 

Subhash Anand 

Cluef fmancial Office• 

O~ltcsen~ 

Ert\•dh•c p•>l' tiun of 
rn.,h tlu\\ ht..'d(!\.'.'i 

~9 

78 

78 

127 

Rajnish S:u·na 
Directo r _,--

DIN 064~9468 

N:1rcsh 1..:apoor _.,.,­
C'ompmly Sl'cretary 

I utol otlu•r 
L'QUity 

18,98·1 

4,077 
21 6 

77 

·1,370 

11 6 
(42) 

13 
(690) 
(142 

22,609 

·1,·123 

80 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

1. Corporate Information 

PI Industries Lim ited ("PI" or "the Company") is a pub lic limited company domici led in India and 

has its registered office at Udaipur. The shares of the Company are listed on Nat iona l St ock 

Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. 

PI is in the field of Agri Sciences having strong presence in both Domestic and Export market. It 

has three manufacturing facilities in Gujarat and a Research & Development center at Udaipur. 

The registered office of the company is situated at Udaisagar Road, Udaipur - 313001, Rajasthan, 

India and the corporate office is situated at 5th Floor, Vipul Square, B-Biock, Sushant Lok, Phase-1, 

Gurugram - 122009, Haryana, India. 

2. Bas is of preparation 

The Company has consistently appli ed the following accounting ·policies to all periods presented 

in the financial statements un less otherwise stated. 

a) Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects, in accordance with the 

recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard ('lnd AS') as 

per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant provisions of t he Act to the extent appli cable. 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Boa rd of Directors on June 04, 2020. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The financial sta tements have been prepared on an accrua l basis and under the historical cost 

convention, except fo r the following: 

Certain financial assets and liabiliti es (including derivative inst ruments) and contingent 

considerations are measured at fair value; 

Defined benefit plan assets measured at fair value; 

Share-based payments measured at fair value. 

c) New and Amended standards adopted by the Company 

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the fi rst time for their 

annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019: 

Q IND AS 116, Leases (refer note (p) below) 

"' Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments - Appendix C to lnd AS 12, Income Taxes 



PI INDUSTRIES LI MITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments following the 

adoption of IND AS 116. This is disclosed in not e 41 and 42. The other amendments listed above 

did not have any impact on the amount recognized in prior periods and are not expected to 

significantly affect current or future periods. 

d) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of 

the primary economic environment in whi ch the Company operates ("the functional currency"). 

The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee ('~'), which is the Company's 

functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in t he financial statements and notes 

have been rounded off to th e nearest millions as per the requirement of Schedule Il l, unless 

otherwise stated . The sign '0' in these standalone financial statements ind icates that the 

amounts involved are below~ five lacs and the sign'-' indicates that amounts are nil. 

e) Current or Non- current classification 

All Assets and Liabi lities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Based on the nature of services provided and time between the rendering of services and t heir 

realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 

months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

f) Use of judgements and estimates 

In preparing these financia l statements, management has made judgements, estimates and 

assumpti ons that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent li abilities and contingent assets at th e date of 

financial statements, income and expenses during the period. Actual results may differ from 

these estimates . Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 

Applica ti on of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption 

judgements having the most significant effect on the amounts recogn ized in the financia l 

statements are: 

Measurement of defined benefit obligations; 

Recognition of deferred tax assets & minimum alternative tax credit entitlement; 

Useful life and residual va lue of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets; 

Impairment test of financial an d non-financial assets including recoverabili ty of 

expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets; 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Fi nancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Measurement of fair value for share based payments; 

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies. 

g) The Company recognises revenue over the period of time for contracts wherein the Company's 

performance for the products does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and the 

Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed ti l l date. Management 

has determined that it is highly probable that there will be no rescission of the contract and a 

significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised wi ll not occur. Accordingly, revenue is 

recognised for these contracts based on Input method wherein amount of revenue to be 

recognised is determined based on the actual cost incurred t ill date and the estimated margin on 

the contract. 

The Company also recognises Provision for discounts and sales returns based on the current and 

expected operating environment, Sales returns variability, expected achievement of targets against 

various ongoing schemes floated. 

3. Significant Account ing Policies 

a) Property, pl ant and equipment 

i} Recogn it ion and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses, i f any. 

Cost of an item of property, pl ant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, 

any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use 

and est imat ed costs of dismantling and removing the it em and restoring the site on which it is 

located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equ ipment comprises the cost of 

materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to 

working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the 

item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets, if material, are also included in 

cost to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are rea dy to be put to use. 
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful l·ives, then 

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 

equipment. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment or major 

inspections performed, are recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that 

the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost 

can be measured reliably. The costs of all other repairs and maintenance are recognized in the 

Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred. 

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation I 
under development as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acquisit ion of 

property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital 

advances under other non-current assets. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when no futu re economic benefit 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset or upon disposal. Any ga in or loss on 

disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. 

ii) Transit ion to lnd AS 

On transition to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its 

property, plant and equipment recognised as at Apri l 1, 2015 measured as per the previous 

GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their 

estimated residual va lues, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Depreciation 

on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight-Line Method based on the usefu l 

life of assets estimated by t he Management which coincide with the life specified under 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, whi ch are as fo llows: 

Buildings including factory buildings and Roads 

Plant and machinery 

Electrical installations and equipment 

Furniture and fixtures 

Office equipment's 

Vehicles 

Computer and Data Processing Units 

Laboratory equipment 

3- 60 years 

15 years 

10 years 

10 years 

5 years 

8- 10 yea rs 

3 - 6 yea rs 

10 years 
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The Company has estimated the useful lives di fferent from the lives prescribed in schedule II of 

Compani es Act, 2013, in the following cases: 

Plant and machinery (Continuous Process Plant) 

Special Plant and machinery (used in manufacture of chemicals) 

15 years 

15 years 

Leasehold land and Cost of improvement on leasehold building is being amortised over the 

lease period or useful life whichever is shorter. 

Based on assessment made by t echnica l experts, the Management believes that the usefu l lives 

as given above best represent the period over which it expects to use these assets. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end 

and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. Depreciation on additions to or on 

disposal of assets is calculated on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which the 

property, plant and equipment is available for use (disposed of). 

b) Intangible assets 

i) Recognition and measurem ent 

Intangible assets acquired separately 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured at cost, less accumulated 

amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Internally generated intangible assets- Research and development 
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are capitalised only if the 

expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technica lly and commercia lly 
feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the company intends to and has sufficient 

resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditures to be 
capital ized include the cost of materials and other costs direct ly attributable to preparing the 
asset for its intended use. Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as 
incurred. 

Subsequent to in iti al recognition, the assets are measured at cost, less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits 

embodied in the specific asset to which they relate . 
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Internally generated Intangib le assets which are not yet avai lable for use are subject to 

impairment testing at each reporting date. All other intangible assets are tested for impairment 

when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. All impairment 

losses are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

An item of intangible asset is derecognised when no future economic benefit are expect ed to 

arise from the continued use of the asset or upon disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an 

item of intangible assets is recognised in profit or loss. 

ii) Transition to lnd AS 

On transit ion to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its 

Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use 

that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets. 

ii!) Amortisati on 

Amortization is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over t he 

estim ated useful lives of intangible assets or on any other basis that reflects the pat tern in 

which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity. 

Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortized from the date they are available 

for use. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Software 

Product development 

6 years 

5 years 

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at 

each reporting date. 

c) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets 

(other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on 

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped 

together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that 

are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Units ('CGUs'). 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the gr~ater of its value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell. Va lue in use is based on the estima ted future cash flows, discounted to their present 

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. 
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the company 

reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no 

longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 

determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made on ly to t he exten~ t hat the asset 's 

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its 

remaining useful life. 

d) Financial instruments 

i) Initial recognit ion 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

contractua l provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabi lities are recognized at fai r 

value on ini tial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at 

transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributab le to the acquisition or issue of 

financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fa ir value through profit or loss, are 

added to the fair value on initial recognition. 

ii) Subsequent measurement 

i) Financia l assets carried at amortized cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 

model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. When 

the financial asset is derecognised or impaired, the gain or loss is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Financial assets at fa ir value th rough other comprehensive incom e (FVOCI) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both col lecting 

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principa l and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying 
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amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in pr-ofit and 

loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, t he cumulative gain or loss previously 

recognised in OCI is reclassified from equi ty to stat ement of profit and loss and recognised 

in other income. 

Equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. On initial recognition of an 

equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to 

present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI -

equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis. Fair value 

gains and losses recognised in OCI are not reclassified to profit and loss. 

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair 

valued through profit or loss. 

iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet 

date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 

instruments. 

v) Investment in subsidiaries 

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost less impairment, if any, in the separate 

financial statements. 

iii) Impairment of financial assets 

Th e Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with 

its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. Except Trade receivables, 

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month Expected Credit 

Loss (ECL}, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, 

in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. 

Wi th regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simpl ified approach (Refer Note 

No. 38(1)), which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial 

recognition of the trade receivables. 
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iv) Derecognition 

Financial Assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the financia l asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 

in a transaction in which substant ially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

fi nancial asset are t ransferred or in which t he Company neither transfers nor retains 

subst antially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of t he 

fi nancial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it t ransfers assets recognised on its ba lance 

sheet but retains ei ther all or substantially all the ri sks and rewards of the transferred assets, 

t he transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabili t ies 

The Company derecognises a finan cial liability wh en its co ntractual obl igations are 

discharged or cancelled or expire. 

v) Reclass ification of Financial Assets and Financia l liabili ties 

Th e Company determines classification of financial assets and liabi liti es on initial recognition. 

After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity 

instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 

reclassification is made only if th ere is a change in the business model for managing those 

assets. If the company reclassifies f inancial assets, it applies the recl assifi cation prospectively 

from the reclassifica t ion date which is the firs t day of the immed iat ely next reporting period 

following the change in business model. 

vi) Derivative f inancial instruments 

The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk which arises from its foreign exch ange 

revenues. The Company uses foreign exchange forwa rd contracts (derivat ive financial 

instruments), to hedge foreign currency risk associated w ith highly probable forecasted 

t ransactions and classifies them as cash flow hedges. 

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives 

are measured at fair va lue, and changes therein are taken directly to profit and loss, except 

for the effective portion of cas h flow hedges, which is recorded in the Company's hedging 

reserve as a component of equity through OCI and later recl assified to profit and loss when 

th e hedge item affects profit and loss or t reated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast 

transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financia l asset or non-financial 
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liabil ity. The ineffective portion of such cash flow hedges is recorded in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

Derivatives are carried as financi al assets when the fair value is posit ive and as financial 

liabil iti es when t he fair value is negative. 

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk 

management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also 

documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, 

including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are 

expected to offset each other. 

The Company makes an assessment, on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging 

instrum ents are expected to be "high ly effective" in offsetting the changes in the fair value or 

cash flows of the respective hedged items attributable to the hedged risk. For cash flow 

hedges to be "highly effective", a forecast transaction that is the subject of the hedge must 

be highly probable and must present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could 

ultimately affect profit or loss. 

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expi res or is 

sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income/ (loss), remains 

th ere until the forecast transaction occurs . If the forecast t ransaction is no longer expected 

to occur, then the balance in other comprehensive income/ (loss) is recogn ized immediate ly 

in the statement of profit and loss. 

vi i) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 

balance sheet when, and only when, the company has a legally enforceable right to set off 

the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to rea lise the asset and 

settle the liability simultaneously. 

e) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabi lity in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of 

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation technique. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the 
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characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 

account when pricing the asset or l iability at the measurement date. 

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 

based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observab le and the 

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as 

follows: 

Levell - This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is 

determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market 

data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs 

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observab le for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or ind irectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - If one or more of the signi ficant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 

instrument is included in level 3. 

f) Inventories 

Inventories (including Stock-in-transit) of Finished Goods, Stock in Trade, Work in progress, Raw 

materials, packing materials and Stores & Spares are stated at lower of cost and net realizable 

value. By-products are measured at estimated realisable value. However, materials and othe r 

items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 

finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, product ion or conversion costs, 

and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realizable 

value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sa le. 

Cost of Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Stores and Spares, Stock in Trade and other products 

are determined on weighted average basis and are net of Cenvat I Goods and service tax credit. 

Cost of Work in progress and Finished Goods is determined on weighted average basis 

considering direct material cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads based on 
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normal operating capaci ty. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty until June 30, 2017. 

Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified as and when required, and where 

necessary, the same are written off or provision is made for such inventories. 

g) Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 

constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of 

money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of 

reimbursement, unless the possibi lity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 

remote. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes to the financial 

statements. 

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic 

benefits is probable. 

h) Revenue Recognition 

i) Sale of goods 

The Company manufactures and sel ls a range of products to various customers. Revenue is 

recognised over the period of time for contracts wherein the Company's performance does 

not create an asset with alternative use to the Company an d the entity has an enforceable 

right to payment for performance completed till date. For remaining contracts, revenue is 

recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 

customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return 

of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the 

goods to the degree usually associated with the ownership, and the amount of revenue can 

be measured reliably, regardless of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 

recognised in rela tion to t hese contracts in excess of bill ing is recognised as a Contract Asset. 

Accumula ted experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and returns and 

revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is high ly probable that a signifi cant reversal 
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will not occu r. A refund liabil ity (included in ot her current liabilities) is recognized for 

expected returns from the customer. Liability (included in other financial liabiliti es) is 

recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers in rel ation to sales made 

until the end of the reporting period 

Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, discounts, 

volume rebates and net of goods and service tax. 

ii) Sale of services 

Revenue from sal e of services is recognised over th e period of t ime as per the terms of the 

contract with customers based on the stage of completion when the outcome of the 

t ransactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. 

iii) Export Incentives 

Incentives on exports are recognised in books after due considerat ion of certa inty of 

ut ilisation/ receipt of such incentives. 

iv) Interest Income 

Interest income is accru ed on a time basis, by reference to the pri ncipal outstanding and at 

the effective interest rate applicable, which is t he rate t hat exactly discounts estimated 

future cash receipts through the expected life of th e financial asset to the asset's net carrying 

amount on init ial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in t he statement of 

profit and loss . 

v) Dividends 

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, 

and is included in other income in t he statement of profit and loss. 

i) Employee Benefits 

i) Short term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liabi lity is 

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or 

construct ive obligat ion to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 

employee and the obligat ion can be estimated rel iably. 

ii) Defined contribution plans 

Employees benefits in the form of the Company's contribut ion t o Provident Fund, Pension 

scheme, Superannuation Fund and Employees State Insurance are defined contribution 

schemes. Th e Company recognizes contribution payable to these schemes as an expense, 

when an employee renders the related service. 
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If the contribution payable exceeds contri bution already paid, the deficit payable is 

recognised as a liabil ity (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If 

the contribution al ready paid exceeds the contri bution due for service before the end of the 

reporting period, The Company recognize that excess as an asset (prepayments) to the extent 

that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash 

refund. 

iii) Defined benefit plans 

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plans. The 

Company's net obl igation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the 

amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 

discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The company provides for its gratuity liabil ity based on actuarial valuation of the gratuity 

liability as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by 

an actuary. The Company cont ri but es to the gratuity fund, which are recognized as plan 

assets. The defined benefit obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognized in 

the Balance Sheet. 

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the recognised asset is 

limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds 

from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To ca lculate the present value 

of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding 

requirements. 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit l iability, which comprise actuarial gains and 

losses, the return on plan assets (exclud ing interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, 

excluding interest), are recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net 

interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the 

discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability 

(asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of 

contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses 

related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 

benefit that re lates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised 

immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a 

defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 
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iv) Other long-term employee benefi ts 

Employee benefi ts in the form of long-term compensated absences are considered as long­

term employee benefi ts. The Co mpany's net obligat ion in respect of long-term employee 

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 

service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its presen t 

value. Re-measurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

The liabi lity for long term compensated absences are provided based on actuarial valuation 

as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by an 

actua ry. 

j) Foreign currency t ra nsactions 

Init ial recognition 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the Company's functional currency at the 

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Conversion 

Monetary assets and liabi lities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the 

functional currency at the exchange rate at t he reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 

liabiliti es that are measured at fa ir va lue in a foreign currency are translated into the functiona l 

currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-m on etary assets and 

liabilities t hat are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are t ranslated at the 

exchange rate at the date of the t ransaction. 

Exchange difference 

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss, except exchange differences arising from 

the translation of the following items which are recognised in OCI 

equity investments at fair value through OCI (FVOCI); 

a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to 

t he extent that the hedge is effective; and 

qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective 

In accordance with lnd-AS 101 'First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards', the 

Company has continued the policy of ca pitalisation of exchange differences on foreign currency 
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loans taken before the transition date. Accordingly, exchange differences arising on translat ion of 

long-term foreign currency monetary items relating to acqu isition of depreciable fixed assets 

taken before the transition date are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of 

the asset. 

k) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences rela t ing to fore ign 

currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) 

incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to 

acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantia l period of time to get 

ready for their intended use are capital ised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing 

costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

I) Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive 

Income. 

i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or· receivable on the taxable income or loss 

for the year after taking credit of the benefits available under the Income Tax Act and any 

adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

i) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and 

ii) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 

simultan eously. 

ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized in r'espect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding tax bases used 

for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for: 

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable pmfit or 

· loss; and 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

temporary differences rela ted to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint 

arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal 

of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future. 

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 

profits wi ll be available against which deductible t emporary differences and tax losses can be 

utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the 

extent that it is no longer probable t hat the related tax benefit wil l be real ised; such 

reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. 

Unrecogn ised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to 

the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will b~ available against 

which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 

differences when they reverse, using tax ra tes enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would 

fo llow from the manner in which t he company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or 

settle t he carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

For operations carried out in tax free units, deferred t ax assets or liabilities, if any, have been 

recognised for the tax consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying 

values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday 

ends. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

i) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 

current tax liabilities; and 

ii) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes 

levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity. 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance wi th the tax 

laws, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income 

tax liability, is considered as an asset if th ere is probable evidence that the Company will pay 

normal income tax in future. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the 

Balance Sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future 

economic benefit associated with the asset wil l be realised. 



PI INDUSTRIES LI M ITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

m) Segment Reporting 

An operating segment is defined as a component of th e ent ity that represents business activit ies 

from which it earns reven ues and incurs expenses and for which discrete financial information is 

avai lable. The operat ing segments are based on the Company's internal reporting st ructure and 

the manner in which operating resul ts are reviewed by the Chief Operat ing Decision M aker 

(CODM). 

The Management Advisory Committee of the Company has been iden ti fied as the CODM by the 

Company. Refer Note XX for Segment disclosure. 

n) Cash and cas h equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with 

original m aturit ies of t hree months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 

and w hich are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in val ue. 

o) Cash f low statement 

Cash flow statements are prepared in accordance w ith "Ind irect M et hod" as explained in the 

Accounting Standard on Statement of Cash Flows (l nd AS - 7). Th e cash flows f rom regular 

revenue generating, financing and investing activity of the Company are segregated. 

p) Lease 

The company leases various offices, warehouses, IT equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are 
typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 9 years but may have extension and termination 
options. 

Unti l the 2019 financial year, leases of offi ce & warehouses, IT equipment and vehicles leases 

were classified as eit her finance leases or operating leases. From 1 April 2019, leases are 

recognised as a right -of-use asset and a corresponding liability at t he date at which the leased 

asset is available for use by the company. Assets and liabilities aris ing from a lease are initially 

measured on a present value basis. 

Lease liabi liti es include the net present value of the following lease payments: 

o fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable 

o variable lease payment t hat are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index 
or rate as at t he commencement date 

o amounts expected to be payable by the company under residual val ue guarantees 

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option, and 

o payments of penalties for terminat ing th e lease, if the lease term reflects th e company 
exercising that option. 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

,Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the 
measurement of the liability. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot 
be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the company, the lessee's 
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to 
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a 
similar economic environment with sim ilar terms, security and conditions. 

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to 
profit or loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the fo llowing 

• the amount of the initi al measurement of lease liability 

• any lease payments made at or before the comm encement date less any lease incentives 
received 

" any initial direct costs, and 
o Restoration costs. 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the 
lease term on a straight-line basis. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low­
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment 
and smal l items of office furniture. 

Till 31 Mar 2019: 

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease, 

based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfilment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a 

right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 

th e risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 

leases. 



PI INDUSTRIES LI MITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Company as lessee under finance lease 

Assets held under finance lease are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their 

fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to 

similar owned assets. The corresponding l iability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as 

a finance lease obligation. 

Lease payments are apportioned between t he finance expenses and the reduction of the lease 

obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

The finance expenses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Company as lessee under operating lease 

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight­

line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with 

expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflat iona ry cost increases. In 

the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are 

recognised as an integral part of the tota l lease expense over the term of the lease. 

As a lessor 

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease 

are added to the carrying amount of this underlying asset and recognised as expense over the 

lease term on the same basis as lease income. Th e respective leased assets are included in the 

balance sheet based on their nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to the 

accounting for assets held as lessor as a resu lt of adopting the new leasing standard 

q) Share-based payment transaction: 

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is 

recognised as an employee benefit expense, w ith a corresponding increase in equity. The total 

expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified 

vesting conditions are to be satisfied and is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options 

that vest. 

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options 

granted includi.ng any market performance condi t ions and the impact of any non-vesting conditions 

and excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Sta tements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

r) Earn ings per share: 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

period. For the purpose of calcula t ing diluted Earnings per Share, the net profit or loss for the 

period attributable to Equity Shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 

during the period are adjusted for the effects of all di lutive potential equity shares. 

s) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no 

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not 

distributed at the end of the report ing period. 
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(A ll anHHIII ts iu ~ L\lilliun, uniC$S ot hcn,isc st:ttccl) 

1'1101'1-:HI\,1'1 \' 1 \ '(11 1-:Qlll'lll-'1 

l...casellohllantl F'n;('hohl land lh t ildings Plant :wtl machinery Fu r uilurc :wei Offil'c cquipmen rs \ 'l•hidcs 

Gross r:u..-y ing :l llliHint 

As at b eginning uf April 01,1018 

Addit ions 
Disposals 
t\ s at t\1arch 3 1,2019 

Leas< · R•ght o f Usc 
t\ddutons · Right of Use 
Acldit tons 
Disposal:; 
,\ s :H t\ lnn:h 31.2020 

Acumulatcd clepr ccial ion 
As at bcginnin~ of t\pril OJ , 20 18 
Deprecmtion ch:ugc dunng the year 
Disposals 
As at ~l:trl'h 31,2019 

Depree muon charge during the year 
DcprecH\11011 on R1ghl of Usc 
Disposals 
r\ s !lt .\l nrch 31, 2020 

Net carrying nmount 
As nl i\la•·ch 3 1,2019 
t\SlH t\1.'\I'Ch 3 1,2020 

~01 

1 5~ 

353 

0 

353 

6 

13 

3~~ 

3-10 

6 
-15 

S l 
5 1 

~.921 

643 

3.56-1 

~ 13 
8~ 

1.270 

5, 130 

2~-1 

123 

367 

14~ 

81 

592 

8.560 
1,895 

3,92:: 
72) 

1 ~.271 

(33) 

3.328 

7,970 
10,9-IJ 

lixturcs 

132 
27 
0) 

22 

18 1 

55 

121 
126 

a Depre~aauon for the year mdud~s depreci~ltiOil amownmg to ~ lOS (~larch 31, 2019 ~ I 00 ) on tbSel:i used for R\.':;~arch & Ocvclopmem Dunng the year, 
the Company incurred ~ 229 (t\ larch 3 1.1019 { 50) lowards capita! c-.:penJHurc !'or Rl!scarch & Devclopmeut (Rct'cr No te: .28) 

b Refer nme 32 (a) for thsdosure of contractual comaunmcnts lor the acquiS:IIIOn of propcny. plaru and cqu1pment 
c Refer note 40 l(n mfonnallon on propeny, plant and cqmpment pledged as ~ecll! ity by the Com pan~ 

97 

2 1 

11 8 

17 

6 
.u 

17-1 

10 

90 

60 
8-1 

3 1 

33 

190 
86 

313 

35 
87 
(0) 

126 

29 
-197 

Total 

111919 
2,81 ·1 

3~1 

J.j ,699 

.nu 
171· 

5,560 

2,033 

906 
13 

2,926 

1,133 
17R 
33 

~.20· 1 

11 ,773 
16.579 
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!-. 0 I'IIEH 1~. I'\ \CI111 .1:.. , \ SSl J'~ 

Gr oss carT~ in::! amuunt 

As :11 hl'ginning o f AJiri l 01,2018 
Add it lOllS 

As at ~larch 3 1,201Y 

Addttrons 
r\ S nl Murdl 31, 2U2U 

Acu.uulntcc l antortisa tiou 
,\ ::. :11 hcginning of ,\pril 01. :!0 18 
Amoltisation ch:11gc dunng the year 
As at •\ l:u·ch 3 1, 2019 

Amortls:tuon l'hmg~: dunng the year 
As a11\lan:h 3 1. 2020 

Net Cnrrying ..-\moun t 
As :lt ,,l:l ,.d131, 2019 

As at ,\larch 31,2020 

(, li\'T ,I N GIHI.E IS~EI'S l ".'IDEil DE\'FLQ P,I IIc/\'1 

,\ s at beg inning of April 0 1,20 18 

t\dditrons 
..\s a t l\lardt31, 2019 

Additrons 
IJisposaUAdjustment:, 
Amount 1ccognised under lmang~ble assets 
As at ~ l a rch J l , 2020 

Compute r 
Sofl\\arc 

l OS 
15 

120 

35 
155 

38 
18 
56 

10 
76 

6~ 

79 

The \altt!!-tn-usc of 1n1ang1ble assets umlt'r development 1s lughc1 than the carrymg amount 

PruUud 
Dc,·clupm en l 

i ll 

10 
___ I 'I 

29 

Cl 

9 

21) 

l ntnn~ih lc Assrts 
under Development 

208 
76 

87 
(1 6 ) 
(19) 

336 

'I oral 

115 

15 
130 

___ _H_ 

1 8~ 

(, . j 

~I 

66 
99 
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7(n) NON·CUIIIlENT INI'EST1\I ENTS 

lnn"SI IIICill in ettllily ins h 'UIII(' IIIS (fu lly Jl:thiUJI) 

UntJuOtcd sh :u'i.'S 

lrn <'j lmen l in NJnity insln.nll('tiU ofn holly·O\\ nl'd sui.Js idi:t ry <'OIIIJI:lll irs 111 Cos t 

a) 11 11.1. Fin:uU.'"<' ~~ lnn!lhtl('n l Limi tt'll 
3,60,000 (~ l:u\:h J I, 2019 3,60,000) Eqwty Sh<.~r~s of~ IO ~ach ti•lly pllid 
h) £'1 lif<' Srit'IIC(' llt;"sc:wch Umit<'d 
14,97.325 (~ larch 31. :!OJCI l .t.97.Jl5) EqmtyShar~sonJO~:~ch fully paid 
c) ls:t~I'O (Asia) Ag a·or hrmirr~h l'ri\•:tlt" Limited 
1-l,R62,90"\ (~larch J I, :!OJ<> :NIL) Equity Sh:-u~s of~ 10 each t'ully p:1iJ t 

d) J ivagro Lin1i1rd 
1:00,000 (~larch J I, ::!019 .Nil .) EqUity Sh~u~s of~ 10 <.!ilch fully paid 

c) PI J:-.potn Comtmnr Limited 
100 (~ larch J I. 20 19 · 100) Equi1y Sh>ros on 18,600 each tully pao.l - (JPY 50.000 each) 

TOT,\1, 

f'\ s :11 ;\larch Jl, 2010 

10~ 

4.432 

Aggreg:1te :1mount ofun-quotcd imestmcnts .. ,s.t .. 
Ag,gr¢gah! r.momll ofm1p:1irm t:1 11 in the v:tllh! of investments 

f'\ s :11 ~larch J I . 20 19 

10~ 

110 
110 

110 

• On Oecemb~r 27, 2019, th e: Comp:my acquired 100% shar\! of lsag.ro (Asia) Agrodh!lllicals Plivah! Limited ("lsagro"') 1esuhing iuto l sa~to IJo;!coming substdiaty of the: Company 

ll1e comp:my h:as aequih~d the Mtal assets ;111h>unung M { -1.51.2 {Including Cash :md C'J.Sh equiv:dems runounung h\ ~ 87, CUI rent ln\'C:lSmcnts amtlunung 10 ~ I,OJ7, l'mpe•tY Pl:nn and Equipment 
amounting to ~ 7Si1. lnventorii!S :unountiny to ~ 780 and f>ebtors amountiny to ~ 1.079 and Linbilit1cs amountiny to ~ 91 S {including trade Jl:l):lbl.! ~mounun~ to ~ JJ.I)) :1S a p:m of consider:uion 
and b:\ln.nce is aunbutabl.! tO\\ards th.! Goodwill amoutu ing to~ S~S r.:cog.n is.:d in !11~ consolid:th!cl fin ancial slat~nhmts oft hi! CornJ>:my tO\\ ,uds exc.:ss of purchase: cousid~mtion paid O\W fair 
value of net id~nuftabl.: assets accJtur.:d 

The lsayro business ts to b.: reor~:uuLed such thou the domesti c rl!tail a~ll,iucs undennken by ls<igro will be transferred to Jrva~ro Limited and r.:S1 oft he nchvitie:s \\Ill be mt:Q;<d 11\10 l'l lndustnes 
This reorg:mization will be u•!dtttaken wi th etTcct from the date of acqtusition ofthl! lsns ro busin.:ss by PI hHiustrics viz O.:ccmber 27. 2019through a schcml;" ofr.:or~aniz:uion to be frle:d b.! for¢ 
the National Co111pany law Tribunal Th.! llo:ud of Dr rectors of the (ompauy has l'\uthorised to submit scheme ofa.rrutgcmcnt for ii ling with th~ ('oun 

7(b) CUilltENT INI't:ST,\IENTS 

lnwSfml'nl ill n lll l u~l ruruls a t fVT P L 
QuotNI 
a) Ht'lillllcc Uquhl Fund- Uirccl Plan GI'O\\ th Pl:m - Growth Option 
Nil (March 31 , 2019 · 48.256) U1111S 
b) Aditya Uir la Snn Lirt Li iJuid Ftuut.Cr·owth·IJircct lll:llt 
Nol (March 31. 2019: 6.53.069) UniiS 
c) IIDFC l.iqu itJ FUIHI· Ilegubrl'l:ut-GI·on l h 
Ni l (March 31.2019: 70.1 5 1) Units 
d) SOl Li<JUid f.'und Oir<' cf Grow th 
Nil (March J I. 2019 · 1.52.3~ 2 ) UniiS 

Quott'tl 

Aggr~gate amount of quoted imestments and market value thereor 
Aggrcgnlt :mtourlt ofsmp:urmcnt m the \';.'lluc ofin\"estmcnts 

7(<) LOANS 

UnJet·ured, t•tmsiderctl goatluule.n (/uletl fJiill'nl'i.fc 

Security deposus• 
Lo:ms nnd adwtnces to rdatcd JJ:uttes (Refer Noh! 35) 

Othtr lo~ns and nch':mccs 
EmJ>Ioyec adv~nces 

Considered good 
Doublful 
Less. Allow;mce for doubtrul ~mploy~ ad\'l'\nces 

Other miscd lancous advances•• 
T OT ,\1. 

t Includes ~ 0 (~l:uch J 1.2019 .( 0) r~u1 ckj)\)sitto PILL Fit tance & ln\'tStmcnt Limited 

•• Includes amount due from Relat~d P~u1ics mnounting to~ II (~ larch 3 1, 2019 ~ 6) 

Lo i\nS considal!d good· S~cu(~d 
Loans considerl!d good· Unsecured 
Lo:~ns \\hich have st~mlicant tncre~s~ in credit risk 
Loans· c redit imp;ured 

L<:ss Loss t\llowance 

As nt 1\ 1a rt'h J 1. 20 20 

36 

20 

56 

39 

58 

97 

As :tl MarchJI , 
1020 

2 16 

2 16 

(3) 

213 

As :II 1\ l nrt' h J l . 2019 

220 

196 

157 

~46 

IS 
92 

J 
(J) 
47 

157 

1.1 19 

1. 119 

1. 119 

1\ s at ~ l:a l'th 3 1, 
20 19 

49 

5 
2 

(2) 
~8 

109 

As ;-,t Mow ch J l , 
2019 

208 

208 

(l) 

206 
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7(<1) T RA DE REC EI\'A IJLES 

·t·rmlc receivables• 

Rccci\nblcs from related panics (llclcr not< 35) 
Less· t\llm\~lllce f01 doubtful clcbts 

Cum.:nt portion 
1 on·currcnt portion 

ll i'C'llh up ofsecuc·i 1y derails 

Trude receivables considered good- ~..:cm eel 
Tr::tdl! receivables considl!rc:d good- Llnsc~urcd "' 

Tmdc receivables whcch h:wc scgnificmll in..:r~asl: in credit risk 
Tracie rect:i\ ablcs- c redit impair~d 

Less: Allowance for doubt till dt!bts 

T OTAL 

TOTAl. 

Refer note -10 for information ontradc recc:h ablcs pledged as sccunty by thc Company. 
•Trade Receivables include amount du~ frum Rdah;d P:H1ie5 amounting to ~ 63 ( ~ laJcll 31. 20 I 9 ~· Nil) 

7(c) CASII A ND CAS II £Ql11 VALI!:NTS 

Cash & Cash Equh :tlent ~~; 

Balnncc wilh bnnks 
In CutTcnt Accounts 
In EEFC account 

Cash on hand 
Dc!Josils with m nluri«y n f I<'SS than J months 

7(1) BAN I( IIALAL C J::S OTIIER TIIA N CASfl AND CASII J::Qlii\ 'A LE L'IT S 

In deposit accounts held as margin monc:y 
Fixed dcrX>sits with bank 
In unclaimed dividend accounts • 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

• Not available for use by the Company as they represent corre::-.ponding unclaimed dh idcnd liabiliti\!s. 

7(g) O TII EI\S FI NA NCIA LASSI!:TS 

C onside red good unless s lnlell othc1·wisc 

I merest and other charges recoverable from CtlSiomcrs 
-Consilh:~red good 

-Doubt fiLl 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Deposits lodged with Excise & Sales Tax dcpartm~nt 
Deposit accounts held as margin money 

lnsumnce Claims Recoverable 
Other recoverable (refer note 7(a)) 
Dcrivnti\'·c fimmcinl instnmtcnts- fOreign c'change forward contracts: 

7(h) CONTilACT S ASSETS 

Contmcl assets• 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

1\s 1\1 March 3 1, 
2020 

5,829 

63 

H09> 
5.483 

5,4R3 

\s :oi J\Iarrh J I, 
2020 

As nt .I l arch 3 1 2020 

,\s at M nr d> 31,2020 

30 

30 

Non- Current 

::;,X9l 

(409) 

5,483 

·168 

9 
0 

600 
1,077 

18 

25 

28 

90 

118 

As at t\l nrrh 3 1, t\ s nt March 3 1, 

2020 2019 

• Rt:covcrable fro111 customers undt:r contrnct for supply of goods mcmufJcturcct exclusively for custon1ers (Refer note .3(h)) 

r\ ~ lll t\larch J l , 

2019 

6,939 

(321)_ 
6.618 

6 ,618 

r\ S Ill March J J, 

20 19 

As at ~larch 31 , 20 19 

As nt Llla r rl> 31, 20 19 

Current 

6,939 

(32 1) 
6,618 

65 

60 

5R7 

31 
206 

7 

...-\s nt 1\ l :u·ch 31, A s at i\ l :1r ch 31, 
2020 20 19 

80 

120 

( 12U) 

10·1 
122 

306 

C UIT fll l 

9·1 

121 
( 121) 

120 
2 19 

As utl'l l arr h 31, r\ s nt l\ l:u·ch J I , 
2020 20 19 

I 022 520 
1,022 520 
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3 I\\ F'\ I OIUF~ 

Raw 111atc1 ials ; includes soock-in-11 an sit ~ 733 (March 3 I, 20 I 'l : l I 0-18)} 
\Vork in progress 
Finishl!d goods : indudf!s stock·izHransit t 67t~ l arclt J I. 20 I C) : ~ 183)l 

Stock inlrad< (indnd<S >tock-in-uan>it ~Ni l (~larch Jl. 2019 ~\Ill.)) 

Storl!s & spar~s {indudt!s stod .. ·iiHransit ~· I (~ lar~h 31,20 19. 't 6)} 

TOTAL• 

A s :t l 1\ l a r ch 31, 
2020 

5.036 
303 
93 1 

·166 
•163 

7, 199 

,\ s al ~ l :urh 31, 
20 19 

3.50·1 
595 
73~ 

291 
231 

5.357 

• Till! t.:ost ofim f!II! Ot ies n:cogniscd a:; an expense on nccoun t ofpzo\·ision ofohsoktc:, s low and nou mo\•ing iuvc:ntont:s amounting to 'l -1 5 (!\larch 31. :!0 19· ~ 6S ) 

OT II Eil IS51·.T~ 

ConsitiH{'d good unless swted otherwise 
Cnpi1al mJY;mces 

Considcrt.:d good 
Doubtlhl 
Less: Allowance for doub1 ful advances 

Ath 'nnccs lo vcntlors 
Considered gootl 

Doubt fill 
Less: Allo" once for doubt fi1l ad' anccs 

Balomcc with Cemral Excise Authorities, Customc; etc. 

Prcpa)'IJients 
Other Sl:llutory mh·anccs 
Expon inccnti,·c recei\'ables 

Right to rccovl!r rctumcd goods 
Other miscellaneous advances• 

297 
I 

(I ) 

6 
0 

54 
TOTAL 357 

• Oth~r misct!llaneous advances includes amount of ~ 50 (~vi arch 3 1 . .20 19 ~ 55 1 dcposit~d with Sale~ Tax f\uthoritics umkr prott:st 

10 (l 1\1\ E,~ r TI.\ \ SSETS 

,\d\ancc: income t:t'< (Net o f provision lOr income l:t.x ~ 8,205 (~lm·ch 31.20 19 ~ 7.229} 1 

T OTA L 

383 

I 
( I ) 

II 
0 

60 

454 

As nt i\ l nr ch 3 1, 
2020 

85 

85 

Curren I 
As nl 1\ l nr rh 3 1, 

1020 

3•1 I 
43 

(43) 
249 

91 
284 
333 

52 

1,350 

.. \ s nt t\ l nr rh 31. 
2019 

627 
II 

(Ill 
93 
58 

657 
559 
107 

2.101 

r\s Ill t"arth31, 
20 19 
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( ,.\II :tm0111tlS in ~ M illiun, unless fllh~ •·" isc s llu cd ) 

I I F.QI ' l'f' \ S IMI(ft C ,\ PIT \ I. 

Aulhoristd S han•s 
723.000.000 (ldmch 31 . 2019 : 223.000.0001 Equily Shares on I each (Mardi 31 . 20 19: ~ I oach) 

Nil( ~larch3 1 . 201 9: 5,000.CJ00 ) Preto\cuccSh:u·«oi'l iOO eaoh (~larch JI. 20 18 · t I,OO each) 

Issued Shari'S 
1 38.284 .568(~1arch 3 1 , 20 19 : 138.207.2.l6) EquityShmcsonl cach(~1arch 3 1. 201 9: I I each) 

Snbscribccl & Fully Paid up Shnres 
13S, I 07,993 (M:u·ch 3 1. 2019 . 138.030,65 I I Equity Shcu« on I each (March 3 1, 20 19 · ~ I each) 

Toral suiJscrib t'll nncl fully p:tid up sha re capilal 

n. The difli.:rcncc between the issu~d and subscribed caJ lilal is on rll.:connt oflc ss number of slmrcs t~llotl c:d in right is-;ue in enrlicr years. 

b. Terms/ t• ighfs :ll rachrd fo E<tuily Shares 

,\s :11 .\1 :11·rh 31, 

lU20 

723 

723 

138 
138 

138 
138 

.-\s nl i\lnrrh 31. 
20 19 

221 

500 
723 

138 
13M 

13R 
138 

Thl! Company h3S only ont: clnss of Equit~ Shares h:tving a par\ nlu..:: oft I pa sha!c { k\ lmdt J L 2019 ~ I p~r shatc ). Each holt.lc!t of Equuy Shar..::s is «:: nt it ll!d to ant:' oh! per shar~. The dh itlc:nd 
proposed by the Bonrd of DircctOJs is subject to the approval of the shareholders in tl1c ensuing 1\nnu nl Gt!ncrnl ~vlcc ting cxc ..:: pt interim cltvHh.:n<l In tht! C\Cnt of liquidmion, th..:: Equity shareholders 
are cligihlc to receive the remaining asst!IS oftht: Compnny after distribution of all prefacntial amouuts. in propo11ion to thei r slmrcholding. 

c. Issue of Sh:trcs under em ployce s roclc option ( l.t:SOP) Scheme 
During the yt:<lr end..::d ~ l arch 31, 2020, th..:: Company has issued 77,341 t!QUity slmrcs of~ I each (~·larch 3 1, 20 19 123,333 equity shar..::s or l ! ..::.tch ), as per cxcn:i:-;..:: price to PII ESOP Tmst, 5(!1 

uplo administ<r Emplo) <e Stock Op1ion Plan. Oul of total <quity shar<s isSII"d to tho Tmst 159,685 equity shnrcs of f.1co ~aluc on 1 each ( ~larch 31. 10 19 163,691 equity shares of face value of 
t I each) have bc:cn allocart:d by the Tnt.)t dming the }l!rtr to n:spc:ctivl.! employees upon \!'<\!rc i s~ of Stock Option. As on l\huch 3 1, ..!0.!0, 13 1.036 equity shar..::s of face valu\! oft I per share 
(i\ larch 3 1. 20 19 2.> 1.200 of l:t~e vcl lttc o t' f I I!<H.:h ) art! pending to be allocated to cmploye~ts upon exercise ofS tn~k Option. (Refer Not I! 3 1 1 

d. Reconrilin lion of sh:u·es ouls tuuding at the IJ ~ginning nnd at I he end of the reporting period 

Issued shnn~ c11pihl l 

EttttitJ' Shares 
Par ticula i'S Ettuiry Share Nn. of Shares) \'a luo of Eq uitv Shares 

2019-20 20t8- 19 20 19-20 20 18-19 
Share outstandin~ at bt!g.inning of period 13,82.07,226 13.80.83.893 138 138 

Sharc:s issued under employee stock option schcm..: 77,342 I ,23.333 0 0 

Share outstanding, at end of period 13,82.8~,568 1],82,07.226 138 138 

Suhscri l>cd & p11id 111• 

Equi/J' Siwre.s 
Pa1'ficulai'S £q uit\· S hare No. of Sh:>ros ) Valu e: of Ec ui ty S hares 

2019-20 20 18-19 20 19-20 2018-19 
Share outstanding nt be~imting of period 13,80.30.651 13,79.07,3 1 s 138 138 

Shares issncd under employee stock option plnn 77.342 1,23.333 0 0 

Share outstanding al cud o rpc, iod 13,81,07,993 13,80,30,651 138 138 

(', Sh:ll'es e·cscrvecl fo1· issue uncler oplion 

Shares reserved for issue under clllploycc stock option scheme is set out in Note 3 1 

I 



I' I 1:'\IJl STIU ES Llt\IITIC D 

NOTES TO FI.\.1:'\CI.\1, STA'I F. \I E:NTS FOil TilE \' I::AR Ei\llED ,\1 ,\ ftC I I J I, 2021) 

(All :tmuunts iu ~ Millinu,uulcss other\\isc stltl ctf) 

f. Ddails or )i;hn l't'hold{'I'S lwld ing more than s·x. sh:II'(•S in lin· Company 

£ . ~~ :.t tltll' . wres 
N:une of S har<'hohlers 

:-..lr. Sail I Singlml 
Ms. ,\lmllin Sin •hal 
~~~ . ~lnvnnk Sin~h:l! 

~Is. Poo·a Sint!.hal 
ICICI Prndcntial Value Discovery Fund 

12 OTIII>R IC l ' IT ) 

ltesH\'t'S & surplus 

a. Cnt•itnl reserve 
Balauce at the beginning of the financial yei\r 
Addition during the financial ycn.r 

Capital Reserve pcz1nins to amount transferred from cr~pital redemption rescn'\! which was cn.:att:t! for redcmpuon 
ofpr!.!fcrcllCC shnre. 

IJ. Securities premium n·scJ'VC 
Balance at the beginning of the financi:tl year 
Add: Prt!mium on issue of CC]uity shares throug.h ESOP 

Scc111itics prt:mium II.!Scrvc is used to record thl.! premium on issue of shares. 1 he rescnc is utllist:d iu accorctancc 
\\ith the provisions of the Act. 

c. S hure option outstnmling :1ccount 
B.1lancc at the beginning of the financit1l ycnr 
Less: E~pcnsc on l.!mploycc stock option scheme 
l.css: Shares issucclunclcr employee stock option scheme 

The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the liability m ising. out of options ISSUed to employees 
under Emplo} ee stock option scheme until the shares arc ic;suetl ( RcfCr Note 31 ). 

tl . Gcnl•rul reser ve 
Balnnce at the bcginnin~; of the financial year 
Add· Transf~rred dtning the financial year 

(.>. Surplus ill stnt(>mrnl of (H"ofit ~\l loss 
Balance ntthc beginning of the financial ycnr 
Addition dming the linancial year 
Add: Adjuslm<lll orlnd AS I 15 
Achl. Rcm~asurenlCilt gain I (loss) on de lined benefit plans through OCI 
Less: Interim di\ idcnd 
Less: Final dividend 
Less: Dividend distribution lax on equity shares 

fi rms o f other romu1·rhrnsive income 

f. Cash flow hedge reserve 
Bnlancc at the begilllling oft he. financial year 
t\cicl: Other comprchcnshe income lbr the financinl year 

Thl.! company uses hc:dging instnnnents as pm1 of its nu:mngcmcnt uf forci g.n cmTency risk nssoci:Jted ''"ith its 
highly probabk forecast sale. For hedging foreign cmrcncy risk. the company ust:s foreign currency forward 
contmcts which is designated as cash now hedges. To the c.xtcnt these hedges nrc effective: the change in fi1ir 
\ 1aluc of the hedgiug instrument is rccognisctl in the cash I low hedging reserve. i\mouuts rt:C~lgniscd in the cnsh 
flow hedging reserve is rcclnssilied to profit or loss when the hcdg.ed item (snll.!s) aiTects profit or loss. 

Total 

2019-20 2018-19 
No of S hares 'Yo of l lnldinu No ofSI1iln·s %or lloldin" 

85.5U57 6.20 85 5·1,857 ~ 
2.1 5.60.500 15.62 2.15.60.500 15.62 
3.20.28.51 0 23.20 3.20.28.510 23 20 

86.65.550 6.28 86.65.550 6.28j 
60.73.466 ·lAO I 

As at "arch 31.2020 As a l March 3 1.20 19 

15 

2.169 
so 

73 
(4} 

127) 

1.857 

18.368 
·1.'123 

( 14} 

(414} 

(207) 
(127} 

127 
(546} 

15 
15 _____ _ 

2.053 

2.2>19 - ----"""'6'-

42 

102 
13 

(42) 

1.857 

I,R57 ------'--

22,029 

1•1.908 
'1.077 

216 
( I } 

(345) 
(345} 
( IH) 

49 
(419} _ _ ___ .:c78::__ 

25,773 

15 

2.169 

73 

1.857 

I R.368 

127 

21,609 



l' ll 'i lll'STIO~:s I.I ~ IITE I) 

NOTES T O F18 ,\:\'CIALST:\ n :MEt'ffS f(}H 'I l i E YEA It E.N0£0 MAHCII 31. 2U1tl 

(.\ 11 :tnlounts in ~ 1"illion, uu lrss IJ(htl'wise s t:\lttl) 

1.1 1>1>'1 RIIJl' IIO\ \1.\0E .\:'>ll l'lt01'0SIIl 

,\ lli\'iclt'uds tl l•clan~tl anti puicl: 
rm:ll di \ ulcnd (;\brl'lt J I, 2020 J)l!rlrllllS to fin:ulC.:Itll ye:~r 20 tS-19 nnd Mardi 3 1. :!() ' {' pl!r!~UilS 10 lin:~nci:~l )1!:11 2017- 18) 
lnte1im dh·1de-ud (~larch J I, 1020 per tams to financial year 20 19-20 :md 1\ l:uch J I. 201'J j>en:uns to fin:mcsnl yc:ar 201 S-IQ) 
Tot:tl di' idt•ruls 

(.tl Th~ ConlJHIII)' has p!ud tax on diviJ~·tHI :tmoun ti1t~ to~ 121 (1\lltrch Jl,2019 ~ 1-l.!) 

r\ Slll ;\ l:! rC'h 31. 
lOlO 

207 
414 
621 

r\$:11 i\l:ll'( h J l. 

l 0 19 

345 
3·15 
690 

As at t\ l :1rch J t. As at i\larrh .l l. 

U Di\ idt•nds 1101 r('cogn ist'tlnl the- t'nd of the J"qmrtin~ prriotl ---'!~0.=.20'-=,---------.=.20:.;1'-'9--:~ 
In adJauon 10 thl! abO\<! dl\td.:nds, substqth!llllo th~ )lt:u l!nd tho;: Board ofDtr~~:lots ha\1! tt.:comm!!tlo!llii tina! ~r.,idtnd of < I 00 138 207 
p<!r fully paiJ I!(JUIIY :;hare (J\f;u~h 31, 2019 ~ I 50) 

T:tx on dt\ Hll!'nd 

·1 his propos..:d dt\ tdcnd ts ~ubjt.:Ctlo the appto\ ;~I of sh:udtolders in the ensumg annual g(th:ral ml!ctmg. 

14 FI:'-A.\(1 \ L Ll \1111,1111 S 

l~(n ) UOHI(()WINGS (NON-CIJII IIENT) 

Stcur('cl 
Trrm l o:ms- From B:1 nkc; 
For<!ign Curr.:ncy Lo:-ans f10m Banls at amotlls.:d cost 
ltupe<: Tl!tm Lo;lll at amor1tSI!d ..:ost 

l.t•ss; lntl!ri!SI flee rued but not dul.! on borrQ\\IIIgS (included 111 Note 1-l(c)) 

a. Fon•igu cmTcnry loans indudrs: 

TOTAL 

gq I OQ 395 

12 
3.994 99 91 393 

(I) 'Extcmal ~onunl!rCHll borrowmgs (F.CB) from HSUC U:tnk,l\ lauritius :unounting to USD 14.2 ~IN c;~rrymg mt~rcst rah! of J rnon1hs l.IBOR plus I IO'o is outstandi n~:; as on 1\l:uch 31.2020 
and is h!pay:'lblc in bal:tnct I (one) <Ju:arwly mslalmcnts ofUSD I -11 i\ln I he ma1uri1y d:uc ofdh! loan IS ~ Ia~ 2). 2020 Tht loan is s<curtd by C'\dusm! ~·har~l! on mo"able J)bnt ;md 
m:tchin~ry & bulldmg rclnung to multi purpose plani(~JPI,) · 6 &7 of the Company situ.11ed at SP.\128. J:md.)usar (Guj:U:u) Th\! loan \\"JS t:tl:tn for tht PUfJ>OSC ofc:apll:tl C\l)(ndaaurc for 1\\0 
multi purpose plant d~s1gn:ucd as i\ IPP 10 and i\IPP II :u stcrllnu Multi Product SFZ in Jambusar. Oimict, GuJarat (r..:fcr note -10) 

(it) 'External comml!rclal borro\\lngs (ECil) f10111 HSDC Brmk. Smgapore mnounttn~ lo USO 30.0 l\ IN (dr:mn) c:urying in1erest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus I 25°o is outslandmg as on /.\larch 
J I. 2020 In addi1ion, an :11110unt ofUSO 28 i\IN is approwd from I·ISilC ll:tnl:. Singttport, "hl4'h is pe:ndmJ:: to be dr:mn The borro\\ln,g from IISBC lhnk Sm,gaporc are rtflayable in 1·1 
(fourl~\'11) C<Jual quarh:rly irlSt:tlntl!nts ofUSD -1 1-1 MN l!:tch "I he matunly d:ltt ofth~ lo:an rs Octobi!r 10. 202-1 The lo3n IS secured by ~'<dusi\c charge on movable tllant and ma,hin<ry and 
butldtng rdnttng to mtdo:r conslruction muhi pmposc plant (1\ JPP)- 10 & II of the! Comt>:tny Sllll~lt.!d at Slll\129/2, J:tmbusar (Gujnr:H) .The lo.m w:ts tn~..-n for the purpose ofcapi1al 
O:'l:pcndillm.: for mo mulu putpose pl:mt d~si~l:lle!d as 1.\ IPP 10 :md ~IPP I I at sterling ~luhi Product SEZ in Jambus:-~r, DIStriCt. Gujarat. (refer note 40) 

(ui) 'Hupt\! Tt!rm loan from C111corp fmancc: (India) lmuh:d CCFtt.•) ttmountmg 10 :t 1.7-10 ..:all)'lll_g inh!ltSI 1:11.! ofS0 e ts outsla.ndmg as on 1\lat ~.":h J I, 2020 Th~ Oono\~mgs from CFIL arc: 
rcpay:abl~ m S (e•ght) Cfjutl.l ctuancrly mstallmt.!nt rhe ru:uunty date of th.! lo:tn is D.!CI.'Illbcr 11. ~022 The loan is sccurl!d by e"'clusivc ch:t r~e on mo,·cablt fixed assets of mult1 purpose plant 
(l\IPP) S <'llld mldl.'r construct JOn ~ haiti purpose plant (~IPP) CJ of the Comp:tny sthr:UI!d at Sl'~l l"J/2. Jambus:~r (Gujnrat) TI1~ purpos~ oflo:tn ts reimbursement of capital ~'pcmhturc nt v;~nous 
m:trlllf:tclunng l'n~i! tty in I· Y 20 19 am.! III FY 2020.{rdcr not~ ·10) 

h. As on dtl! Dalancc she:CI dat~ there is no dcf.1ult 111 r~paym~u t of loans and mh:rcst 

f. C h:mgcs in li:thilities a 1is inc fr·om fin:wrin~ :.clivit irs 

This s~ct1011 sets out chang~·s in liabi liti~s ansing from finonc1ng aclivit,~·s pt1rst1ant to 
Current pol1ion of long term finam:ial borrowing,s 
Non·currentponion of long term financial bnno\\ings 
lnter~st accruc..-d but not du~ on bono\\ul~ 

Balanrt :-.s :11 thl' ht!dnu in~ of tht }"l':n · 

For.:ig.n e'ihnns~ adjsutnwnts 
lnt.:rest es1>cnsl! 
lnt~rest p:tid 
Amo1tis:uion of i,Icpilid llroccss,n~ Cl tnre;~s on 
Term lo:m 
loan taken 
It!!-payments 

U:tl:uu,'l' l\S 111 lh<' cntl of lh l' ytnr 

TOTAL 

r\s at March J l. As at ,\lnrrh Jl. 
21110 2019 

(97) (.1 93) 
(J.'l94) (')?) 

! 121 !2! 
H. I031 !4941 

14941 ISJ61 
(154) (56) 

(60) (29) 
50 30 
)~ 

Ill 

(3.886) 
~07 399 

(4 .103) (-19~) 



I' I I'W l 'STIUES LI ,\ IITEil 

,-;OTES TO FIXA'iCI.\L S"I"AT E,\I ENTS FOil T ilE \' EAR E1-;DED ,\1 ,\ RC II 3 1,2020 

( \II unu mnts in Z 1\ l illinn , unless nthcrwisc s latccl) 

tl . Loan \'uvcn:ults 
Umh:r the k rms of the 111:Uor bon·o\\~llg li1cil itics. the group is n.:quirc<l tu comply with the lhllnwing tiuam::ial CO\ l.!naJliS: 

a. the lk iJt s\!n·icc co\'cragc 1 atio (DSCR) must he higher thnn 2 I DSCR .. (PAT -t Depreciation +- lute •·~st cxpt! nses-+ 0\!fcrrcd tax ... Amortizallon)/ (lu tcrcst paid (including. mtt..:rcsr c:tpitalized) 't 

Finnncc charges paid + Long. term nnd short term debt repayments cxchuling \ \'OJ king capital)) 

b. Fixed assets co\erage ratio (F t\C R) must be highl!r than 1.25 I fixed assets cmcragc ratio = (H) porlu:cmcd 1\lo\:tblc Fixed t\ssets (net book ' 'aluc) ' Immovable assets mon gaged (book 'nluc))/ 
(secured lo:111 oulslmuling)J · 

c r- , tclna l Debt, EI31DTA to be m;nntaincd below 2 S. I To1al debt or bo~rowing,J EBIDTAI 

d. E:-:tc111al gcarin~ to be nmintained below 2.1 Tor a I debt or borrowings rfnngible net wor1h ) 

The Company complied with these rat ios throughout the reponing period. As a1 ~larch 31.2020 Debt scf\ ice ~0\'crag,c rat io was 10.72 ( ~larch 3 1. 2019 al 14.67). Fixf!d nssc1s CO\crttgc mtio was 
.1.52 (~·la~cl1 3 1 2019 at 16.6-1 ), E" cmnl Dcbt/EI31DT A was 0.68 (~ Iorch 3 1. 20 19 at 0.08 ) and c" ernal gcarin:; ratio was 0.20 (~ l arch 31. 20 19 al 0.02). 

l~lb) IJORHOWINCS (CURR ENT ) 

Secured 
Fro m Oa nks 

Sccurl!d shon tenn lo:tn - \Vmking Capital Demand Loan 
Buyer's Credit 

Shorl term loan: 

TOTAl . 

Current 
As at 1\lan:h 3 1, 

2020 

950 
133 

I OS3 

As a t Marr h 3 1, 
2019 

Working capi1alloans nmounting to INR 950 Mn carrying intcrt!st rate of7.90 to 8.10% is outstanding as on J\ larch 3 1. 2020. m:-tt rul ing within thr.:c months from the balnncc sheet elate. The lonn 
is secured by Uoaring clwrge on nil cn1 rent ~1ssets. The pnq>osc ofth..: loan is to me~t ''orking capital rcquircmcnls of the Company. 

Chang<'S in lhiUilifirs arising from nnnncing 

:lclivities 
Bnlnncr :1s at the beg inning of the year 

lntch:st e:..;p~use 
lntcr..:st p.aid 
Amortisation of Pr\!paitl Procl!ssing lhmgt:s 
Oorrowin~;s (Net) 
Bal:ml·e as at the end of the year 

l~ (c) TRA DE I' A \'ABLES 

Trade puyables 
·Due to micro and small cnh!rprist:s (Refer Note 35) 
-Other I rode pnynbles 

TOTAL 

• Other llade payabk includes mnount due to rebted paatics omount i n~ to 't 201 (~ktrch 3 1. 2019 ~ 14 1 

l~ (d ) OTIIER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Employee payabl~s • 
Sc~u rity deposits from dc:llcrs 
Seem ity deposi ts from contrac tors 
Current mmnrities of"lon!;-l<nn borro\\ings (Reie r Note 14 (a)) 
Interest ;,ccmed lmt not <lue on borro\\ings 
U11clrtilncd dividends 
Creditors for capital purchases 
De felTed Lease Liabilities 
Other payable *"' 
Di!ri\'ati\'C fi nancial instruments- forei!;ll c.xclmnge lbrward conancts 

C hanges in liallilitirs arising from Jin:mcing 

acth ities - l)cfcrrtd lr :ur lia !Jili tir s :­

Ua hwrc :1S :U the br~innin J!_ of the )'tar 

I merest expense 
Ad<lition-lease liabilities 
Lease rental paid 
Bnlnncc ns at the cntl uf I he Y<':\r 

• This includes due to directo1 !-. :unounting 10 f 99 (March J I. 20 19 ~ 93 ) 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

•• This in clud~s due tu nou-cx~cutivc/ indt:r~ndent dir(!CJOrs nmount ing h> ~ 13 ( ~ lnrch 31. 201 9 ~ 17 ) 

As :1t 1\ l :1 rch 3 1, 

2020 

195 

295 

257 

1\ s nl i\larr h 31 , 

2020 

56 

5.482 
5 538 

189 

190 

As ai J, I:w ch 3 1, 
2020 

43 
(43) 

1.083 
I OSJ 

As at ~ l arch 31 , 
2019 

,\ s at t\larch 3 1, 

2019 

·IS 
5.o93 
5 ( ~( 

C IIITCII I 

As at ~ lnrch J l , As lt i J\hll'rh 3 1, 

2020 20 19 
6-10 

97 
12 
7 

502 
164 

782 
508 

2 7 1 ~ 

A s at i\ l:nTh 3 1, 
2020 

•112 
46 
176 

( 175 
-159 

523 

3 
393 

2 

371 

1.11 5 

2.~1 ~ 

,\ s nt March 3 1, 

2019 



PI INIJIISTill [ S Llrl ll'flcD 

NOTES TO I'IN.I .' K IAL ST,ITEr\IE:'\TS FOR TilE \ E. \I~ E ..... DED .11.1 1\!' 11 J I, 2021) 

(.-~11 amounrs in~ 1\ lillion , unlclS othcr\\isc ~ I:UNI) 

15 i' llOI' II>IO'I S 

Pro,·ision for rmployer IJtnelirs* 
Long tcnn compcnsarccl aiJscnccs 
Grotuity (Refer note 30) 

Pro' isions for lrgal cklims 

• This mclud.:s clue to dir&:ctm s ~unounting. to ~ OS ( ~lan:h 3 I. 20 19 ~ -'X ) 

(i) Lo11g tt'l'IH cunqlensah•<l uhsenns 

TOTAL 

107 
I U7 

I 07 

The long, tcnn co111pcnsatt:d nbsl.!nccs CO\'CI 1h~: comp:mv's liability fOr c:tmcd l e;~vc ,~,-hich are classitir.:d as o lh c r long-term bcncli ts. 

Currenr 
As :H ~ lurch 31 1 As fl l 1\lan:h JJ, 

2020 2019 

Il l 152 R 
178 
289 1:'2 8 

131 liS 
132 11 8 

2S11 28-1 126 

The entire: nmoum of pru\isinn of~ 15:! i~ pn:st:ntal as cmri'nl. since the compn;1y t.lol!s nm han: an uncondi1ional riglu ro deiC:r S\!lllcmcnt tO a any ofrhese obligations. Ho\\l!n~r hasc:d on past 
experience, th~ compcmy does not ~xpect all cmplo~{·cs to a\ ail the fiall nmount of nccrucd lcm cor require payment for such I~ owe within next l l months. 

Lcnvc obligations not C:\f)CCtcci to be settled \\1thinthc nc="\t 12 momhs 

(i) lnfonuation about Jli'O\isions fur ll•gnl d:1 ims 

As nt J\larch 3 I , 
2020 

As nl i\ l an·h 31, 
2019 

(a) An objection was r;tised by the custom depamnent 011 classification of on~ of the imported raw m:atcTJ<lls rcsuhing in th:::m:tnd of differential custom duty The Compnny filed an appc:tl against 
the order mad is clearing the goods a!ler furnishmg. ofb:mk guarantee for diiTer~ntinl duty ngainst each impon of such raw mah:rial. As on ~ l nrch 31, 2020 total diflh<-nti:~l custom duty demand 1s 
l 128 Ovtarch 3 t, 2019: f II t ). Case is p!!nding bdi.,rc.: :-\ s:;istant Conunissionc::1 of Customs. ~ lumlmi . 

(bl Govl!mmcut ofRaj:1sthau issued a nohlication resulting into an ~'<cise liability of ' :I C\ larch 31, .:!0 19: ~ .t ) Th<: Company hns 11led \\I it ngainst the noti licatiun and has fumishecl ti~ed deposit 
agmnst the said liability_ 'I ht! cr.se is pcndin~ be: fore Honorabl1! Rajnsth;m High Cou1t. 

(i i) i\ lovcm(' lll in other provisions 

,\ s ari Apl'il20 18 
Provisions made during the ) car 

As a l 3 1 i\larch 2019 
Provisions made durin g, the year 

As at ~larch 3 1,1020 

1(, DEFERRED 1',1 ,'\ (.-\ 5SETS)/ LI.\1311111E~ 

'I he bal:11u·c C'Ompriscs temporary diffcn·nccs allributablc to: 

Dcrcn cd t1u linUili tirs 
Plant. property maf cquipm~nt 

Intangible assets 

Dl•fcnccl rax nsscts 
Provision for employee bew.:lits 
Otlacr pro\'isiOJIS 
Other financi;'llliabilities 
Trade receivnbh:s 
Other comprehensive income itt:1ns 
- Reme~surcmen ts on clc fin~d benefit plans 
- Effecti \'C portion on cash now hedge~ 
Others 
i'1Aiuimmumnhc1n;He tax (i\ IAT) credit cntnlcn1em 

Ncf deferred l :l X (assets)/ liabililics 
ll 

TOTAL 

..\s n ll\lnrrh 31. 
2020 

(51) 
(61) 

(7) 

( 1·13) 

(25) 
(236) 

(29) 

(778) 

( 1,333) 
I( J 

Lega l clahus 
(0 ( 

17 
118 

1·1 

As nt i\ l a rch 3 1, 
20 19 

1.093 
14 

1.1 07 

(42) 
( 17) 
(8) 

(155) 

( 17) 
53 
(5) 

( 1,048) 
( 1 ,23~) 

(127) 



1'1 IN I)liSTJlJJ.:S 1.1.\IITJ::Il 

•'>OTICS TO FJ 'I \ :'\CL\ L STATI':t\1 ENTS FOR T ilE \'F.AI( J::N ili·:D ,\1 ,\ HCII 3 1, 2020 

(All :unounis in~ a\ li llion, unless tUhcrwiS(' ~ Ia ted ) 

~\l ovtm("lll in dcft•rTed tax: ,\s :II i\! a r ch 3 1,20 19 

Dct'crr('d tax liahilitit·s 

Plmll, property and Ctjuipmcnt 1.093 

lr1tangiblc assers 1·1 

S11h- Tulal (;l) I ,107 

Deferred 1:1~ nssets 
Provision for cmployec bcndits 42 
Oth..:r prO\ isions 17 

Other finmtcialliabilities 
Tl'ade r..:cci' ablcs 155 

Otl1cr contprc!hcnsi'e inconk! ilems 
- Rcmeasm emcnts 011 defined benet it plans 17 

4 En~cti\t:: portion on ca~h !low hedges (58) 

OJ hers 5 
1\linimnmm alternate tax (l\.IAT) credit cntitlcmcnl 1.0 •18 

S ub- Tolnl (IJ) 1 ,23~ 

Nel tlcfrnrtl lax (assciS)I l in iJili lics (n )-(h) {1 27) 

'' ' o''l.'ml'nl in deferred tax: As al ~larch 31,1018 

Dcferr('d fnx linhilities 
Plant. prope1 ty nnd equipment 1.032 

Intangible rtSSc.!IS 16 

Sub- T olal (n) 1 ,0~8 

Ot'f~rrcd l:l.\ no;,scls 
Provision for employee bene tits 89 
Other prm isions II 
Othl!r fin:mcial liabilities 

Trade receivables 67 

Other financialnsscts 28 
Other comprehcnsi\'e income items 
• Rcmeasurements on defined benefit plans 16 

• EfTecth c portion on cash II ow hedges ( 16) 

OJ hers 
iYlinimnunn altt.:rnatc Ia~ (MAT) r.:redit ~ lltitlcmcnl 1.096 

Sub- 'I oln1 (b) 1 300 

i'icl llcfcrrcll lax (asscls)/ linhililics (a)-(b ) {252 ) 

• :\ctualismion of M:'\ T credit utilisation for the FY 20 17-18 on the ba~;is of tax re turn tiled. 

17 OTII ERLI\IJI LJ I' li\S 

Advancl! lf01n customers 
RefumV Return linbilitil!.s • 
S1o1u1ory <lues poyoble 

TOT,\L 

f(el'ognitetl in Rccogni~cd in 
I'& I. O C I 

3·10 
(I) 

339 

9 
17 
( IJ 

(12) 

29 1 

2•1 

67 301 
272 !J02) 

Rccogni'lcd in Recognized in 
P&L OC I 

62 

(3) 

59 

(47) 

6 

88 
(28) 

(~2) 

64) 

~ ~ 1) ( ~ I) 

100 . ~ I 

l rtilisation ...-\ s <II t\larch Jl, 
2020 

1..133 
I~ 

I .~~r, 

51 

6·1 

ILl 

15 
136 

29 
1270) 778 

(270) 1,333 

270 113 

Olhcr As: nl J\ Jarch 31, 
Ad justments" 2019 

1.0'13 

1•1 
1,1 07 

42 

17 

155 

17 
(58) 

5 
16 I.O•IS 

16 1 ,23~ 

P6! p 27l 

CUITCIII 

As at J\ lnrch 3 1, As ni t\ larch 31, 
2020 1019 

323 
95 

110 
528 

125 
208 

102 

~35 

• The Company hns a customary pracucc: of accepting rctum and accordingly, the Company ho1s recognised a rt:funcl liability for the :unoum ofconsidcn.uion received fOr which the Company docs 
not c-...:pc!ct rob(! entitl<!d amounting to~ C)5 (~larch 3 1.20 19: ? 208). The Company has also recognised a right to n:cover the! rctumed goods t 52 ((\ larch 31. 2019: t I 07). The costs to rccm er the 
products are not nmtenal because the customers usually rctum the product in a salcnblc condition. 

IS C LJ(Rf<:~T 'J'\ .'( Ll.lll i i.ITI ES 

Provision for llt~.:omt! Tax (N~t of Advance Income Tax < 8,.245 {March 3 1, 2019 ~ 7,223}) 

TOTAl, 

A s al ~ larch 3 1, 

2020 
As nl i\lar('h 3 1, 

1019 
6 



PI 1\ 0t iST RI ES LJ ,\IITED 

NOTES TO FI.'MNCIA I. STAT E1\ IENTS FOJ( Til E \'E.\Jl EN OED ~ I \RCII 31,2020 
(.\ 11 amuunls inl i\lillion, unless othrrwisc stah:c.J ) 

19 I ~ E \ lc \ l ' E FI~O\ I 0 I' I·. H.\ I IO'<S 

Hcvcnuc fro m ope ratio ns inclu des 
a) Sale of products 
b) Sale of s~rvices; 

c) Other operating revenues. 
Scrap sales 
Export incentives 

l~even nc From Operations (Net) 

Reconciliation of re,·enuc recognised with the contract price: 

Contract Price 
Adjustments for: 
Relimd liabilities 
Discount/Incentives 

Rc,•cnuc fro m Ope rat io ns 

Crit ical j udgements in revenue: 

Year ended Year ended 
t\ larch 3 1, 2021) t\ la rch 3 11 20 19 

32.-168 27,918 
12 2 

16 IS 
572 -171 

33,068 28,-109 

\ ' ea•· ended \'car en ded 
March 31,2020 t\ larch 31. 201 9 

3-1.2-12 29,886 

(95) (208) 
(1,679) (1,760) 

32,468 27,91S 

The Company has recognised Provision for discounts and sales retmns amounting to~ -l56 millions from sale of products to \arious customers during the yea• ended 
March 31, 2020 (March 3 1. 20 19 ~ -17-l ). The provision has been detennin~d by the management based on the current and expected operating environment, Sales 
returns variability. expected achicvcnu:nt of targets against vmious ongomg schemes floated. 

20 OTHER 1.'\CO\IE 

Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost 
Unwinding of discount on security d~posits 
Net gain on financial assets 
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through prolit or loss 

'-Realized Gain 
'-Unrealized Gain/ (Loss) 

Net foreign e~change differences * 
Dividend Income 
i'vl iscellaneous Income 

TOTAL 

Yenr ended 
i\la rch 3 1. 2020 

163 
15 

13 

255 
0 

33 
.179 

• Net of amount of loss ~ 149 (March 31. :!0 19 ~ 55 ) which has been transli!rrcd to Capital work in progress during the year. 

21 C' IIA~G ES IN l NVENTOIH ES OF fo i :'II ISHED GOODS. WOH I( I 'I PROGRESS AND STOC K l 'l T IU DE 
Year end ed 

t\la rch 31, 2020 
Closing balance 
Finished Goods 931 
Stock in trade 466 
Work in Progress 303 
Right to recover returned goods 52 1,752 
Opening bala nce 
Finished Goods 735 
Stock in trade 292 
Work in Progress 595 
Right to recover returned goods 107 1.729 

TOTA L (23) 

735 
292 
595 
107 

1.710 
150 
369 

\'cn r ended 
March 3 1,2019 

193 
10 

198 
(89) 

240 

48 
600 

\'car ended 
t\la rch 3 11 20 19 

1.729 

2.229 
500 



1'1 l.'WlJSTH I "S L I1\ IITED 

NOTES TO I'I IMN(' I,\L ST,\ T E,\I ENTS FOH Til F. \ 'E.\H EN DED ~IAHCII 3 1 , 202U 

(r\11 amnun1s i n ~ 1\ l illiou, unless olhcn\ ise staled) 

22 E\11'1.0\ l'f: 13E 'i EFIT E:\1' 1~ '1$1' 

Salaries. wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident & other fu nds 
Gratuity ( Rcl;:r Note 30) 
Long term compensated absences 
Employees Welfare Expenses 
Expense/( Reversal) on Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Not~ 31) 

TOT AL ,., 

Yt•nr ended 
1\l a rch 3 1. 2020 

2.776 
Ill 
50 
46 

13.J 
(4 

3, 113 

• Net of amount ofi[ 49~ (lvlarch 31 , :!019 ~ 169) which has been transfcrr~d to Capital work in progress dunng the year. 

a. 

23 0'1 IIER E:\1' 1·: \ SES 

Power, fuel & water 
Consumption of stores & spares 
Repairs & maintenance 

- 13uildings 
- Plant and machinery 
-Others 

Environment & pollution control expenses 
Laboratory & testi ng charges 
Freight & cartage 
Advertisement & sales promotion 
Travelling nnd conveym1ce 
Rental charges [Refer note 32(c)l 
Rates nnd ta:-.:cs 
Insurance 
Donation 
Loss on Sale/Retirement of property, plant and equipment (Net) 
Payment to auditors (Refer note 23 (a) belowl 
Telephone and communicntion charges 
Provision for bad and doubtful debts & advances 
Director sitting fees and commission 
Legal & prolcssional fees 
Technical Know How l'ees 
[3ank charges 
Corporate social responsibility expenditure : Refer note 24 below! 
M iscellancous expenses 

Auditors' Remuneration 

-Audit f~cs 
- Limited review fees 
-Ccrti licates & other mallc1s 
-Reim bursement of expenses 

TOTA L • 

TOTA L 

Year ended 
i\lar ch 3 1,2020 

1,073 
3 17 

47 
247 
174 
480 
286 
300 
445 
359 

80 
35 

112 
8 

13 
5 

46 

122 
15 

292 
12 
20 

102 
260 

4,850 

Year ended 
i\ larch 3 1, 2020 

3 

I 
0 
5 

• N<!t of amount on: IJ.J (March 31 , 2019 Z 55) \\hicl1 has been transl;:rr~d to Capital work in progress during the year. 

l .J CORPOI~ \TF. SOCI.\I.IH~SPO'\'S IBIUTY E:\I'EN OITl'IH~ 

Contribution to PI Foundation Trust for CSR activities 
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year as 
per Section 135 of the Act 

Amount spent during the year on : 
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset 
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 

Yea r cudcd 
1\larch 3 1,2020 

102 
102 

102 

Year ended 
i\ l>1rch 3 1, 2019 

2,353 
95 
38 
25 

101 
13 

2,625 

Year cudcd 
i\ larch 31.2019 

912 
25 1 

60 
216 
129 
.J54 
253 
406 
370 
.J27 
156 
4~ 

42 
59 
13 
5 

4.J 
179 

19 
194 

21 
93 

20~ 

4,55 1 

Yea r culled 
1\l n rch 3 1,2019 

3 

0 
5 

Year cud cd 
1\larch 3 112019 

93 
93 

93 



1'1 1 :-IDL'~)f"ni ES U ,\IITED 

NOTES TO FIN.\N\1,\ L STXfEt\I ENTS FOR 'Jt tE \' Fc\ tl F '\ DED t\1.\llf' II J I , 202ll 

(All :ttnount~ i n ~ Million . un less otherwise Wtlc<l) 

25 I>EI'IU.CJ \ 110'\ \'\D \ .\101!1 fZ.\ 1'10,\ 1>.\ 1'1-: \SES 

Depr~ciation of Properly, Plant and Equtpmcnt (Refer Note -1) 
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 5) 

26 Fl \' \ '\CF ( 0!)T 

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amonised cost 
Less: transferred to CWII' 
Interest and finance charges on lease liabil ity 
Other borrowing costs 

27 IM ' O\ IE T.IX E.\: PIO:'IS E 

a) In co me lax expense recognized in Profit and Loss 

Currer1t tax expense 
Current tax on profits for the year 
Adjustment of current tax for prior year periods 
Total Curreut fax expense 

Deferred tax expense 
(Occr~ase) / Increase in De ferred wx liability 
Decrease I (Increase) in Deferred tax assets 
Net Deferred tax expense 

Total In co me tax cxpcuse 

TOTAL 

f OTAL 

b) Deferred tax related to items rccoguisccl in Other co mprehensive iucomc during the yc:11· 

Remeasurcment of defined benefit plans 
Effective portion on cash now hedges 

lucomc tax chnrged to Othe r ('Omprchcusive in co me 

c) Rccon ci liat iou of tax expense nud the accounting pro fit mult iplied hy ludia 's tax rntc 

Accounting profit before tax 
Tax at India's statutOty income tax rate @ 3-1.944% (ivlarch 31. 2019: 3-1.9-14%) 
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 
Adjustment in respect of interest under 234i\/13/C of Income Tax Act 
Effect of concessions (expenditure on research and d~vclopment) 

Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (operations in tax free zone) 
Effect of .:hangc in tax rate 
Encct of amounts which arc not deductible in calculating taxabk income 

In come Tax Expense 

Year en ded 
i\Ia rch 3 f , 2020 

1,31 1 
21 

1,332 

Year ended 
March 31 ,2020 

15 1 
(19) 
46 

2 

180 

Year ended 
~ larch 3 1. 2020 

1,235 
13 

1,2-19 

339 
(67) 
272 

1,52 1 

Year ended 
t\l ar ch 3 1, 2020 

(8) 
(29-1) 

(302) 

\ ' car ended 
March 3 1, 2020 

5.944 
2,077 

13 

(156) 
(426) 

13 

1,52 1 

\'car end ed 
,\ (a rch 3 1,201 9 

906 
20 

926 

\'car end ed 
,\l arch 3 1,2019 

56 

3 
59 

Year ended 
Marc h 3 1,20 19 

I. IR5 
(16) 

1,169 

59 
41 

100 

1,269 

\'car ended 
1\ larch 3 1, 2019 

( I) 
-12 

4 1 

Year ended 
March 3 1.2019 

5,3-16 
1,868 

(16) 

( 121) 
(486) 

8 
16 

1,269 



I' I 1,\'UUS'I nn:s Llo\111 ED 

NOTES ' I 0 Fl.\' 1;\ CI,\ I. S'l ATE\IEo\TS FO n ' I ll E H :,\ ll ENIJEU ~IAnC II 3 I , 21J2U 

(A ll :11nuun1s in ~ Million, unh:ss uthcrwis ~· st:\tcd) 

lll HESK\RC..II & D l~ \ EI.OP:I IC\T EXI'I·:\!'ES 

Det:1ils or Expenditure on llesca rch & Drvclopmcnt Faci li ties/ dil·isiou or the Com pan) rccoguisctl hy Dcpa rlmcnt of Scien tific & Industr ia l Rescflrch 
iu clntliu g new facility for which a pp licatiou has bccu mll tiC duriug the Y, Ca r. 

:1) Revenue Expcutlil nrc 

Other lucome 

Employee !3cueli l Expenses 
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 
Conlrlbmions to Provident & orher funds 
Employee Wdrare t.~pcnses 

Haw & Packing i\ latcrinls Consumed 
O ther bpcnses 
Laboratory & tesling Material 
Power, Fuel & Water 
Consumption or stor~s & spares 
Testing & analysis 
Tra,·cll ing & conveyance 
Rates and ta~es 
Printing & Stationery 
Bank Charg~s 
Legal & prof~ssional fees 
M iscellancous E~pcnses 

Dctlrcciat ion 
Depreciation 

Tota l Expend iture 

b) CatJital Expend iture 

Dcscriplion 

Buildings 
Equipmems & Others 

29 E,\ HN I,\G PEil SII.\RF 

a) Net Profit for 11asic & Diluted EPS 

b) Number of Equity Shares atlhe beginning ol'lhc year 
Add: Issue of Shares under ESOP 
Total Number of' Shares outstanding at the end of the Period 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

T OTAL 

Weighted Average number of Equ ily Shares outstanding during the period - 13asic 
Adtl: Weighted i\ veragc number or Equity Shares arising out of grant or Employee Stock option 
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares oulstanding during I he year - Diluted 

Enrni ng Per S ha re- Ras ic (~) 
Earn ing rcr sha re- Di lu ted (~) 

Face value per sha re (Z) 

Year end ed \'ca r cudetl 
!\ la rch 3 1,2020 Ma rch 3 1, 201 9 

() 0 
0 0 

374 290 
26 20 
8 7 

40S 3 17 
115 109 

7 1 58 
5 1 40 
-17 65 
26 13 
2 1 17 

0 0 
I 0 
0 0 

31 33 
41 36 

289 262 

108 100 
920 788 

920 788 

\'ca r ended Period enclcd 
J\l arch 3 I, 2020 Feb ruary 29,2020 

55 0 
174 50 
229 50 

Year ended Year ended 
1\lnrch 3 I , 2020 J\larch 31 ,20 19 

4,423 4.077 

13,80.30,651 13,79,07,318 
77,342 I ,23,333 

13,8 1,07,993 13,80,30,651 
13,80,5-1,383 13,79,47,190 

27.844 91 ,382 
13,110,82,227 13,80,38,572 

32.04 29.56 
32.02 29.54 

1.00 1.00 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2020 
(All amounts i n~ million, unless otherwise st ated) 

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, t he assets of which are held (w here 

fund ed) in separately administered funds . For defined contribut ion schemes t he amount charged to the 

statements of profit or loss is the total of co ntribut ions payable in the year. 

Provident' Fund 

In accordance w ith the Employees' Provident Fund and Misce llaneous Provisions Act, 1952 {EPF and MP Act), 

employees are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. Employers and employees both contribute 

@12% o f wages in contribution accounts. Further, the employers also contribute towards administration of the 

benefits under the EPF and MP Act . All employees have an option to make additiona l voluntary contributions as 

permissible under the Act. These contributions are made to t he fund administe red and managed by the Employee 

Providen t Fund organization. The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by the Employee 

Provident Fund Organi za tion (EPFO) beyond its monthly cont ributio ns which are charged to the statements of 

profit or loss in the period they are incurred . The benefits are paid to employees on their ret irement or 

resignation from the EPFO. Also, refer note 33. 

Gratuity Plan 

In accordance wit h the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, PI Industries Limited has established a defined benefit 

plan {the "Gratuity Plan" ). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to t he employees at the time of 

retirement or resignat ion (after 5 years of continued services of employment), be ing an amount based on the 

respect ive employee's last drawn sa la ry and the number of years of employment with the Company. Based on 

actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in full fo r the benefit obligation over and 

above the funds held in the Gratuity Plan. Remeasurements as a resu lt of experience adjustments and changes in 

actuarial assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Long term compensated absences 

The liabi lities for compensated absence namely earned and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly 

within 12 months after the end of the period in which t he employees render the related service. They are 

therefore measured as the present va lue of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided 

by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit cred it method . Remeasurements as a 

result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit and loss. 



PIII\JDUSTRIES LIMITED 
1\Jotes t o Financial Statements for t he year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts in ~ million, unless otherw ise stated) 

a) Defined Contribution Plans: -

The Company has recognised an expense of~ 111 (Previous Year~ 95) towards the defined contribution plan. 

b) Defined benefits plans- as per actuaria l valuation 

Year ended Year ended March 31, 
March 31, 2020 2019 

Gratu ity Gratuity 
Funded Funded 

Change in present value of ob ligation during the year 
-

Present value of obl igation at the beginning of the year 259 223 

Tota l amount included in profit and loss: * 
-Current Service Cost 42 32 
- Interest Cost 20 17 
- Past Service Cost - -

Total amount recognised in profit or 62 49 
loss 

Tota l amount inc luded in OCI: 
Remeasurement related to gratuity: 
Actuariallosses/(gains) arising from: 
- Demographic Assumption 0 0 
- Financial assumption 23 1 
- Experience Judgement 2 2 

Others 
Benefits Paid (20) (16) 

Present Value of obligation as at year-end 326 259 
-

* Includes expenses reclassified to capital work in progress~ 6 (March 31, 2019 ~ 4) 

II Change in Fair Va lue of Plan Assets during the year 

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 

Included in profit and loss: 
Expected return on plan assets 

Included in OCI: 
Actuari al Ga in/(Loss) on plan assets 

Others: 
Employer's contribution 
Benefits paid 
Claim received during the year from fund manager 
Pending claim with fund manager 

Plan assets at the end of the year 

Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

81 

6 

3 

148 
(17) 

(2) 

219 

Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

88 

7 

2 

(3) 
(13) 

81 



PI INDUSTRI ES LIMITED 
Notes to Financia l Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts in~ million, unless otherwise stated) 

The plan assets are managed by the Gratuity Trust formed by the Company. The management of 100% of the 

funds is entrusted w ith the Life Insurance Corporation of India, HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Ltd . and 

l<otak Mahindra Old M utual Life Insuran ce Ltd. 

Il l Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Ob ligation and Fair Value of Plan Asset s 

IV 

1 
2 

v 
1 
2 

3 
4 

1 
2 
3 

Present Value of obligation as at year-end 
Fair va lue of plan asse ts at yearend 
Funded status {Surpl us/(Deficit)} 

Net Asset/( Liabili ty) 

Bifurcation of Present va lue of ob ligation at the end of t he year 

Current Li ability 
Non-Current Liabil ity 

Actuarial Assumpt ions 
Discount Rate 
Expected rate of return on plan assets 
Mortality Table 
Sa lary Esca lation 

Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

Gratuity 
Funded 

326 
219 

(107) 
(107) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2020 

Gratuity 
Funded 

-

107 

6.79% 
7.50% 

IALM (2012-14) 
7.00% 

Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Gratuity 
Funded 

259 
81 

(178) 

(178) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2019 

Gratuity 
Funded 

-

178 

7.65% 
7.50% 

IALM (2006-08) 
7.00% 

VI The expect ed contribution for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year w ill be ~ 58 (March 31, 2019: ~53) . 

VII Sensitivity Ana lysis 

Gratu ity Year ended March Year ended March 
31,2020 31,2019 
Increase Increase 

Discount rate (0.50 % movement) (14) (11) 
Future salary growth (0.50 % movement) 15 12 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amounts i n~ mil lion, unless otherwise stated) 

VIII Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Within the next 12 months 
Between 2-5 years 
Beyond 5 years 

IX Description of Risk Exposures: 

Year ended March 31, Year ended March 
2020 31,2019 

Gratuity Gratu ity 
Funded Funded 

18 1ll 
60 41 

248 204 

Valuations are based on certain assumpt ions, which are dynamic in nature and va ry over time. As such company 

is exposed to various risks as fo llow -

A) Sa lary Increases- Actual sa lary increases will increase the Plan's liab ility. Increase in sa lary increase rate 

assumption in future valuations wi ll also increase the liabil ity. 

B) Investment Risk - If Plan is fu nded then the mismatch between assets and liabil ities and actual return on assets 

being lower than the discount rate assumed at the last va luation date can im pact the liabili ty. 

C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuat ions can increase the plan's l iability. 

D) Mortality & disability- Actua l deaths & disabili ty cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the va luation 

can impact the liabil ities. 

E) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed w ithdrawals and change of 

withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's l iabil ity. 

C) Long term compensated absences 

The provision for long term compensated absences covers the Company's l iability for earned and sick leave, the 

amount of provision recognised is~ 152 (March 31, 2018 ~ 119). 

31 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 

Employee Stock Option Plan 

The Company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The releva nt det ails of the scheme are as 

follows: 

In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the PI I ESOP 2010 Scheme in order to reward the employees 

for their past association and performance as well as to motivate them to contribute to the growth and 

profitabi lity of the Company (includ ing subsid iary companies) with an intent to attract and retain tal ent in the 

organization . The aforesaid scheme was duly approved by shareholders in its EGM held on January 21, 2011 and is 

administered t hrough independent t rust. The Compensation Committee of the Board has granted following 

options under Pll ESOP 2010 Scheme to certain category of employees as per criteria laid down by Compensation 

Committee of the Board. 

l<ey terms of the scheme 

Date of Shareholder's Approval 

Total Number of Options approved 

21-Jan-11 

62,62,090 
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Vesting Requirements 

The Pricing Formula 

Maximum term of Opt ions granted (years) 

Method of Settlement 

Source of shares 

Variat ion in t erms of ESOP 

Vesting schedule 

Exercisa ble ·period 

Vest ing condition 

Options shall vest after a lock in period of one year from the date 

of grant. Option shall vest in four years as per the Company's 

ESOP plan. (Refer vesting schedu le be low) 

10% discoun t to market price on National Stock Exchange a day 

prior to date of grant 

10 years 

Shares 

Primary-Fresh equi ty allotment by Company to the Trust 

Ni l 

Under the plan, part icipants are granted options w hich vests at 

15%, 25%, 30%, 30% respective ly each year over a period of 4 

years or as defined in Grant letter. 

Once vested, the options remain excisable for a peri od of six 

yea rs 

Vesting shall be computed through performance eva luation 

method based on conditions pre-communicated to employees. 

I. Option Movement during the year ended March 2019 

Particu lars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
No. of Opt ions Wt. avg exercise No. of Options Wt. avg exercise 

Price (i n ~) Price (in ~) 

No. of Options Outstanding at the 4,39,351 592.87 6,87,924 492.55 
beginning of the year 
Options Granted during the year - NA - NA 
Options Forfeited I Surrendered 72,488 711.90 84,882 581.35 
during the yea r 
Tota l number of shares arising as 1,59,685 499.27 1,63,691 177.59 
a resu lt of exercise of options 
Money realised by exercise of 80 NA 29 NA 
options(~ Mn) 
Number of options Outstanding 2,07,178 623.36 4,39,351 592.87 
at the end of the year 
Number of Options exercisable at 1,31,036 574.51 2,31,200 499.46 
the end of the year 

11. Weighted Average remaining contractual life 

March 31, 2020 M arch 31, 2019 

Range of E><ercise Price No. of Options Weighted No. of Options Weighted 
Outstanding average Outstanding average 

contractual l ife contractual life 
(years) (years) 

25 to 75 - NA - NA 
75 to 150 24,349 3.16 54,716 4.11 
150 t o 450 5,254 4.47 45,958 5.34 
450 to 750 177,575 eCh• ler~ 338,677 5.55 

~0~\.I'IN I ~C-5~~ ~ rt \. ~· ' \~ 
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Ill . Weighted average Fair Va lue of Options granted during the year 

M arch 31, 2020 
Exercise price is less than market price ( in~) * NA 

* No opt ions granted during t he year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. 

IVIarch 31, 2019 

NA 

IV. The weighted average ma rket share price of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2020 is ~1327 

(March31,2019 i s~ 840) 

V. Method and Assumptions used t o estimate the fair value of options granted during the year ended: 

The fa ir va lue has been ca lcu lated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model 

The Assumptions used in the model are as follows: 

M arch 31, 2020 

Variab les Weighted Average * 
1. Risk Free Interest Rate NA 
2. Expected Life (in yea rs) NA 
3. Expected Volatility NA 
4. Dividend Yie ld NA 
5. Exercise Price (in ~) NA 
6. Price of the underlying share in market at the ti me of NA 
the option grant. ( in ~) 

*No options granted during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. 

VI. Particu lars 

Employee Option plan expense 
To ta l liabili ty at t he end of the period 

March 31, 2020 

(4) 

42 

March 31, 2019 
Weighted Average 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 

March 31, 2019 

13 
73 
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32 CAPITAL & OTHER COMMITMENT 

a. Estimated Amount of Contract s rema ining to be executed on capita l account 
and not provided for {Ne t of advances~ 298 (March 31, 2019: ~ 385 )} 

b. Export Commitment 

c. Leases 

Operat ing lease commitments- As lessee 

M arch 31, 2020 
361 

March 31, 2019 
1,461 

The Company leases various off ices, warehouses, godown, IT equipment and vehicles. Renta l contracts are 

typically made for fixed periods of 6 months to 9 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and 

renewal r ights. From Apri l 1, 2019, the company has recognised Right of Use Assets for these leases except for 

short term and low value leases, see note 23 and Note 41 for further information 

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancel lable short term operating leases for each of the 

fo llowing periods: 

M arch 31, 2020 M arch 31, 
2019 

Payable within one year 20 156 
-Late r than one year and not later than five yea rs 26 172 
-Later than five years - 0 

-Lease payments recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (R efer note 80 260 

23) 

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITI ES 

M arch 31, 2020 M arch 31, 2019 

a. Claims aga inst the company not acknowledged as debt; * 

(refer note (i) below) 

- Sa les Tax including Goods and Service Ta x 62 48 

- Excise Duty 16 21 

-Income Ta x 78 78 

- ESI 1 1 
-O ther matters, including claims relating to customers, labour and 19 35 
third parties etc. 

b Guarantees excluding financi al guarantees; 

- Performa nce bank guarantees 440 259 

c. Other money for which the Company is contingently liable 

- Letter of Credit 1,393 1,427 

Notes: 

(i) Represents amounts as stated in Demand Order excluding interest and penalty 

* Pending resolut ion of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to es timate the timings 

of the cash outflows, if any, in. respect of the above as it is determi11able on ly on receipt of the judgements/ 

decisions pending with va rious forums/ au thorit ies. 
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The Company has reviewed al l its pending li tigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where 

provisions are required and disclosed as contingent l iabilities where applicable, in its f inancial statements. The 

Company does not expect the outcome of these proceed ings to have a material ly adverse effect on its f inancial 

position. 

"In Company's assessment the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda 

Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regiona l Provident Fund Commiss ioner (II) West Benga l" and the related ci rcular 

(Circu lar No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 and circular No. C-

1/ 1(33)2019/Vivekanand Vidyamandir/717 dated August 28, 2019 issued by the Employees' Provident Fund 

Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certa in allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the 

relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' 

Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and computa tion of liability to be done as per provision of 

Para 2(f) of EPF Scheme, 1952, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a significant impact and accordi ngly, no 

provision has been made in these Financial Statements". 

34 OPERATING SEGMENT 

An operating ·segment is def ined as a component of t he entity that represents business activities from which it 

earns revenues and incu rs expenses and for which discrete financia l information is available. The operating 

segments are based on the Company's internal reporting structu re and the manner in w hich operating results are 

reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). 

The Company has eva luated the applicability of segment reporting and has concluded that since t he Company is 

operating in the fie ld of Agro Chemicals both in the domestic and export markets and the CODM reviews the 

overal l performance of the agro chemica ls business, accord ingly the Company has one reportable business 

segment viz. Agro Chemicals . 

I. Revenue: 

A. Information about product revenues: 

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro Chemica ls. The amount of its reve nue 

from external customers broken down by products is shown in the table below: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Active Ingredients and Intermedia tes 25,517 19,205 

Formulations 7,324 9,030 

Others 227 174 

TOTAL 33,068 28,409 
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B. Geographical Areas 

The Compa ny is domici led in India. The amount of its revenue from externa l customers broken down by loca tion 

of the customers is shown in the table below (also refer note 38): 

IVIarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

India 8,678 9,574 
Asia (other th an India) 8,522 3,893 

North America 11,911 11,012 
Europe 2,583 2,802 
Rest of the World 1,374 1,128 
TOTAL 33,068 28A09 

II. The total of Non-current asse ts (other t han financial instruments and deferred tax assets), broken down by 

location of the asset s, is shown in the table be low: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

India 19,725 14,118 
Asia (other than India) 1 1 
Europe 5 2 
TOTAL 19,731 14,121 

35 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

Related party disclosure, as required by Indian Accounting Standard-24, is as below: 

a) Nature of Related Party relationship 

I - Subsidiaries, Associates and Controlled Trust: 

(a) PILL Finance and Investment Limited 

(b) PI Life Science Research Limited 

(c) lsagro (Asia) Agrochemicals Private Ltd 

(d)Jivagro Limited 

(e) PI Japan Co. Lim ited 

(f) So linnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 

(g) PI Kumiai Private Limi ted 

(h) Pll ESOP Trust 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary (w.e.f. end of December 27, 2019) 

Subsidiary (Incorporated on December 12, 2019) 

Foreign Subs idiary 

Associate 

Joint Venture 

Controll ed Trust 

II - l<ey Management Personnel (I<MP) & the ir relatives w ith whom transactions have taken place: 

(a) l<ey Management Personnel 

Mr. Mayank Singhal 

Mr. Rajnish Sarna 

Dr. Raman Ramachandran 

Vice Cha irman and Managing Director 

Whole-Time Director 

Managing Director & CEO (W.e.f July 1, 2019) 
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Mr. Narayan 1<. Seshadri Non-executive Director (Chairman) 

Mr. Pravin 1<. Laheri Non-executive Director 

Ms. Ramni Nirula Non-executive Directo r 

Mr. Ravi Narain Non-executive Director (Until M ay 1, 2019) 

Mr. Arvind Singha l Non-executive Director 

Dr. Tanjore Soundararajan Balganesh Non-executive Director 

(b) Relatives of l<ey M anagement Personnel 

Mr. Sa lil Singhal Father of Mr. Mayank Singha l 

M s. Madhu Singhal Mother of Mr. M ayank Singhal 

Ms. Pooja Singha l Sister of Mr. Mayank Singhal 

Ill -Entities controll ed by I<MP with whom transactions have taken place: 

(a) PI Foundation 

b) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business: 

Nature of Transaction Type of 2019-20 2018-19 

relation Transactions Ba lance Transactions Balance 

during the outstandin during the period outstanding 
period g Dr (Cr ) 

Dr (Cr) 

ComQensation to I<MP 

-Short term employee 212 159 

benefits 
-Post employment 27 19 

benefits 

-Commission and other a(ii)(a) 15 19 

benefits to non-

executive/ independent 

directors 
Total 254 (180) 197 (158) 

Other Transactions 

Purchase of serv ices a(i)(b) 38 (7) 39 

a(i)(e) 58 (11) 55 (10) 

a(ii)(b) 13 (2) 14 (4) 

Purchase of Goods a(i)(g) 239 (181) - -

Sa les of services a(i)(f) 1 0 1 -

Sa le o f Goods a(i)(g) 161 58 - -

a(i)(c) 4 5 - -

(-') p\tl11f5oo o<-, 0 
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Nature of Transaction Type 2019-20 

of Transactions Ba lance 
re latio during the outst andin 

n period g 

Dr (Cr) 

Rent and Power Cost a( i)(b) 7 

received 0 

Rent and Power Cost a( i)(f) 0 -

rece ived 
Rent and Power Cost a(i)(g) 4 -

received 
Rent and Power Cost paid a( i)(a) 0 

(0) 

Rent and Power Cost paid a(i i)(b) 2 
(0) 

Security Deposits a(i)(a) -
0 

Loans Given a(i)(h) 53 
125 

Loans Received a(i)(h) so 

Travel & Other a(ii)(a) 37 

expend iture incurred 11 

a(ii)(b) 5 -

Dividend Paid a(ii)( a) 147 -

a(ii)(b) 175 -

a(i)(h) 1 -

Recovery of Dues on a(ii)(b) 0 

accoun t of expenses 0 

incurred 
. Contribution towards CSR a(i ii) 102 -

Act ivities 

Donation a(iii) 5 -

c) Terms and conditions of transactions w ith related parties 

2018-19 

Transactions Ba lance 

during the period outstand ing 

Dr (Cr) 

6 -

0 -

0 -

0 -

2 -

- 0 

72 107 

40 -

25 6 

3 -

164 -

194 -

1 -

0 -

93 -

4 -

The sa les and purchases I services rend ered to and from related pa rties are made on terms equiva lent to those 

that prevai l in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free 
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receivab les rela ting to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2019: ~ Nil). This assessment is undertaken 

each financial year through examining the financial position of the rela ted party and the market in which the 

related party operates. 

36 DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT {MSMED} ACT, 

2006 

Principa l amount and Interest due the reon 
remain ing unpaid to any supplier as on 31st 
March 

Interest paid by the Company in t erms of 
Section 16 of the M SMED Act along w ith 
the amounts of the payment made to t he 
supplier beyond the appointed day during 
the accounting year 

Interest due and payab le for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the yea r) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act. 

Interest accrued and rema ining unpaid at 
the end of the yea r 

Further interest remain ing due and payable 
in succeed ing years, until such date when 
the interest dues as above are actua lly paid 
to t he small en terprise for the purpose of 
disa llowance as a deductible expenditure 
under Section 23 of MSM ED Act. 

37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

1 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management 

A. Financ ial instruments by category 

March 31, 2020 M arch 31, 2019 

Principal Interest Principal Interest 
Amount Amount Amount Amount 

48 -
56 -

277 1 53 1 

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -
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March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Note 
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised FVTPL 

Cost 

Financial Asset s 

Non-cu rrent Assets* 

Loans 7(c) - - 56 -

Derivative financial 7(g) - - - -
instruments 
Other financial asset 7(g) - - 30 -

Current Assets 

Investments 7(b) - - - 1,119 

Trade receivables 7(d) - - SA83 -

Cash and cash 7(e) - - 1,077 -
equivalents 
Bank balance other t han 7(f) - - 25 -

cash and cash 
equivalents 

Loans and advances 7(c) - - 157 -

Derivative financial 7(g) - - - -
inst ruments 
Other fin ancial assets 7(g) - - 185 -

TOTAL - - 7,013 1,119 

Financial Li ab ilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Borrowings 14(a) - - 3,994 -
Derivative Financial 14(d) 

258 - - -
Inst rument 
Other financial liabili t ies 14(d) - - 491 -

Current Li abilities 
Borrowings 14(b) - - 1,083 -
Trade payab les 14(c) - - 5,538 -

Derivatives 14(d) - 508 - -

Other financial liabili t ies 14(d) - - 2,206 -

TOTAL - 766 13,312 -
*Excluding Investment in subsidiaries measured at cost in accordance w ith lnd AS 27 

B. Fair value hierarchy 

FVTOCI Amortised 
Cost 

- 97 

90 -

- 28 

- -

- 6,618 

- 587 

- 244 

- 109 

120 -

- 99 

210 7,782 

- 99 

- -

- 190 

- -

- 5,141 
- -
- 2,414 

- 7,844 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fa ir va lues of the fina ncial 
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used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed 

under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undernea th t he table. 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair va lue- recurri ng fair value measurements 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Note Leve l l Leve l 2 Level 3 Leve l 1 Level 2 Leve l 3 

Financia l assets:-
Investment in mutual funds 7(b) - - - 1,119 - -

Derivative financial instrum ents 7(g) - - - - 210 -
TOTAL - - - 1,119 210 -
Financial Liabi lities: -
Derivative financial instruments 14(c) - 766 - - - -
TOTAL - 766 - - - -

Assets and liab ilit ies wh ich are measured at amortised cost for which fai r values are disclosed 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Note Levell Level 2 Level 3 Leve l 1 Leve l 2 Level 3 

Financial assets 
Security deposits 7(c) - - 51 - - 46 
Loans and advances to related 
parties (PII ESOP Trust) 7(c) - - 112 107 - -

TOTAL - - 153 - - 163 

Financial liabil it ies 
Security deposits from 

14(d) 
- - 3 - - 4 

contractors 
TOTAL - - 3 - - 4 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents, trade 

receivab les, short term loans, contract assets, current f inancia l assets, trade payables, current financia l liab il ities 

and borrowings approximate their carrying amount, largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 

Long-term debt has been co ntracted at floating ra t es of interest, wh ich are reset at short interva ls. Accordingly, 

the carrying value of such long-term debt approximates fair value. Fair value for security deposits (other than 

perpetual securi ty deposits) has been presented in the above table. Fair va lue for all other non-current assets and 

liabiliti es is equivalent to the amortised cost, interest rate on them is equivalent to the market rate of interest. 

Fair va lue hierarchy 

The table shown above ana lyses f inancial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different 

levels have been defined below: 

Level 1 -This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices . The mutua l fu nds are valued using 

closing net assets value (NAV). 

Level 2- The fa ir value of financia l instruments that are not traded in an active market is determ ined using 

valuation techniques which maxirnise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on ent ity-
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included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve l 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e . as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - If one or more of the signifi cant inputs is not based on observa ble market data, the instrument is 

included in level 3. 

There are no transfers between Ieveil, leve l 2 and level 3 during the year. 

Va luation technique used to determine fair va lue: 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

- the use of quoted market prices 

- the fair va lue of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance 

sheet date 

- the fair value of the remaining f inancial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis. 

The fa ir va lues fo r security deposits (assets & liabilit ies) were calculated based on present values of cash f lows 

and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own cred it r isk. They are classified as level 3 fair 

va lues in the fair va lue hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterpa rty credit. 

38 FINANCIAL RISI< MANAGEMENT 

Risk management framewo rk 

The Company is exposed to credit risk, li quidity risk and market ris k. The Company's board of directors has t he 

overall responsibility for the management of these risks and is supported by Management Advisory Committee that 

advises on the appropriate finan cial risk governance framework. The Company has risk management policies and 

systems in place wh ich are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and price risk along with the 

Company's activities. The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compl iance with the 

financial risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of r isk management f ra mework in 

relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

Th is note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and 

impact of hedge accounting in the finan cial statements. 

I. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counte rparty to a financia l instrument fails 

to mee t its contractual obliga tion, and arises from the operat ing activities primarily (trade receivables) and from 

its financing activities includ ing cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, derivatives and other f inancial 

instruments. The carrying amount of f inancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure and is as follows: 

Trade and other receivables and cont ract assets 

The Company's exposure to cred it risk is influenced mainly by the individual characte ristics of each customer. 

However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including 

the default r isk of the industry and country in which customers opera te . 

The Company has established a cred it po licy under which each customer is ana lyzed ind ividua lly for 

creditworthiness before the Company's credit terms are offered. Cred it r isk is managed through cred it approvals, 
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grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Credit limits are est ablished for each customer and reviewed 

periodically. Any sa les order exceeding those lim its requ ire approval from the appropriate authority. There is one 

customer having revenue of ~ 12,353 (March 31, 2019 ~ 9,551) including an amount of ~ 7,039 and '\ 5,314 

(March 31, 2019 ~ 7,053 and~ 1,578) arising f rom shipments to United St ates of America and Japan respect ively. 

The concentration of credit risk is limited in domestic market due to the fact that th e customer base is large and 

unrelated. The Company's exports are mainly carried out in countries w hich have sta ble economic conditions, 

where the concentration is re latively higher, however th e cred it risk is low as the customers have good cred it 

ratings. 

The Company computes an allowance for impairment of trade receivables based on a simplified approach, that 

represents its expect ed credit losses. The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit loss 

of trade receivables. Loss rates are based on actua l credit loss experienced over t he past 3 yea rs. These loss ra tes 

are adjusted by considering the avai lable, reasonable and support ive forward-looking informat ion like limit ed 

impacted of COVID -19 on domestic trade receiva ble engaged in exempted areas of agricu ltural activities. 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected cred it loss: 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables and Interest and Other charges recoverable from 

customer 

M arch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Opening ba lance 442 273 
Changes in loss allowance 87 169 
Closing balance 529 442 

Cash and cash equiva lents, deposits with banks, mutual funds and other financial instruments 

Credit risk from balances with banks and other financial instruments is managed by Company in accordance w ith 

its policy. Investments of surplus funds are made on ly w ith approved counterparties and within credit limits 

assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty cred it limits are reviewed by the management and may be updated 

throughout the year. Company also invest s in mutual funds based on the credit ratings, these are reviewed for 

safety, liquidity and yield on regular basis. 

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other f inancial instruments has been measured on the 12-

month expected credit loss basis and reflects the short maturities of th e exposures. The Company considers that 

its cash and cash equiva lents have low credit risk based on exte rnal cred it ratings of counterparties. 

Based on the assessment t here is no impairment in the above financial assets. 

Derivatives 

The derivatives are entered with banks and f inancial institut ion counterparties wh ich have low credit risk based 

on extern al credit rati ngs of counterparties. 
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Exposure to credit risk: 

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses recognized represents the maximum 

credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 was as fo llows: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Trade receivables 5,483 6,618 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,077 587 
Bank balances other than above 25 244 
Investments - 1,119 
Loans 213 206 
Other financia l assets 215 337 
TOTAL 7,013 9,111 

II . Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficu lty in meeting the obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to 

managing liqu idity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

they are due, under both norma l and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Company's reputat ion. Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, the Company 

maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining ava ilability under committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecast of Company's liquidity pos ition (comprising the undrawn borrowing 

facilities below) and cash and cash equiva lents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company does not 

anticipat e materia l impact on future cash flows as agricultural activities are exempted from COVID -19 related 

travel restrictions. In addition, the company's liquidity management policy invo lves projecting cash flows in major 

currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring ba lance sheet liquidity 

ratios aga inst internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

(a) Financing arrangements 

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Expiring within one year 

- Fund based (F loating rate) 3,983 1,999 

- Non fund based (Fixed rate) 551 1,164 

(b) Maturities of financia l liabilities 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts 

are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting 

agreements . 
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Contractual cash flows 

March 31, 2020 Tota l 3 months or 3-12 1-2 years 
less months 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Term Loans from Banks 4,128 108 219 1,361 
Interest Accrued but not due on 12 12 - -

Borrowings 
Interest payment on Term Loan 691 47 193 234 
Short Term Loans from Banks 1,083 1,083 - -
Trade Payab les (Due to micro and small 56 56 - -
enterprises) 
Trade Payables (Other Trade Payab les) 5,482 5,482 - -

Employee payables 640 229 411 -
Security Deposits from Dea lers 195 - - -
Security Deposits from Contractors 3 3 - -
Unclaimed Dividends 7 7 - -

Creditors for Capital Purchases 502 502 - -

Deferred Lease Liability 459 67 97 112 
Other Payable 782 421 361 -

TOTAL 14,040 8,017 1,281 1,707 

Contractual cash f lows 

March 31, 2019 Tota l 3 months 3-12 1-2 years 
or less months 

Non-derivat ive financial liabili t ies 

Term Loans from Banks 492 99 294 99 
Interest Accrued but not due on 2 2 - -

Borrowings 
Trade Payables (Due to micro and 48 48 - -

sma ll enterprises) 
Trade Payables (Other Trade Payables) 5,093 4,812 281 -

Employee payables 523 180 343 -

Security Deposits from Dealers 189 - - -

Security Deposits from Contractors 4 1 2 1 

Unclaimed Dividends 7 7 - -
Creditors for Capita l Purchases 371 371 - -

Other Payable 1,115 282 833 -
TOTAL 7,844 5,802 1,753 100 

Ill. Market risk 

2-5 More 
years than 5 

years 

2,440 -
- -

217 
- -
- -

- -
- -
- 195 
- -
- -

- -
153 30 

- -

2,810 225 

2-5 More 
years than 5 

yea rs 

- -
- -

- -

- -

- -

- 189 
- -

- -
- -
- -
- 189 
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Market r isk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest ra tes and equity 

prices - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of 

market risk management is to manage and contro l market risk exposures with in acceptable parameters wh ile 

optimizing the return. 

The Company is exposed to market risk primarily re lated to fore ign exchange rate r isk (currency r isk), interest rate 

risk and market value of its investments. Thus, the Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing 

and borrowing activities and revenue generating and opera ting activ ities in fo reign currencies. 

Foreign Currency risk 

The company is exposed to foreign exchange risk ansmg from foreign cu rrency t ransactions, primari ly w ith 

respect to the US$ and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised 

assets and liabil it ies denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency(~). The Company 

uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its cu rrency risk and are used exclusive ly for hedging purposes and not 

for trad ing and speculat ive purposes. These fo rward exchange contracts, carried at fa ir value, may have varied 

maturities depending upon the primary host contract requirement and risk management strategy of the · 

Company. The objective of the hedges is to minimize the vo lat il ity of the~ cash flows of high ly probable foreca st 

transactions. 

The Company's r isk management policy is t o hedge arou nd 50% to 100% fo r fi rst year and balance up to 70% of 

the net exposure with forward exchange contracts. The remain ing exposure is kept to an acceptable level by 

buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary t o address short te rm requ irements. Hedging 

decisions are based on rolling forex cash flow statement prepared and reviewed on a month ly basis. Such 

contracts are designated as cash f low hedges. 

The fore ign exchange forward contracts are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable future sales 

transaction ; t herefore, the hedge ratio is 1:1. The Company's hedge po li cy allows for effective hedge relationships 

to be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through 

periodic prospective assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and 

t he hedged instrument. The Company enters into hedge inst ruments w here the cr itica l terms of hedging 

instrument are aligned with terms of the hedged it em. 

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge where the cumu lative change in the value of the hedging 

instruments exceeds on an absolute basis t he cha nge in the value of the hedged i tem attributab le to the hedged 

risk. Hedge ineffectiveness may arise due to the fo llowing: 

- the crit ica l te rms of the hedging instrument and the hedged item differ (i.e . nomina l amounts, timing of t he 

forecast transact ion, interest resets change from what was originally' estimated), or 

-d ifferences arise between the credit r isk inherent within the hedged item and the hedging instrument . 
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Foreign currency risk exposure -

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilit ies as at March 31, 2020 and March 31,2019 expressed 

in Ind ian Rupees (~) are as below: 

Non derivative 

Particulars March 31, 2020 

USD EURO JPY GBP CHF AUD 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (EEFC 9 
Account) 
Trade receivables 3,826 59 15 

3,835 59 15 

Financial liabi lities 
Borrowings {Term Loan) 2,363 
Trade payables 3,188 71 1 1 

5,551 71 1 1 

March 31, 2019 

USD EURO JPY GBP CHF AUD 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (EEFC 60 

Account) 
Trade receivables 3,180 146 

3,240 146 

Financial li abil ities 
Borrowings (Term Loan) 494 

Tra de payables 1,396 18 12 0 0 0 

1,890 18 12 0 0 0 

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the yea r. 

Year-end spot rate (~) 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

USD 75.67 69.16 

EUR 82.77 77.67 

JPY {100) 69.63 62.42 

GBP 93.50 90.53 

CHF 78.29 69.43 

AUD 46.08 49.02 
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Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee at March 31 would have affected the 

measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by 

the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, interest rates, remain constant and 

ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. Impact of hedging, if any has not been cons idered here. A 5% 

increase or decrease is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and 

represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency rate. 

Profit or loss, net of tax Impact on other components of 

equity, net of tax 

Effect in ~ Strengthening Weakening Strengthen ing Weakening 

March 31, 2020 

5% movement 

USD (56) 56 - -

EUR (0) 0 - -

JPY (100) 49 (49) - -

GBP (0) 0 - -

TOTAL (7) 7 - -

Profit or loss, net of tax Impact on other components of 

equity, net of tax 

Effect in '{ Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

March 31, 2019 

1% movement 

USD 9 (9) - -

EUR 1 (1) - -

JPY (100) (2) 2 - -
GBP (O) 0 - -
TOTAL 8 (8) - -

Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term foreign currency and working capital borrowings at 

variable rates. Company's investments are primarily in fixed deposits which are short term in nature and do not 

expose it to interest rate risk. The Company regularly evaluates the interest rate hedging requirement to align 

with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, in order to ensure most cost-effective interest rate risk 

management. 
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E><posure to interest rate risk 

The interest rate profile of t he Company's interest-bearing finan cial instruments as reported to the management 

of the Company is as fo llows. 

March 31, 2020 M arch 31, 2019 

Fixed-rate instrum ents 
Financial assets 742 731 
Financial Liabilities 1740 -
Variable-rate instruments 
Financia l liabilities 3,434 492 
TOTAL 5,916 1,223 

Fa ir va lue sensitivity analysis for f ixed-rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair va lue through profit 

or loss. There fore, a change in interest rate s at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 

Cash flow sensit ivity ana lysis for variable-rate instruments 

A reasonably possible change of 50 bp in interest rates wou ld have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss 

by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, foreign currency exchange rates, 

remain constant. 

I 
Profit or loss Impact on other components of 

equity, net of tax 
SO bp increase SO bp decrease SO bp increase SO bp decrease 

M arch 31, 2020 
Variable- rate instrumen ts - -

(11.17) 11.17 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) - -

(11.17) 11.17 
March 31, 2019 
Variable-rate instruments (1.61) 1.61 - -
Cash flow sensit ivity (net) (1.61) 1.61 - -

IV. Price risk 

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investment in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet 

as fair va lue through profit and loss. Mutual fund investments are susceptible to market price ri sk, mainly arising 

from changes in the interest rates or market yields which may impact t he return and value of such investments. 

However, due to very short tenor of the underlying portfolio in the liquid schemes, these do not pose any 

significant price risk. Company reviews these mutual fund investments based on sa fety, liquidity and yield on 

regu lar basis. There were no investments in Mutual funds as at March 31, 2020. 

V. Impact of Hedging activities 



PI INDUSTRIES LIM ITED 
Notes to Financ ial Sta tements for the yea r ended March 31, 2020 
(Al l amounts in ~ million, unless otherwise stated) 

(a). Disclosure of hedge accounting on financial position 

Type of hedge and risk 

Foreign exchange forward 
contracts 

Type of hedge and risk 

Foreign exchange forward 
contracts 

* Refer Note No. 7(g) 

**Refer Note No. 14(c) 

No. of 
outstanding 
contracts 

217 

No. of 
outstanding 
contracts 

150 

Nominal 
Value 
('~ ) 

17,758 

Nominal 
Value 
(~ ) 

11,637 

M arch 31, 2020 

Carrying Maturity Hedge 
value of date ratio 
hedging 
i nstru me nt 

** 
('~ ) 

765 Apr-2020 1:1 
to Sep-
2023 

March 31, 2019 

Carrying va lue M aturit y Hedge 
of hedging dat e rat io 
instrument* 
(~) 

210 April 2019 1:1 
-Dec 2021 

(b). Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on fin ancia l performance 

March 31, 2020 
Type of hedge Change in Hedge Amount 

value of ineffectiveness reclassified 
hedging recognised in from cash 
instrument profit and loss f low 
recognised in account hedging 
other reserve t o 
comprehensive profi t and 
income (loss) 

Foreign exchange forward con tracts (779) - 62 

March 31, 2019 
Type of hedge Change in Hedge Amount 

value of inef fect iveness recl ass if ied 
hedging recognised in from cash 
instrument profi t and loss fl ow 
recognised in account hedging 
other reserve to 
comprehensive profit and 
income (loss) 

Fore ign exchange forward contracts ~I er~d - (265) 

~·"~~ ,.!' I f) 

~ ~ .. ~ J 
121 tllll"'" ....... 

<I* *& c.,, Ill~"' 

Weighted 
average st ri ke 
price/rate 

US$1: ~ 75.89 

Weighted 
average stri ke 
price/rate 

US$1: ~ 69.16 

Line item 
af fect ed in 
statement of 
profit and loss 
account 
because of t his 
re classif ication 

Revenue 

Line item 
affected in 
statement of 
profit and loss 
account 
because of t his 
reclassif icat ion 

Revenue 
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(c). Movement in t he cash flow hedge reserve 

Effective portion of Cash f low Hedges 

As at Apri l 01, 2018 
Add: Effective portion of ga ins/(losses) on cash flow hedges 
Less: Amount reclassified to profit and loss account 
Less: Deferred tax relating to above 
As at March 31, 2019 

Add: Effective portion of gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges 
Less : Amount reclassified to profit and loss account 
Less: Deferred tax relating to above 

As at March 31, 2020 

(d). Sensitivity analysis 

Amount 

49 

(145) 
(265) 

J 

42 
127 

(779} 
62 

(294) 

{420} 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at March 31 would have 

affected the measurement of fore ign forward exchange contract designated as cash flow hedges and affected 

equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 

interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. A 5% increase or 

decrease is used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 

management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency rate. 

Profit or loss, net of t ax Impact on other components of 
equ ity, net of tax 

Effect in~ Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weaken ing 

M arch 31, 2020 
5% movement 
USD - - 578 (578) 
March 31, 2019 
1% movement 
USD - - 76 {76) 

39 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's po licy is to maintain a strong cap ital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and marke t 

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The primary objective of the Company's Capital 

management is to maximise shareho lder's va lue. The Company manages its cap ital and makes adjustment to it in 

light o f the changes in economic and market cond itions. 

The Company manages capital using gearing ratio, which is tota l debt divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at 

the end of the reporting period was as follows: 

Borrowings (Non-current) 
Borrowings (Current) 
Total Debt 
Total Equity 
Debt to Equi ty ratio 

A 

As at March 31, 2020 

3,994 
1,180 
5,174 

25,911 
0.20 

As at March 31, 2019 

99 
393 
492 

22,747 
0.02 
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital of the Company during the 

current and previous year. 

Also, refer note 13 relating to details on dividend declared and distributed and note 14(a)(d) fo r deta ils of 

applicable loan covenants. 

40 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are: 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

Property, plant and equipment 
First charge 6,169 1,805 
Second charge 11,707 6,378 

Floating charge on Other Assets 16,620 16,875 

TOTAL 34,496 25,058 

41 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IND AS 116 Leases on the Company's financial statements. 

The company has adopted IN D AS 116 Leases retrospective ly from 1 April 2019 with the cumulative effect of 

initially applying the standard recognised at t he date of initial application but has not restated comparatives for 

the 2018 reporting period. The company has measured right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease 

liabi li ty, adjusted by the amounts of prepaid lease payments re lating t o lease recognised in the ba lance sheet 

immediately before the date of initial application. 

For leases previously classi fied as fin ance leases the en tity recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset 

and lease lia bil ity immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right of use asse t and the lease 

liability at t he date of initia l application. 

The measurement principles of lnd AS 116 are on ly applied after that date. 

(i ) Practical Expedient App lied : In applying lnd AS 116 for the first time, the company has used the fo llowing 

practica l 

expedients permitted by the standard : 

o Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less t han 12 months as at 1 April 

2019 as short-te rm leases 

• Excluding all lease having underlying asset having value less than INR 0.25 for lease accounting as 

low va lue assets. 

~» Excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial 

app lication, and 
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The company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of in itial 

application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the transition date the company relied on its 

assessment made applying lnd AS 17 and Interpretation for Determin ing whether an Arrangement conta ins 

a Lease. 

(ii) Measurement of lease liabil ities 

On adoption of lnd AS 116, the company recogn ised lease liabilities in re lation to leases which had 

previously been class ified as 'operating leases' under the principles of lnd AS 17 Leases. The se liabi l ities 

were measured at the present va lue of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's 

incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate 

applied to the lease liabi lities on 1 April2019 was 10% p.a. 

Particul ars Amount 

Operating lease commit ments disclosed as at 31 M arch 2019 328 

Discounted using t he lessee's incremental borrowing rat e of at the dat e of init ial 
Application 457 

Add: f inance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 March 2019 0 
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as a l iability (17) 
(Less): low-va lue leases not recognised as a liability (25) 
Add/( less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and (3) 
t ermination options 

Lease l iabi lit y recognised as at 1 April 2019 412 
Of which are: 

Current lease liabilities 119 
Non-current lease liab ilities 293 

(ii i) M easurement of Right-of -Use assets 

The associated right-of-use assets for offices, warehouses, IT equipment and vehicles assets were 

measured at the amount equal to the lease l iability, adjusted by t he amount of any prepaid or accrued 

lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the ba lance sheet as at April1, 2019. 

(iv) Amount recognised in t he ba lance sheet related to leases: 
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Particulars Ba lance as at M arch 31, Change on adoption of 

2019 IND AS 116 

Property, Plant and - 420 

equ ipment: Right of 

use assets 

Other Assets: Prepaid 8 0 

rent 

Other Financia l - 412 

liabi lities : Lease 

Liability 

Reta ined Earnings 22,609 -

Deferred Tax Asset 127 -

(v) Amount Recognized in the statement of Profit or loss re lating to leases 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, Changes due to 
2020 before adopting IND AS 116 

IND AS 116 increase/ (decrease) 

Other Expenses 5,039 (189) 

Finance Cost 135 45 

Depreciation and 
1,155 177 

amortisation expense 

Profit before tax 
5,977 33 

[(increase)/ decrease] 

(vi) The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases: 

Particu lars 

Right of Use Asset: 

Buildings 

Office Equipment 

Vehicles 

Le asehold Land 

Total 

Lease Liabiliti es 

Current 

Non-Curren t 

Tota l 

Addit ion of Right-of-use Asset during t he 2019-20 financial year was~ 184. 

r3a lance as at April 1, 
2019 

420 

8 

412 

22,609 

127 

Year ended 31st March, 

2020 as reported 

4,850 

180 

1,332 

5,944 

March 31, 2020 

215 

14 

190 
340 
759 

164 

295 
459 
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42. Consequent to the nationwide lockdow n announced on 24th March 2020, Company' s opera tions were 

disrupted at R&D facilit ies at Udaipur, m anufacturing fac ilities at Gujarat and sa les depots across the 

country. This resulted in deferm ent of Company's domestic and export revenues for the month of March 2020 to 

t he next quarter. The Company has since been able t o resume operations at its various sites from the beginning 

of April in a gradual manner and management believes that being into an essentia l commodity, there is no 

signifi cant impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the current and fu ture business cond ition of the Company, financial 

statements liquidity posit ion and cash f low and has concluded that no material adjustments are required in the 

financial statements. Management w ill continue to close ly monitor t he situation 

43. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE 

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 4, 2020 have recommended final dividend fo r the year ended 

March 31, 2020 which is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. Refer 

note 13(B) for details. 

This is t he notes to t he f inancial statement s referred to our report of even date 

For Price Waterh ouse Chartered Account ants LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Di rector 

Firm Reg. No. 012754N/N500016 

Membership Nu mber:057084 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: June 4, 2020 

~ 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director 

DIN: 00006651 

Subhash Anand 

Chief Financial Officer 

Director 

DIN: 06429468 

Naresh Kapoor 

Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of PI Industries Limited  

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Opinion 

 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PI Industries Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), controlled trust, its associate and joint venture 
entity (refer note 3(t)) to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity  and 
the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information prepared based on the relevant records. (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”). 

 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group, controlled trust, its associate and joint venture entity as at March 31, 2020 of consolidated 
total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group, controlled trust, its associate and joint venture entity 
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant 
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence 
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 17 of the 
Other Matters paragraph below, other than the unaudited financial statements as certified by 
the management and referred to in sub-paragraph 18 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

     Emphasis of Matter 

4. We draw your attention to note 45 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the 
management’s assessment of the financial impact of the events arising out of Coronavirus (Covid-
19) virus pandemic, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is 
dependent upon the circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit 

matter 

Investment made in Isagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited  -  
Allocation of purchase price and 
determination of goodwill in the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
 
(Refer to Note 44 in the Consolidated 
financial statements) 
 

 The Company acquired 100% of the 
equity shares of Isagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited from 
Isagro S.p.a., Italy on December 27, 
2019.   The  purchase  consideration of 
INR 4432 MN was arrived at based on 
an independent valuation and 
subsequent negotiations / agreement 
thereon.  For the consolidated financial 
statements, the company obtained 
independent valuation to arrive at the 
fair value of the net assets acquired / 

 
 
Our audit procedures included  the following:  
 

 Understanding the design and and testing the 
operating effectiveness of management controls 
around acquiring the aforesaid assessment of 
carrying values of the said goodwill in the 
consolidated financial statements.  
 

 Reviewing minutes of the meeting of the board of 
directors / audit committee, share purchase 
agreement, testing payments made and ensuring  
compliances with the relevant provision of the 
Companies Act 2013.  
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identified and recognised goodwill for 
the excess of the aforesaid purchase 
consideration over the identified net 
assets. 

 
The Company has reviewed the carrying 
values of the above goodwill on the 
balance sheet date and concluded on 
their appropriateness and of the same.  
 
We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter as the goodwill are 
material and the valuation based on 
which their carrying amounts were 
concluded as appropriate required 
significant management judgement, 
inputs,  assumptions and estimates. 

 

 Reading the independent valuation report and 
understanding and evaluating, the projections 
thereon and the fair valuation of net assets acquired 
thereon by testing key inputs and assumptions 
made in the valuations, projections and performing 
sensitivity analysis. 
 

 Involving auditor’s expert to review the key 
assumptions in the valuation, the basis of purchase 
price allocation, the fair valuation of the net assets 
acquired / identified, goodwill impairment model. 
 
 

 Checking the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures made in the financial statements.  

 
Based on our procedures performed above, the 
management’s assessment of carrying value of the goodwill 
was appropriate. 

 
Estimation of provision for sales 
returns and discounts and volume 
rebates on sales impacting 
revenue on sale of products 
 
(Refer note 20 to the Consolidated 
financial statements) 
 
Revenue from sale of products is 
presented net of returns, discounts and 
volume rebates in the financial 
statements.  
 
The management determines provision 
for sales returns, discounts and rebates 
on the basis of various factors such as 
the current and expected business 
environment, sales returns variability 
and expected achievement of targets 
against various ongoing schemes 
floated. 
 

We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter  in view of it having 
significant impact on the recognised 
revenue and the involvement of 
management judgment in estimating 
the amounts at which these are 
expected to be settled. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Our audit procedures included: 
 
Understanding the policies and procedures related to sales 
returns, discounts and volume rebates and evaluating the 
design and testing the operating effectiveness of related 
controls related to these estimates. 
 
Checking management’s calculations for the estimates and 
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions used by the 
management in arriving at the amount of provisions. 
 
 
Assessing the reasonableness of estimates made by the 
management in the past by comparing the provisions 
recognised in the earlier financial years with their 
subsequent settlement, performing ratio analysis of 
discounts, volume rebates and sales returns as a percentage 
of sale of the current year and comparing the same with 
those in prior years. 
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Testing on a sample basis, credit notes issued and/or 
adjustments made after the balance sheet date and their 
impact if any on the reported amounts. 
 

Based on the above procedures performed, the estimates 
made by the management in respect of provision for sales 
returns and discounts and rebates on sales were considered 
to be reasonable. 

 

 

Other Information 

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.] 
 

7. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

8. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and 
the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refer paragraph 17 below), we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

9. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including  
controlled trust, its Associate and Joint venture  entity in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint venture entity are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for  
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ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
 

10. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint venture entity 
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and 
joint venture entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

11. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, controlled trust 
and of its associate and joint venture entity are responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint venture entity. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, 
controlled trust and its associate and joint venture entity to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group, controlled trust and its associate and joint venture 
entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

 
 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group, controlled trust and its associate and joint 
venture entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

14. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 

15. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

16. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Other Matters 

17. We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, and one controlled trust whose 
financial statements reflect total assets of INR 4,456 MN and net assets of INR 3,403 MN as 
at March 31, 2020, total revenue of INR 641 Mn, total comprehensive income (comprising of 
profit and other comprehensive income) of INR 153 Mn and net cash flows amounting to INR 
136 MN for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. 
The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income) of INR 0.3 MN and INR. 7.5 
MN for the year ended March 31, 2020 as considered in the consolidated financial statements, 
in respect of  one associate company and one joint venture respectively, whose financial 
statements have not been audited by us.  These financial statements have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these subsidiaries, controlled trust, joint venture and associate  company and our 
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information 
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint venture and associate, is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors.   
 

18. We did not audit  the financial statements of one subsidiary whose financial statements reflect 
total assets of INR 30 Mn and net assets of INR 22 MN as at March 31, 2020, total revenue 
of INR 58 MN, total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive 
income)  of INR 3 MN and net cash flows amounting to INR 4 MN for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. whose financial statements have 
not been audited by us.  These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished 
to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our 
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other 
Information insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on such unaudited 
financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements 
certified by the Management. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

19. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate 
company and joint venture  company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group 
company, its associate company and joint venture company incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure A. 
 

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of an associate and a joint venture entity incorporated in India and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Act is not applicable vide the reports dated May 13, 2020 and May 12, 2020 of their respective 
statutory auditors. 
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending 

litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, controlled trust, its 
associate and joint venture entity,  refer note 16 and 34 to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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ii. The Group, controlled trust, its associate and joint venture had long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020 for which there were 
no material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, controlled trust, associate company and joint venture company 
incorporated in India. 
 

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to 
the Group for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

 

20. The Holding Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act 
and for three subsidiaries based on the reports dated May 18, 2020, May 15, 2020 and May 16, 
2020 of their statutory auditors no managerial remuneration has been paid. The provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies. Accordingly, 
reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the one subsidiary, controlled trust, 
its associate and joint venture vide the reports dated May 22, 2020, May 13, 2020 and May 12, 
2020 of their respective statutory auditors and one subsidiary incorporated outside India. 

 
 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP  
Firm Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 
 
 
 
 
 
Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number 057084 
 
UDIN:20057084AAAABS4955 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: June 4, 2020 
 

Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 
Membership Number 057084 

UDIN:20057084AAAABS4955 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 
 
1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 

ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of PI Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, 
its associate companies and jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of 
that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to an associate and a 
joint controlled entity  incorporated in India namely Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited and PI Kumiai 
Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 and controlled trust. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 
 
2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, to whom reporting 

under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and 
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
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4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
 
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained bythe other  auditors 

in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements. 

 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
 
6.  A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

 
7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 
 
8.  In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, 

have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. (Refer paragraph 4 on emphasis of matter of main audit report) 

 
Other Matter 
 
9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to four subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the 
auditors of such companies incorporated in India. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

 
 
 

 
 
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

 
 

 
Sougata Mukherjee 

Place: Gurugram  Partner 
Date : June 04, 2020                  Membership Number: 057084 
 
 
 
 
 

Sougata Mukherjee 
Partner 

Date : June 04, 2020                  Membership Number: 057084 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

.INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of PI Industries Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PI Indust ries Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), controlled trust, its associate and joint venture 
entity (refer note 3(t)) to the attached consolidated financial statements), which comprise the 
consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consol idated statement of changes in equity and 
the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanat01y 
information prepared based on the relevant records. (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated 
financial statements"). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid consolidated fi nancial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 'vvith 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the 
Group, controlled trust, its associate and joint venture cnti ly as at March 31, 2020 of consolidated 
total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), consolidated 
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of tbe Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are fwther descdbed in the 

!'rice Waterhouse Chol'lered Accountants !.1,1', Building No. 8, 7th 8r 8th FluOI', Towe1· - B, DT.F Cyber Cil 
Gw•gao11 - 122 002 
'1': +91 (124) 4620000,3060000, F: +91 (124) 4620620 

Roglst•r•d omco ond Head ol!ice: Suchota Bhowon. 11A Vishnu Dlgombil! Morg New Ddhi 110 002 

Pr1co Watorhousu (a Part>lorahlp Fl>m) coovcr!cd Into Prlco WBtert1ousu CI>Ortoted Accountant< LLP (a limllcd Llab My ParlnOI611•P wllh LLP ldontoty no. LLPI 
wllh ell eel I rom July 25, 2014, Post lis conversion lo Prlco Waterl•ouse Chartered Ae<:ounta11ls LLP, IIs ICAI reglslr•llon number Is 012754NlN500016 (I CAl " 
numbP.r before conversion was 0 12754N) 



JNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To the Members of PI Industries Limi ted 
Reporl o n the Consolidated Financial Stalemenls 

Page 2 of9 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statem ents section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group, controlled t rust, its associate and joint venture entity 
in accordance with t he ethical requirements that are relevant t o our audit of the consolidated 
fi nancial s tatements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAJ and the relevant 
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that lhe audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence 
obtained by the other aud itors in terms of their repotts referred to in sub-paragraph 17 ofthe 
Other Matters paragraph below, other than the unaudited fin ancial statements as certified by 
the management and referred to in sub-paragraph 18 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to p rovide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

4 · We draw you r attention to note 45 of the consolidated financial statements, which describes the 
management's assessment of the financial impact of the events arising out of Coronavirus (Covicl-
19) virus pandem ic, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is 
dependent upon the circumstances as they evolve . Our opinion is not modified in respect of th is 
matter. 

Key Audit M atters 

s. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profession al j udgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate o'pinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter 

InvesiJnent made in Isagro (Asia) 
Ab'l·ochcmicals Private Limited -
Allocation of purchase price and 
determination of goodwill in the 
Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

(Refer to Note 44 in the Consolidated 
financial statements) 

The Company acqui red 100% of the 
equity shares of Isagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals Private Limited from 
Isagro S.p.a., Italy on December 27, 
2019. The p urchase cons ideration of 
INR 443 2 MN was arrived at based on 
an independent valuation and 
s ubsequent negotiations I agreement 
thereon. For the consolidated financial 
s tatements, the company obtained 
independent valuation to arrive at the 
fair value of the nel assets acquired I 

How our audit addressed the key audit 

tnatter 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

Understanding the design and and testing the 
operating effectiveness of management controls 
around acquiring the aforesaid assessment of 
carrying values of the said goodwill in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

o Reviewi ng minutes of the meeting of the board of 
directors I audit committee, share purchase 
agreement, testing payments made and ensuring 
compliances with the relevant provision of the 
Companies Act 2013. 
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identified and recognised goodwil l for 
the excess of the aforesaid purchase 
consideration over the identified net 
assets. 

The Company has reviewed the carrying 
values of the above goodwill on the 
balance sheet date and concluded on 
their appropriateness and oftbe same. 

We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter as the good"vill are 
material and the valuation based on 
which their carrying amounts were 
concluded as appropriate required 
significant management judgement, 
inputs, assumptions and estimates. 

Estimation of provision for s ales 
returns and discounts and volun1c 
rebat es on sales impacting 
revenue on sale of products 

(Refer note 20 lo the Consolidated 
financial statements) 

Revenue from sale of products is 
presented net of returns, discounts and 
volume rebates in the financial 
statements. 

The management determines pro\rision 
for sales returns, discounts and rebates 
on the basis of various factors such as 
the current and expected business 
envimnment, sales returns variability 
and expected achievement of targets 
against various ongoing schemes 
floated. 

We have considered this to be a key 
audit matter in view of it having 
signi ficant impact on the recognised 
revenue and th e involvement of 
management judgment in estimati ng 
the amounts at which these are 
expected to be settled. 

Reading tbe independent valuation report and 
understanding and evaluating, the projections 
thereon and the fair valuation of net assets acquired 
thereon by testing key inputs and assumptions 
made in the valuations, proj ections and performing 
sensitivity analysis. 

• Involving auditor's expert to review the key 
assumptions in the valuation, the basis of purchase 
price allocation, the fair valuation of the net assets 
acqui red I identified, goodwill impairment model. 

• Checking the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
disclosures made in the financial statements. 

Based on our procedures performed above, the 
management's assessment of carrying value of the goodwill 
was a ro riate. 

Our audit procedures included: 

Understanding the policies and procedures related to sales 
returns, discounts and volu me rebates and evaluating the 
design and testing the operating effectiveness of related 
controls related to these estimates. 

Checking management's calculations for the estimates and 
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions used by the 
management in arriving at the amount of provisions. 

Assessing the reasonableness of estimates made by the 
management in the past by comparing the provis ions 
recognised in the earlier financial years with their 
subsequent settlement, performing ratio analysis of 
discounts, volume rebates and sales retur ns as a percentage 
of sale of the current year and comparing the same with 
those in prior years. 
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Other Informa tion 

Testing on a sample basis, credi t notes issued and/ or 
adjustments made after the balance s heet d ate and the ir 
impact if any on the reported amounts. 

Based on the above procedures performed, the estimates 
made by the management in respect of provision for sales 
returns and discou nts and rebates on sales were considered 
to be reasonable. 

6. The Ilolding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements and our audi tor's report thereon.] 

7· Our opinion on the consolidated financial s tatements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assura nce conclus ion thereon. 

8. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financia l s tatements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is mate rially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be mate rially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and 
the reports of the other auditors as furnished to us (Refe r paragraph 17 below), we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of t his oth er information, we a re requi red to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Respons ibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial S tatements 

9. The H o lding Company's Boa rd of Directors is r espons ib le for t he p rep aration and 
presentation of these consolidated fi nancial statements in te rm of the requirements of the Act 
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial pos ition, consolidated financial 
pe1formance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group including 
controlled t rust, it s Associate and Joint venture entity in accordance with the account ing 
principles genera lly accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the compan ies included in th~ 
Group, controlled trust and of its associate and join t venture entity a re responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Grou p and for p reventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregula rities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the d esign, implementation and 
maintenance of adequat e intern a l finan c ia l controls, that were operating effectively for 
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ensu ring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

10. In prepariJ1g the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and joint venture entity 
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group, controlled trust and of its associate and 
joint venture entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting un less management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

11. The respective Board of Directors of th e compani es included in the Group, controll ed trust 
and of its associate and joint venture entity are responsible for overseeing the financ ial 
reporting process of the Group, contro lled trust and of its associate and joint venture entity. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial S tatements 

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error , 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee t hat an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decis ions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial s tatements. 

13. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional s1<epticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perfo rm audit procedu res 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

D Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has 
adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group, 
controlled trust and its associate and joint venture entity to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material unce1tainty exists, we are required to d raw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidat ed fina ncial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclus ions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group, controlled trust a nd its associate a nd joint venture 
entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, includi ng the disclosures, and whether th e consolidated fin ancia l 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financia l information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group, controlled trust and its associate and joint 
venture entity to express a n opinion on t he consolidated financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entiti es included in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

14. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Hold ing Company and such other 
entities included in the co nsolidated fin ancial s tatements of which we arc t he independent 
audi tors regarding, among other matters, the p lanned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant aud it findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

15. We also provide those charged with govem ance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relati onsh ips and other matters that may reasona bly be t hought to bear on ou r 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

16. l-rom the matters comm unicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most s ignificance in the audit of t he consolidated financial statements of the 
current period and are t herefore the key audit matters . We describe these matters in our auditor 's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine t hat a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so wou ld reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Other Matters 

17. We did not a udit t he fin ancial s tatements of four subsidiaries, and one controlled t rust whose 
financia l statements refl ect total assets of JNR 4,456 MN and net assets of INR 3 ,403 MN as 
a t March 31, 2020, total revenue of INR 641 Mn, total comprehens ive income (comprising of 
profit a nd other co mprehensive income) of INR 153 Mn a nd net cash flo ws amounting to INR 
136 MN for the year ended on that date, as cons idered in the consolidated financial statements. 
The consolidated fin an cial statements also in clu de the Group's share of total comprehens ive 
income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive incom e) of INR 0.3 MN and INR. 7.5 
MN fo r th e year ended March 31, 2020 as co nsidered in the co nsolidated financial st atements, 
i n respect of on e associate compa ny and one joint venture respectively, whose finan cial 
s tatements have not been aud ited by us. These fi nancia l st atements have been audited by other 
auditors wh ose repotts have been furnished to us by th e Man agement, a nd our opini on on the 
co nsolidated fin ancial st atements in so far as it relates to the a mou nts and disclosures included 
in res pect of these subsidiaries, controlled trust, join t venture a nd associate company and our 
repott in term s of sub-section (3) of Secti on 143 of the Act including report on other Information 
in so far as it rel ates to the aforesaid subs idi aries, joint ventu re and associate, is based solely 
on the reports of the other m1ditors. 

18. We did not audit the finan cial s tatem ents of one subsid ia ry wh ose fi nancial statements reflect 
t otal assets of INR 30 Mn and net assets of INR 22 MN as at March 31, 2020, t otal revenue 
of INR 58 MN, total comprehensive income (compris ing of profit and other comprehensive 
income) of INR 3 MN and net cash flows amou nt ing t o INR 4 MN fo r the year ended on that 
date, as cons idered in the consolidated financial s tatements. whose financial statements have 
not been a udi ted by us . Th ese financial s tatements are un audited and have been fumished 
to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consoli dated financial s tatements in so far 
as it relates to the amounts and disclos ures included in respect of this subsidiaty, and our 
report in terms of sub-section (3) of Secti on 143 of the Act including rep01t on Other 
Information insofar as it relat es to the aforesaid subsidiaty is based solely on such unaudited 
financia l statements . In our opinion and accordi ng to the information and explanations given 
to us by the Management, these financial stat ements are not material to tbe Group. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of th.e above matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements 
cettified by the Management. 
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R eport on Other Legal and Regulatory Require1nents 

19. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obta ined a ll the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by th is Report are in agreement with the 
re levant books of account and records maintained for the purpose o f p reparati o n of 
the consolidated financia l statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the afo resaid consolidated fina ncial s tat ements comp ly with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 3 1, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auclitors of its subsidia ry companies, associate 
company and joint venture company incorporated iu India, none ofthe d irectors of the Group 
company, its associate compan y and joint venture company incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to fi nancial 
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure A. 

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial cont rols with reference to financial 
statements of an associate and a joint venture entity incorporated in India and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, r eporting under clause ( i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Act is not applicable vide the reports dated May 13, 2020 and May 12, 2020 of their respective 
statutory auditors. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance wi th 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the exp lanations given to us: 

1. The consolidated fina ncial statements disclose t he impact, if any, of pendi ng 
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, controlled Lrust, its 
associate and j oint venture enti ty, refer note 16 and 34 to the consolidated financial 
statemen ts. 
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ii. The Group, controlled trust, its associate and join t venture had long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020 for which there were 
no material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, controlled trust, associate company and joint venture company 
incorporated in India. 

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to 
the Group fo r the year ended March 31, 2020. 

20. The Holding Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requis ite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act 
and for three subsiuiaries based on the reports dated May 18, 2020, May 15, 2020 and May 16, 
2020 of their statutory auditors no managerial remuneration has been paid. The provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies. Accordingly, 
reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the one subsidiary, controlled trust, 
its associate and joint ventme vide the reports dated May 22, 2020, May 13, 2020 and May 12, 
2020 of their respective stat utory auditors and one subsidiary incorporated outside India. 

For Price Waterhouse Cha1tered Accountants LLP 
Firm Registration Number: FRN012754/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 

So.:~~~if~ 
Partner 
Membership Number 057084 

UDIN:20057084AAAABS4955 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: June 4 , 2020 



Annexure A lo Independent Auditors' Report 

Referred to in paragraph 19 (f) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of PI 
Industries Limited on the consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

Page 1 of 3 

Report on the Internal Financial Contr ol s with reference to imancial statements under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of t h e Act 

1. 1n conjunction with our audit of the consolidated fin ancial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended March 31,2020, we have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of Pl Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and its subsid iary companies, 
its associate companies and jointly controll ed companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of 
that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Seetion 143 of the Act in r espect of the adequacy of 
the internal fin ancial controls with reference to financial statements is not applicable to an associate and a 
joint controlled entity incorporated in India namely Solin nos Agro Sciences Private Limited and PI Kumiai 
Private Limited, pursua nt to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13 June 2017 and cont rolled trust. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subs idiary companies, to whom reporting 
under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Acti n respect of the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, which are companies ilicorporated in I ndia, are responsib le 
fo r establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company consider ing the essential components of in ternal cont rol 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Rep01ting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Tndia (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busi ness, including adherence to the respective company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely p reparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

Auditor 's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Compa ny's internal fi nancial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit oflnternal Financial Con trols Over Financial Rep01ting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and 
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Gu idance Note require that we 
comply with e th ical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects . 
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1' 1 INI> UST RIES LIMITED 

Consolid:•tcd Jlal:wce Sheet :u a t March JJ, 2020 
(All :amounts in 't million, unless otherwise statctl ) 

l'nr ticuln r5 

ASSETS 
NonRcurrent a ssets 

Propen y, plant and equipment 

Capital work-m-progress 
Goodwill 

'\ntl'\ 

Other intangible assets 5 
lnumgible asset under deve lopment 6 
Investments accounted for using the equity method 9 

Financial asse ts 
(i) Investments 7( n) 
(i i} Loans 7(c) 

(iii ) Other fmancial assets 7(g ) 

Defencd tax assets 1 7 
Other no n-current assets I 0 

Total non-curren t assets 

Current assets 

Inventories 
Financial assets 

(i) lnvcstmc:nts 
(ii) Trade receivables 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 

(v} Loans 
(vi) Other fmancial assets 

Contract assets 

Current tax assets 
Other current assets 
Total current a ssets 

T otal assets 

EQ UITY cl< LIAUILITI ES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 

O ther equity 
T ot:1l C«luity 

Liabilities 
Non cur rent liabilities 
Fmancialliab ilities 

( i) Borrow ings 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilit ies (Net) 
T otal non cun·ent liabilities 

C urrent Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstandmg dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro cmcrpriscs and small 

enterprises 

(iii) Oth~r fmancia l liabilities 
Provisions 
Other current liabilities 

Current tax liabilities 
T otal current liabil ities 
T o1alli:1bilities 
T otal equity :wd liabil ilics 

Notes to nccounts 

7(bt 
7(d) 

7(c) 
7( 1) 

7(c) 

7(gt 
7( ht 
II 

10 

12 

13 

15 (at 
15(d ) 

16 
17 

15 (c) 

15(d) 

16 
I 8 
19 

I to·l5 

\ ~ at 

\ lan·h 3 I, 2020 

17,338 
2.37 1 

828 

409 
336 
109 

70 
6 1 
82 

411 
:!2,015 

7,989 

1,325 
6,465 
1.244 

98 

83 
313 

1.022 
146 

1,548 

20,233 

42,248 

138 
26,053 
26,19 1 

3.994 
8 32 
124 

10 2 
5,052 

1,083 

83 

5,826 

2.970 

424 

575 
44 

11,005 
16,057 

\ \Ill 

\ larch 31. 1!119 

11 ,79 1 

1,544 

66 
284 
102 

70 

41 
149 
1•11 

451 

1~.639 

5.357 

1. 11 9 
6.6 18 

614 
278 

63 
254 
520 

2,086 

16,909 

3 1,548 

138 
22,716 
22,854 

99 
190 
290 

579 

48 

5 .082 

2.41 9 
126 
435 

8,115 
8 694 

3 1,548 

T he accompanymg notes referred lO abO\'e fonned the mtcgrnl part o f the financml statement 

This is the Consolidnted Balance Sheet referred to our rCJ)Ort o f even date 

For Pl'i('e \V;utrhouse Charterrd .-\ccourllants LI.P 

Cl rarl er·ctl Acco11n1ants 

Firm Reg. No 0 12754NIN5000 16 

'''"~ Av7.,.-
Membersh•p Number 05708:.1 

Plac~ Gurugr:un 
Date June 04. 20~0 

For and on behalf oflhe Boa rd of Oi rec1 

Mayan I< 
Vice Ch 1 mn & fl. l<maging Director Director 
DIN. 0 06651 DIN. 06 129468 

Snbh:1sh Anand 

Chief Fammcial Olliccr 
Nar('sh K:qwo r· 

Cornpan> Secretary 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Statement of Consolidated Profit & Loss for the year ended March 3 1, 2020 
(A ll amounts in Z million, unless otherwise stated) 

Par ticulars Notes 

Revenue f1·om operations 
Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 
Cost of materials consumed 
Purchase of stock in trade 
Changes in inventories of linished goods, work in 
progress and stock in trade 
Employee benelit expense 
Finance cost 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expense 
Total expenses 

Share of profit and (loss) of associates & joint venture 
accounted for using the equity method 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

Profit for the yea1· 

Other comprehensive in come 
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements gains/( losses) on defined benetlt plans 
Income tax relat ing to the above item 

(ii) Items that wi ll be reclassified to profit or loss 
Effective portion of gains/( losses) on cash tlow hedges 
Exchange difference on translat ion of foreign operations 
Income lax relat ing to the above item 

Tota l comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share 
I ) Basic (in Z) 

2) Di luted (in Z) 

20 
2 1 

22 
26 
25 
23 

27 

29 

Face value per share (in Z) 

Notes to accou nts I to 45 

For the year ended 
March 3 1, 2020 

33.665 
489 

34,154 

16,877 
1,619 

(22) 

3.209 
170 

1,367 
4,804 

28,024 

8 

6,138 

( 1,259) 
(3 13) 

{1 ,572) 

4,566 

( 19) 
8 

(840) 
2 

293 
4,010 

33.08 
33.08 

1.00 

The accompanying notes ref·erred to above formed the integral part of the tlnancial statement 

This is the Consolidated Statement of Pro fi t and Loss referred to our report of even date 

For Price vVaterhouse Char tered Accountants LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 0 12754N/N5000 16 

s .... g:C!:v ~_r-
Partn cr 
Membership Number: 057084 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: Jun e 04, 2020 

Mayan! 111 ghal 
Vice Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00006651 

Subhash Anand 
Chief Financial Officer 

For the year ended 
i\lla rch 31,20 19 

28.409 
595 

29,004 

13,728 
1.274 

500 

2,647 
50 

930 
4,496 

23,625 

0 

5,379 

( I, 176) 
(I 0 J) 

(1 ,277) 

4,102 

(2) 

120 
0 

(42) 

4,179 

29.74 
29.73 

1.00 

Rajnis~ 
Director 

DIN: 06429468 

-Narcsh Kapoor 
Company Secretary 
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1'.\ HTI CL LA RS 

A. CASHl"LO\V FROM OPERATING ACTIVITlES 
Prnfit before Income Tax 

Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and amortisati on expense 
f-inance costs 
Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts & Advances 
Interest Income on Financial Assets at amortised cost 
Unwinding of discount on Security Deposits 
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 
(Gain)IL.oss on SalciRetiremem of property. plant & equipment (Net) 
(Gain)ILoss on sa le of Investments (Net) 
(Gain)IL.oss on fi nancial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (Net) 
Share of (profit)lloss of associate and joint venture 
Impact of lnd AS 11 5 adjustment taken to retained earnings 
Unrea liscd (Gain)ILoss on foreign currency transactions (Net) 
Oper·a ting Profit before Working Capital changes 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade Receivables 
(Increase) I Decrease in Current financial assets - Loans 
(Increase) I Decrease in Current Contract Assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Non-current financial assets - Loans 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other current financial assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other non-current financial assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other non-current assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in other bank balances 
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories 
Increase I (Decrease) in Current Provisions and Trade Payables 
Increase I (Decrease) in Non-current Provisions 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilities 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other non-current financial liabilities 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 
Cash generated from Ope rations before tax 
Income Taxes paid (Includes TDS) 
Net cash inflow (outflow) from Opera ting Activities 
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTTVlTIES 

Payments for purchase of property. plant & equipment including Capital 
Work in Progress, Intangible Assets and Capital Advances 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 
Considerat ion paid for acquisition ofsubsicliary, net of cash acquired 
Purchase of Equity Investment 
Investments in associates and joint venture 
Purchase and Sale of Current Investments 
Interest Received 
Dividend Received 
Net cash used in Investing Activ ities 
Net CllSh inflow (outflow) fr·om Operating and Tnvcs ting Activities 

f 

\ ell r cn rlcd 't car e n d~d 
\ larch 3 1,2020 \l :m ·h 31, 2019 

6, 138 5,379 

1,367 930 
170 50 
122 179 

( 175) ( 194) 
(3) ( 10) 
(4) 13 
(9) 13 

( 19) ( 198) 
7 89 

(8) (0) 
2 16 

188 127 
7,774 6,59-1 
1.267 ( 1,493) 

( I) ( 17) 
(502) (520) 

4 (2) 
( 177) (44) 

88 (82) 
77 1 (433) 

7 (3) 
I 10 

( 1.850) (837) 
319 1,498 

( 180) 57 
96 119 

294 7 
118 237 

8,029 5,091 
( I ,048) ( I, 183) 
6,981 3,908 

(6.743) (3,685) 
48 8 

('1,345) 
(65) 
(95) 

1,014 '127 
175 194 

0 0 
(9,851) (3,216) 
(2,870) 692 



I' \I H I Cl L. \ I ~S 

C. Cr\S II FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVIT .I F,S 
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Capital 
Premium on issue of equity shu res under ESOP scheme 
Short Term 13orrowings (Net) 
Principal elements of Def'erred lease payments 
Borrowings -Term Loan- Repayments 
Borrowings- Term Loan- Taken 
Interest paid 
Dividends paid (including Tax) 
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Financing Activities 
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating, Investing & Financing Ac tivities 
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency Cash & Cash equivalents 
Net inc rease (decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 
Opening balance of Cash & Cash equiva len ts 
Closing balance of Cash & Cash equivalents 

\ carrncl~d 

\larch 3 1,2020 

0 
80 

I ,083 
(2 15) 
(407) 

3,886 
( 179) 

(748) 
3,500 

630 
(0) 

630 
614 

1,244 

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the fo llowing (Refer Note No. 7(e)):-

i) Cash on Hand 
ii) 13alance with 13anliS: 

-In Current Accounts 
-ln Fixed Deposits 

Total 

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in !ND AS- 7. 
Figures in brackets indicate cash outflows. 

T his is the Consolidated Statement of Cash F low referred to our report of even date 

() 

600 
644 

1,244 

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Finn Reg. No. 0 12754N/N5000 16 

Place: G urugrarn 
Date: .June 04, 2020 

DIN: 0000665 l 

Subhash Anand 
Chief Financial Officer 

\ ca r cnckd 
\ larc h 3 1, 20 19 

--­Narcsh Ka poor 

0 
29 

(399) 

(50) 
(83 1) 

(1,25 1) 
(559) 

(0) 
(559) 

1,173 

614 

!50 
463 
6 14 

Coillpany Secretary 
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PI INDUSTRJI-:S LIMITED 
St:'llrmrul of 0 1angcs in Consolid:1ttd Equity for the ye:tr cnd~d ~l::trch 31 • .!020 
(All nn10uuts in t million. unless othcnvisc stated) 

n. Ettui tv share c:toit:\1 
J•,,rtitui.Jr''i 

B.li:mc~ Jtthc bc!,;inmng or the rcportin:; pcnod 
Ch;m::cs in ~.:quitv sh.:~.r.: c:~pttal durint the )Xriod 
U:tl:wce: :lt the end of the reporting period 

b. O therequitv 

P'unirului'S 

B:tl:wcc: at Aprill. 2018 

Prolit for th~: )C:tr 

Ch:mg\! 10 .:~.ccountins policy- Adjustment oflnd AS 115 
Other comprehcnsn c income 
Total ('Om prehtnsive ineornc: ror the yt::tr 

Tr:tn~:tction'i with owners in their capacity as owners: 

P1~mtum on 1SSUC ofequU} shares throush ESOP 
O"n shJr..:s h.:1d ~ ESOP Trust 
Sb::r.:s 1ssu .. -d und.:r ESOP scheme 
E-.:!)<:nsc on Emplo~cc Stock Option Scheme 
01\ id.:nds p:~.id 
U1' klcnd D1stnbut10n T~, (DDT) 
R:d:wrc :'It 1\brch 31. :!019 

Pro lit lOr the ).:Jr 
Ot h..:r compn;hcnsL\C income 
Tot:tl romprehrnsi\'e iurome for the ye:tr 

T ntnsartious with o''ncrs in thtir r:1p:u·i1y :"IS ownr•·s: 
i>rcnmun on issu..: of EqlLI IY Sh::rcs through ESOI) 
0 \\n sh:trl!s h.: ld b~ ESOP Trust 
Sh;~rcs issued under ESOP scheme 
E\J>enS\: on Emplo~c..: Stock Opt1on Sct11!nH: 
Dtndcnds pJtd 
Di\ tdc:nd Distnbu\lon Tnx {DDT) 
R:~bncr :1t ~larch 31. .20:!0 

f\ute \s :u \hti'C'h JJ. ::!0.!0 
;..lo, ufSh.u·t'i \muurll 

12 
13,1tU.30.651 138 

77.3-12 0 
13.81.07.993 138 

Nute 

l c"~'''"' 
Cupitul rtwr\t: Redt•mplion 

l'I~SCI'\C 

15 4 

13f. 
131. h 

13 c. 
12< 
13 d. 
r:; d. 

14 
14 

IS 

13 i. h 

!3 c. 
12 c. 
13 d. 
13 d 

14 
IJ 

IS 

This is the Con~olid:ued Statement of Changts in Equity referred to our rt:)lOn of e ven dat e 

For Pdcc \V:uerhoust: Ch:lrtt:red Arcount!'lnts LLP 
Chsn ercd Account:mts 

P!:1ce: Guru gram 
Date: Ju1\t OJ. 2020 

.~ .11 \1:&rch 31.2019 

'\'o. of Sh:tn·s ·\mount 

13.79.117.311': 13~ 
1.23.333 0 

13.80.30.651 138 

RcsCI"\'!!S & Sunllu:. 

Secu1'ilio 
pr~mium re>ez·vc 

1.984 

116 
(74) 

29 

!.055 

xo 
(53) 
xo 

2.162 

Share OJ)Iion 
uutSt:\ndint; 

!ICCtJIIlll 

102 

(421 
13 

73 

(.27 ) 
(41 

-ll 

Cenc:rnl 
rcse•·vc 

1.857 

1.857 

1.857 

~· ,=; J 
Subhash An:llld 

Chief Fin:mcial Officer 

Owu,.han·s 
held b) ·r,·ust 
under ESOt' 

~chcme 

(0) 

(0) 

0 

!0! 

(Ill 

0 

Otla·r Rocrws 

l~rrec-~:e rwrtion or 
Rri D.i •lcd earnin)!S r:\Sh now hcdgrs 

15.097 49 

J.I 02 

216 
_ r_ll 78 

J.317 78 

(1>~9) 
(142) 

18.583 1!7 

·t5tl(, 

..J..!.!.l (5411 

... 55S (5-l7) 

(62 1) 

11.2XJ 
22.389 (420 

for :wd on beh:tlf of the Board or Directors 

(__/ 

~/ 
N;trtsh K:apoor 

Company Secrct:u;. 

'J tHai f1th~1· l-'1\Uil~ 

F'orci~' 
Cutrt<nry 

Translation 
Rrsa.·•-.. c 

L--)r/ 
R:tjn i~shSo:~ 
Director 
OIN·M r.~ 

19.1 09 

-1.102 

216 
77 

4.395 

116 
(74 ) 

(13) 

13 
(689) 
{t ·U) 

2!.716 

4.566 
(556) 

-1.010 

80 
!53) 

53 
(4) 

(621 ) 

(1 28) 

26.053 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financia l Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

1. Corporate Information 

PI Industries Limited ("P I" or "the Company") is a public limited company domiciled in India and has 

its registe red office at Udaipur. The shares of the Company are l isted on National Stock Exchange 

and Bombay Stock Exchange. 

These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to 

collectively as "the Group") and the Group's interest in an associate and a joint venture entity. PI is a 

leading player in the agchem space having strong presence in both Domestic and Export markets. It 

has state-of-art facilities in Gujarat having integrated process development teams with in-house 

engineering capabilities. The Group maintains a strong research presence t hrough its R&D facility at 

Udaipur. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are Research and Development, Market research 

and Investment. 

2. Basis of preparation 

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the 

consolidated financial statements unless otherwise stated. 

a) Statement of compliance 

These consolidat ed fi nancial statements have been prepared in all mater.ial aspects, in 

accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting 

Standard ('lnd AS') as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rul es, 2015 notified 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant provisions of t he Act 

to the extent appli cable. 

These consolidated financial statements were au thorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 

June 4, 2020. 

b) Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost 

convention, except for the foll owing: 

-Certain financial assets and liabil it ies (including derivative instrum ents) and contingent 

considerations are measured at fair val ue; 

-Defined benefit plan assets measured at fa ir va lue; 

-Share-based payments measured at fair value. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

c) New and Amended standards adopted by the Group 

The group has app lied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their 

annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019: 

• IND AS 116, Leases (refer note (p) below) 

• Uncerta inty over Income Tax Treatments- Appendix C to lnd AS 12, Income Taxes 

The group had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjust ments following the 

adoption of IND AS 116. This is disclosed in note 43. The other amendments did not have any 

impact on the amount recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect 

current or future periods. 

d) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates ("the fun ctional 

currency"). The consolidated f inancial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee ('~'), 

wh ich is the Group's functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in t he financial 

statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per t he requ irement of 

Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. The sign '0' in these consolidated financial statements 

indicates that the amounts involved are below~ f ive lacs and the sign '-' indicates that amounts 

are nil. 

e) Current or Non current classification 

All Assets and Liabi lities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal 

operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to t he Companies Act, 2013. Based 

on the nature of services provided and time between the rendering of services and their 

realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 

months for th e purpose of cu rrent and non-current classification of assets and liabi lities. 

f) Use of judgements and estimates 

In preparing these consoli dated financial statements, management has made judgements, 

est imates and assumpt ions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 

amounts of assets, li abilities, the disclosures of contingent liabi lities and con tingent assets at the 

date of consolidated financial statements, income and expenses during the period. Actual results 

may differ f rom t hese estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIM ITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption 

judgements having t he most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated 

financial statements are: 

Measurement of defined benefit obl igations; 

Recognition of deferred tax assets & minimum alt ernative tax credit entitlement; 

Useful life and residual value of Property, plant and equ ipment and intangible assets; 

Impairment test of financial and non-financial assets including recoverabi lity of 

expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets; 

Measurement of fair value for share based payments; 

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies. 

g) The Group recognises revenue over the period of time for contracts wherein the Group's 

performance for the products does not create an asset with alternative use to the Group and the 

Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed t ill date. M anagement 

has determined that it is highly probable that there wi ll be no rescission of the contract and a 

significant reversal in the amount of revenue recognised will not occur. Accord ingly, revenue is 

recognised for these contracts based on Input method wherein -amount of revenue to be 

recognised is determined based on the actual cost incurred till date and t he estimated margin on 

the contract. 

The Group also recognises Provision for discounts and sa les returns based on th e current and 

expected operating environment, Sa les returns variabil ity, expected achievement of targets 

against various ongoing schemes floated. 

3. Signif icant Accounting Policies 

a) Property, plant and equipment 

i) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated 

depreciation and accu mulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 

import duti es and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting t rade discounts and 

rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its 

intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 

site on which it is located. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of 

materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to 

working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing t he 

item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of qua lifying f ixed ass ets, if material, are also 

included in cost to the extent th ey relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to 

use. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 

then t hey are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 

equipment. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment or major 

inspections performed, are recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable 

that the future economic benefits embodied within the part wil l flow to the Group and its 

cost can be measured reliably. The costs of all other repairs and maintenance are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit & Loss as incurred. 

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation I 
under development as at the balance sheet date. Advances pa id towards the acquisit ion of 

property, plant and equipment outstanding at each ba lance sheet date is cl assified as capital 

advances under other non-current assets. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised when no future economic benefit 

are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset or upon disposal. Any gain or loss 

on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss. 

ii) Transition t o lnd AS 

On transition to lnd AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all it s 

property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per th·e previous 

GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. 

iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their 

estimated residual values, and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Depreciation 

on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method based on the 

useful life of assets estimated by the Management which coincide with the life specified 

under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, which are as follows: 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financia l Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Buildings including factory buildings and Roads 

General Plant and Equipment 

Electrical Installations and Equipments 

Furniture and Fixtures 

Office Equipments 

Vehicles 

Supply Agreement 

Computer and Data Processing Units 

Laboratory Equipments 

3-60 years 

15 years 

10 years 

10 years 

5 years 

8 -10 years 

5 years 

3 - 6 yea rs 

10 years 

The Group has est imated the useful lives different from the lives prescribed in schedule II of 

Companies Act, 2013, in the following cases: 

- Plant and Equipment (Continuous Process Plant) 15 years 

-Special Plant and Equipment (used in manufacture of chemicals) 15 years 

Leasehold land is being amortised over the lease period and Cost of improvement on 

leasehold building is being amortised over the lease period or useful life, whichever is 

shorter. 

Based on assessment made by technical experts, the Management believes that the useful 

lives as given above best represent the period over which it expects to use these assets. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financia l year 

end and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. Depreciation on additions to or on 

disposal of assets is calculated on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which the 

property, plant and equipment is available for use (disposed of). 

b) Intangible assets 

i ) Recognit ion and measurement 

Intangible assets acquired separately 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured at cost, less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Internally generated intangible assets - Research and development 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are capitalised only if the 

expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially 

feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient 

resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditures to be 

capitalized include the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to preparing the 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

asset for its intended use. Other development expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as 

incurred. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are measured at cost, less accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent expenditures are capita lized only when they increase t he fu ture economic 

benefits embodied in the specific asset to which they relate. 

Internally generated Intangible assets whi ch are not yet available for use are subject to 

impairment t esting at each reporting date. All other intangible assets are tested for 

impai1·ment wh en there are indications that the carrying value may not be recove rab le. All 

impairment losses are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

An item of intangible asset is derecognised when no future economic benefit are expected to 

arise from the continued use of the asset or upon disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an 

item of intangible assets is recognised in profit or loss. 

ii) Transition to lnd AS 

On transition to lnd AS, Group has elected to continue with the carrying va lue of al l of its 

intangible assets recognised as at April1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use 

that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets . 

iii) Amortisation 

Amortisation is recognized in the income statement on a stra ight-line basis over t he 

estimated useful lives of intangible assets or on any other basis that reflects the pattern in 

which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity. 

Intangible assets that are not available for use are amortized from t he date they are available 

for use. 

The estimated useful lives are as fo llows: 

Software 

Product development 

6 years 

5 years 

The amortisation period and t he amort isation method for intangible assets are reviewed at 

each reporting date. 



PI INDUSTRI ES LIMITED 

Not es to Consolidat ed Financial Statements for t he year ended March 31, 2020 

c) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Group reviews t he ca rrying amounts of its non-financial assets 

(other than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on 

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped 

t ogether into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that 

are largely independent of the cash inf lows of other assets or Cash Generating Units ('CGUs'). 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair val ue 

less costs to sell. Va lue in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of t he time 

value of money and the risks specific to t he asset or CGU. 

An impairment loss is recognised if t he carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in th e statement of profit and 

loss. 

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group 

reviews at each report ing date whether there is any indicati on that t he loss has decreased or no 

longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the est imates used to 

determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversa l is made only to t he extent t hat the asset's 

carrying amount does not exceed the carryi ng amount that would have been determined, net of 

depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its 

remaining useful life. 

d) Financial instruments 

i) Init ial recognition 

The Group recognizes fi nancial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at 

fair value on initial recognition, except for t rade receivables which are initially measured at 

t ransaction price. Transact ion costs that are directly attri butable to t he acquisition or issue 

of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are 

added to the fa ir value on initia l recognit ion. 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for t he year ended March 31, 2020 

ii) Subsequent measurement 

i) Financia l assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a 

business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash 

flows and the contractua l terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. When the financial asset is derecognised or impaired, the gain or loss is 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Financial assets at fair value th rough other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of 

the f inancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principa l amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying 

amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, 

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit 

and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumu lative ga in or loss 

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss 

and recognised in other income. 

Equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. On initial recognition of an 

equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to 

present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI­

equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis. Fa ir 

value gains and losses recognised in OCI are not reclassified to profit and loss. 

iii) Financia l assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A f inancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently 

fair valued through profit or loss. 

iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 

interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 

Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short 

maturity of these instruments. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes t o Consolidated Financial Statements f or the year ended March 31, 2020 

iii) Impairment of f inancial assets 

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated wit h its 

assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt inst ruments. Except Trade receivables, 

expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month Expected Credit 

Loss (ECL), unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, 

in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. 

With regard to trade receivable, t he Group applies the simplified approach (Refer Note No. 

40 (1 )), which requi res expected lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition 

of the trade receivables. 

iv) Derecognition 

Financia l Assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to t he cash f lows from 

the f inancial asset expire or it t ransfers the rights to receive t he contractual cash f lows in a 

transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of th e fi nancial 

asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of 

t he risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Group enters into transacti ons whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance 

sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the t ransferred 

assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial Liabilities 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 

or cancelled, or expire. 

v) Reclassification of Financial Assets and Financial Li abili t ies 

The Group determines classif ication of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognit ion. 

After initia l recognition, no reclassification is made for fi nancial assets which are equity 

instruments and financial liabi lit ies. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 

reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those 

assets. If the Group reclassifies financia l assets, it appli es. the reclassification prospectively 

from the recl assification date which is the fi rst day of the immediately next reporting period 

following the change in business model. 



PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 

vi) Derivative financial instruments 

The Group is exposed to exchange ra t e risk which arises from its foreign exchange revenues. 

The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts (derivative financial instru ments), to 

hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly probable forecasted transactions and 

classifies them as cash flow hedges. 

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to init ial recognition, derivatives 

are measured at fair value, and changes therein are taken directly to profit and loss, except 

for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is record ed in the Group's hedging 

reserve as a component of equity through OCI and later reclassified to profit and loss when 

the hedge item affects profit and loss or treated as basis adj ustment if a hedged forecast 

t ransaction subsequently results in t he recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial 

liability. The ineffective porti on of such cash flow hedges is recorded in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

Derivatives are carried as fi nancial assets when the fair value is posit ive and as finan cial 

liabi lit ies when the fair value is negative. 

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk 

management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents 

the economic relationship between the hedged item and t he hedging instrum ent, including 

whether t he changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected 

to offset each other. 

The Group makes an assessment, on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments 

are expected to be "highly effect ive" in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows 

of the respective hedged items attri butable to the hedged risk. Fo r cash flow hedges to be 

"highly effective", a forecast t ransaction that is the subject of the hedge must be highly 

probable and must present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately 

affect profit or loss. 

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is 

sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The 

cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income/ (loss), 

remains t here until the forecast transaction occurs. If the forecast transaction is no longer 

expected to occur, then the balance in other comprehensive income/ (loss) is recognized 

immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 
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PI INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for t he year ended March 31, 2020 

vii) Offsetting 

Financial assets and f inancial liabi lities are offset and the net amount presented in the 

balance sheet when, and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the 

amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle 

the liability simultaneously. 

e) Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabil ity in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of 

whether that pri ce is directly observable or estimated using other valuation technique. In 

estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, t he Group takes into account the 

characteristics of t he asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 

based on the degree to which th e inputs t o t he fair value measurements are observable and the 

significance of the inputs to the fa ir va lue measurement in its entirety, which are described as 

follows: 

Level l- This includes fi nancial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2-The fair value of financial instruments that are not t raded in an active market is 

determined using valuati on techniques which maximise the use of observable market 

data and rely as littl e as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs 

required to fair value an instrum ent are observable, the inst rument is included in level 

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3-lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, t he 

instru ment is included in level 3. 

f) Inventories 

Inventories (including Stock-in-transit) of Finished Goods, Stock in Trade, Work in progress, Raw 

materials, Packing materials and Stores & Spares are stated at lower of cost and net realizable 

value. By-products are measured at estimated real isable value. However, materials and other 

items held for use in th ~ production of inventories are not written down below cost if the 

finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 
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Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs, 

and other costs incurred in bringing them t o t heir exist ing location and condition. Net rea li zabl e 

value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Cost of Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Sto res and Spares, Stock in Trade and other products 

are determined on weighted average basis and are net of Cenvat /Goods and service t ax credit. 

Cost of Work in progress and Finished Goods is determined on weighted average basis 

considering direct material cost and appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads based on 

normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods include excise duty until June 30, 2017. 

Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified as and when required, and 

where necessary, t he same are wri tten off or provision is made for such inventories. 

g) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligat ion that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable t hat an outflow of 

economic benef its wi ll be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time va lue of 

money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fu ture cash flows at a 

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

passage oftime is recognized as a finance cost. 

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of 

reimbursement, unless the possibil ity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

is remote. Contingent liabil ities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes to the consolidated 

financial statements. 

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements unless an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 

h) Revenue Recognition 

i) Sale of goods 

The Group manufactures and sells a range of products to various customers. Revenue is 

recognised over the period of time for contracts wherein the Group's performance does not 

create an asset with al ternative use to the Group and the entity has an enforceable right to 
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payment for performance completed till date. For rema ining contracts, revenue is recognised 

when the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been t ransferred to th e customer, 

recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods 

can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods to 

the degree usually associated with the ownership, and the amount of revenue can be 

measured re liably, regardl ess of when the payment is being made. 

Revenue is measured at the fa ir value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 

recognised in relation to these cont racts in excess of bi ll ing is recognised as a Contract Asset. 

Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts and returns and 

revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal 

wi ll not occur. A refund liabil ity (included in other current liabi lities) is recognized for expected 

returns from the customer. Liability (included in other financial liabilities) is recognized for 

expected volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sa les made until the end of the 

reporting period. 

Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, discounts, 

volume rebates and net of goods and service tax. 

ii) Sale of servi ces 

Revenue from sale of services is recognised over t he period of t ime as per t he terms of the 

contract with customers based on the stage of completion when the outcome of the 

t ransactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. 

iii) Export Incent ives 

Incentives on exports are recognised in books after due considerat ion of certainty of 

uti lisation/ receipt of such incentives. 

iv) Interest Income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstand ing and at 

t he effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts est imated 

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net 

carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

v) Dividends 
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Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive dividend is establ ished, 

and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

i) Employee Benef it s 

i) Short t erm employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the relat ed service is provided. A liability is 

recognised for the amount expected to be paid if t he Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligation t o pay this amount as a result of past service provided by t he 

employee and t he obligation can be estimat ed reliably. 

ii) Defined contribution plans in respect of entit ies incorporated in India 

Employees benefits in the form of the Group's contribution to Provident Fund, Pension 

scheme, Superannuation Fund and Employees State Insurance are defined contribution 

schemes. The Group recognizes contribution payable to t hese schemes as an expense, when 

an employee renders the related service. 

If the contribution payable exceeds contribution already paid, the deficit payable is 

recognised as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If 

the contribut ion al ready paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the 

reporting period, The Group recognize that excess as an asset (prepayments) to the extent 

that the prepayment wi ll lead to, for example, a reduct ion in future payments or a cash 
I 

refund. 

iii) Defined benefit plans 

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plans. The 

Group's net obl igation in respect of defined benefit plans is calcula ted by estimating the 

amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 

discounting that amount and deducting t he fair value of any plan assets . 

The Group provides for its gratuity liability based on actuarial valuation of the gratuity 

liability as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, carried out by 

an actuary. The Group contributes to the gratuity fund, which are recognized as plan assets. 

The defined benefit obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognized in the 

Balance Sheet. 

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited 

to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from 
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the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate t he present value of 

economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 

losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceil ing (if any, 

excluding int erest), are t·ecognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net 

interest expense (income) on the net defined liabi lity (assets) is computed by applying t he 

discount rat e, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability 

(asset) at the start of the financial year after taking int o account any changes as a result of 

contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses 

related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in 

benefit that rela tes to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recogn ised 

immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settl ement of a 

defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

iv) Other long-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits in the form of long term compensated absences are considered as long 

term employee benefits. The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employee 

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their 

service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present 

value. Re-measurements are recogn ised in profit or loss in th e period in which they arise. 

The liabi lity for long t erm compensated absences are provided based on actuarial valuation 

as at t he Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit Method, ca rried out by an 

actuary. In respect of entities incorporated outside India, the Group does not have any 

material employee benefit obligations. 

j) Foreign currency transactions 

Init ial recognition: 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into t he Group's functional currency at the 

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Conversion: 

Monetary assets and liabi lit ies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the 

functional currency at the exchange rate at the report ing date. Non-monetary assets and 
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liabilities that are measured at fair va lue in a foreign currency are t1·anslated into the 

functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non­

monetary assets and liabilities t hat are measured based on historical cost in a foreign 

currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange difference: 

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss, except exchange differences arising 

from the translation of the following items which a1·e recognised in OCI 

equity investments at fair va lue through OCI (FVOCI); 

a financia l liabil ity designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to 

the extent that the hedge is effective; and 

qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective 

In accordance with lnd-AS 101 'First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards', th e 

Group has continued the policy of capitalisation of exchange differences on foreign currency 

loans taken before t he transition date. Accord ingly, exchange differences arising on 

translation of long term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of 

depreciable fixed assets taken before the transition date are capitalized and depreciated 

over the remaining useful life of the asset. 

k) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are inte1·est and other costs (including exchange differences relating to 

fore ign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 

costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds . Borrowing costs directly 

attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset whi ch necessari ly take a substantial 

period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that 

asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in th e period in which they are 

incurred. 

I) Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss 

except to t he extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in Other 

Comprehensive Income 

i) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss 

for the year after taking credit of the benefits avail able under the Income Tax Act and any 
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adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and liabil it ies are offset only if, the Group: 

i) Has a lega lly enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and 

ii) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to rea lise the asset and settle the liabi lity 

simultaneously. 

ii) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding tax 

bases used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabi lities in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither account ing 

nor taxable profit or loss; and 

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint 

arrangements to the extent that the Group is able to control the tim ing of the 

reversal of the t emporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in 

the foreseeable future. 

A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profits wi ll be available against which deductible temporary differences and tax 

losses can be uti lised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 

real ised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits 

improves. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to 

the extent that it has become probable that fu ture taxable profits will be available against 

which they can be used. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 

differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date. The m easurement of deferred t ax reflects th e tax consequences that wou ld 

follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or 

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 
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For operations carried out in tax free units, deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have 

been recognised for the tax consequences of those temporary differences between the 

carrying va lues of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the 

tax holiday ends. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

i) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets aga inst current tax 

liabilities; and 

ii) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabi lit ies relate to income taxes levied by 

the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity. 

In respect of entities incorporated in India deferred tax assets include Minimum 

Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with t he tax laws, which gives rise to future 

economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered 

as an asset if there is probable evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax in 

future. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when 

the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit 

associated with the asset w ill be realised. 

m) Segment Reporting 

An operating segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities 

from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses and for which discrete financial information is 

available. The operating segments are based on the Group's internal reporting structure and the 

manner in which operating results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). 

The Management Advisory Committee of the Group has been identified as the CODM by the 

Group. Refer Note 35 for Segment disclosure. 

n) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with 

original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

o) Cash f low statement 
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Cash flow statements are prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as explained in the 

Accounting Standard on St atement of Cash Flows (l nd AS - 7). The cash flows f rom regular 

revenue generating, financing and investing activity of the Group are segregated. 

p) leases 

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, IT equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are 
typica lly made for fixed periods of 6 months to 9 years but may have extension and term ination 
options. 

Until the 2019 f inancial year, leases of office & warehouses, IT equipment and vehicles leases 

were classifi ed as either f inance leases or operating leases. From 1 April 2019, leases are 

recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased 

asset is available for use by the Group. Assets and l iabilit ies arising from a lease are initially 

measured on a present value basis. 

l ease liabi lities include the net present value of the following lease payments: 

o f ixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable 

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate as at the commencement date 

o amounts expected to be payable by t he Group under residual value guarantees 

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option, and 

o payments of penalties for termi na ting the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group 
exercising that option. 

l ease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the 
measurement of the liabi lity. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate 
cannot be readily determined, which is genera lly the case for leases in the Group, the lessee's 
incremental borrowing rate is used, being t he rate that the individual lessee would have to pay 
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to t he right-of-use asset in a 
similar economic envi ronment w it h similar terms, security and conditions. 

l ease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The f inance cost is charged to 
profit or loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on t he 
remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost co mprising the following 

c the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 

• any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received 

o any init ial direct costs, and 

o Restoration costs. 

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset 's useful life and the 
lease term on a stra ight-li ne basis. 

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and al l leases of low­
va lue assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term 
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT 
equipment and small items of office furniture. 

Till 31 Mar 2019: 

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a 

lease, based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether fu lfilment of 

the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 

conveys a right to use the asset, even ifthat right is not expli citly specified in an arrangement . 

Leases are classified as f inance leases whenever t he terms of the lease transfer substantial ly al l 

the risks and rewa rds of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classif ied as operating 

leases. 

Group as lessee under finance lease 

Assets held under finance lease are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their 

fai r value and the present value of t he minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initia l 

recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to 

similar owned assets. The corresponding liabi lity to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as 

a f inance lease obligation. 

Lease payments are apportioned between the f inance expenses and the reduction of the lease 

obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

The fina nce expenses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Group as lessee under operating lease 

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight­

line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are st ructured to increase in line with 
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expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. In 

the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are 

recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease. 

As a lessor 

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating 

lease are added to the carrying amount of this underlying asset and recognised as expense over 

the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in 

the balance sheet based on thei r nature. The group did not need to make any adjustments to 

t he account ing for assets held as lessor as a res ult of adopting the new leasing standard 

q) Share-based payment t ransact ions 

The grant date fa ir value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is 

recognised as an employee benefit expense, wi th a corresponding increase in equity. The total 

expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified 

vesting conditions are to be satisfied and is adj usted to reflect t he actual number of share 

options that vest. 

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to t he fair value of the options 

granted including any market performance conditions and the impact of any non-vesting 

conditions and excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting 

conditions. 

r) Earning per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for t he period attributable 

to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 

period . 

For the purpose of calculating diluted Earning per Share, the net profit or loss for the period 

attributable to Equity Shareholders and th e weighted average number of shares outstanding 

during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

s) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and 

no longer at t he discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the report ing period but not 

distributed at the end of the reporting period. 
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t) Basis of consolidation 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. the Group controls an entity when it is 

exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement w ith the entity and has the 

ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of 

subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which 

control commences until the date on which control ceases. 

The subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are: 

Name of the Company Country of %voting power held as 

Incorporation at March 31st, 2020 

(March 31, 2019) 

PILL Finance & Investment Limited India 100% (100%) 

PI Life Science Research Limited India 100% (100%) 

PI Japan Co. Ltd. Japan 100% (100%) 

Jivagro Ltd. India 100% (Nil) 

lsagro (Asia) Agrochem icals Pvt. Ltd. India 100% (Nil) 

Equity accounted investees 

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint 

control, over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the 

Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to 

its assets and obligations for its liabilities. 

Interests in associat es and j oint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are 

initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

the consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of profit or loss and OCI of 

equity accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 

The joint venture and associate companies considered in the consol idated financial statements 

are: 

Name of the Company 

PI l<umiai Private Limited 

Solinnos Agro Sciences 

Country of 

Incorporation 

India 

India 

%voting power held as 

at March 31st, 2020 

(March 31, 2019) 

50% (SO%) 

49% (49%) 
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Private Limited 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra -group balances and transactions} and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intra-gmup t ransactions, are eliminated. Unrealised ga ins arising from t ransactions with equity 

accounted investees are elim inated against t he investment to the extent of the Group's interest 

in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to 

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. 

Foreign operation 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations (subsidiaries, associates, jo int arrangements, 

branches) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated 

into ~~ the functional currency of the Group , at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The 

income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into ~ at the exchange ra tes at the 

dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actua l rate at 

the date of the transaction. The resulting exchange difference arising on translations are 

recognised in OCI and accumulated in other Equity, except to the extent that they are allocated 

to Non Controlling Interest. 
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:'-IOTES TO CONSOLlDA TED FINANCIAL STA TEJVI ENTS 
(All amounts in~ million, unless otherwise stated) 

4 PRO PERTY, PL.\ \IT :\i\0 EQnPi\ IENT 
Leasehold land Freehold land Leasehold Buildings Plant and machinery Furniture and Office equipments Vehicles 

improvement lixtures 

Gross can-ying amount 
As at beginning of April 01, 2018 201 7 I 2,921 8,589 133 99 
Additions !52 45 0 643 1.895 28 22 
Disposals/ Adjustments - (34) (I) (0) 
As atMarch 3 1. 2019 353 52 I 3,564 ] 0,450 160 121 
Addition relating to acquisition* 236 252 207 4 2 
Lease- Right of Usc - 218 17 
Addition - Right of Use - 84 6 
Additions of Right of Usc relating to 
acquisition* - 44 -
Additions 1.274 3.922 22 33 
Disposals/ Adj usunents - - (72) 

As at Ma1·ch 31.2020 589 52 I 5,436 14,507 186 179 

Accumulated tlep1·cciarion 
As at beginning of April 0 1, 20 18 6 (0) 244 1.733 ?' _.) 40 
Depreciation charge during the year 3 0 123 747 15 19 
Disposals ( 13) (I) (0) 
As at March 31,2019 9 0 367 2.467 37 59 

Depreciation charge during the year 5 0 149 916 18 ?' _.) 

Depreciation on Right of Use - 87 10 
Disposals/ Adjustments - (33) 
As at March 31 , 2020 14 0 603 3 ,350 55 92 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2019 344 52 I 3,197 7,983 P' _ _, 62 
As at March 31,2020 575 52 I 4.833 11.157 131 87 

• Fair value as on December 27. 20 19 

a. Depreciation for the year includes depreciauon amounting to~ 108 (March 31, 2019 ~ 1 00) on assets used for Research & Development. During the year Group mcurred ~ 228 (March 31. 2019 ~ 50) 
towards capital expenditure for Research & Development (Refer Note 29). 

b. Refer note 33 (a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property. plant and equipment. 
c. Refer note 42 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Group. 

2 
31 
(0) 
33 

6 
190 
86 

313 
(0) 

628 

I 

3 

4 

35 
87 
(0) 

126 

29 
502 

Tota l 

11,953 
2.8 16 

35) 
14.734 

707 
425 
176 

44 
5.564 

(72) 

2 1,571! 

2.047 
910 
(14) 

2,943 

1.146 
184 
(33) 

4.240 

11,791 
17.338 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(A ll amounts in~ million, unless otherwise stated) 

S OTIIER INTANGII3LE ASSETS 

Gr·oss carrying amount 
As at beginning of April 01,2018 
Additions 
As at March 31,2019 

Addition relating to acquisition (Refer note 43) 
Additions 
As at March 31,2020 

Accumulated amortisation 
As at beginning of April 01, 2018 
Amortisation charge during the year 
As at Mar·ch 31 , 2019 
Amortisation charge during. the year 
As at J\llarch 31, 2020 

Net Carrying Amount 
As at March 31, 2019 
As at March 31 , 2020 
* Fnir value as on December 27, 2019 

6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS llNDER DEVEL01,MENT 

As at beginning of April 01,2018 
Additions 
As at March 31,2019 

Additions 
Disposal/ Adjustments 
Amount recogn ised under Intangible assets 
As at March 31 , 2020 

The value-in-use of intangible assets under development is higher than the carrying amount. 

Computer· 
Software 

105 
IS 

120 
3 

34 
!57 

38 
18 
56 
20 
76 

64 
81 

Product 
Development 

10 

10 

19 
29 

6 
2 
8 

I 
9 

2 
20 

Intangible Assets 
under Development 

208 
76 

284 

87 
(16) 
(19) 
336 

Supply Total 
Agreement 

115 
15 

130 
324 327 

53 
324 SIO 

44 
20 
64 

16 37 
16 101 

66 
308 409 
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(A ll amounts in ~ million, un less oth erwise stated ) 

FINANCI.-\L , \ SSETS 

7(a) NON-CU RRENT INVESTM ENTS 

In vestm ent in equity instrum ents (fully paid up) 

i\s a t March 31, 2020 

I ) Q uoted at FVTI'L Face value ( in ~) No. of Shares 

a) United Credit Limited 
b) Summit Securities 
c) Akzo Nobel India Limited 
d) BASF India Lim ited 
c) Sudershan Chemical Industries Limited 
f) Rall is India Limited 
g) Bayers Crop Science Limited 
h) Punjab Chemicals & Crop Protection Limited 
i) Pfizer Limited (Erstwhile Wyeth Limited) 
j ) Sanoli Ind ia Limited 
k) L.M .L.Limited 
I) Uni ted Sprit Limited 
m) RPG Life Sciences Limited 
n) Vallas Limited 
o) 1CICII3ank Limited 

2) Unqu ote<! 

a) Sygenta India Limited 
b) Ciba CKD Biochem Limited 
c) Collabo Tech Inc.( in JPY) 
Less: Provis ion fo r diminution in value of 
investment 

TOTA L 

Aggregate amount of quoted investmen1s and market value thereof 
Aggregate amount of tm~quotcd investments 
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

? (b) CUR RENT INVEST JV1ENTS 

Investm ent in mutua l funds at FVTI'L 
Quoted 
a ) SB I Short Term Debt Fund- Direct Pl:m- G row th 

2,52.39,905 (March 3 1, 20 19: Nil ) Units 
h) SBI S hort Ter m Debt F und - Direct Plan - Growth Fund 

2,30, 197 (March 3 1, 2019: N il ) Units 

c) n e liancc Liq uid Fund- Direct Piau G rowth P lan - G rowt h O pt ion 
Nil (March 3 1, 20 19 : 48,256) Units 

d ) Ad itya Birla S un Life Liquid Fund-G rowth-Direct Plan 
Nil (March 3 1, 2019 : 6,53,069) Uni ts 

e) II DFC Liq u i<l Fund-Regui:u· Plan-Growth 
Nil (March 3 1,2019: 70, 15 1) Units 

f) SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 
Nil (March 3 1, 20 19 : 1,52,342) Units 

Quoted 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof 
Aggregate amount ofimpainnent in the value of investments 

7(c) LOANS 

Unsecured, consideretl good unless statetl otherwise 
Security deposits 
Loans and advances to related parties (Refer Note 36) 

Other loans nncl advan ce!ii 
Employee advances 

Considered good 

Doubtful 
Less: Allowance for doubtful employee advances 

Other miscellaneous advnnces* 

Break up of ~ccu1'i ty dctnils 

10 
10 
10 
10 

I 
I 

10 
10 
10 
10 
10 
10 
10 

2 

10 
10 

2.91 ,545 

T OTA L 

TOTAL 

700 

12 
so 

976 

900 
2,070 

66 
248 

29 

100 
ISO 
940 
360 
100 

2,530 

160 

100 
343 

As at Ma rch 31,201 9 

Amount Face value 
0 10 

0 10 
0 10 

10 

0 
I 

0 10 

0 10 
0 10 

I 10 
0 10 
I 10 

0 10 
0 

2 
s 

0 10 

0 10 
65 2,91 ,545 

(0) 

65 
70 

5 
65 
(0) 

As at March 3 I , 2020 

609 

7 16 

6 1 

6 1 

1,325 

1,325 

1,325 

~ I 

41 

As at M a rch 
3 1,2020 

No. of Shares A mount 

700 0 
12 0 
50 0 

976 I 

900 0 
2,070 

66 0 

248 0 
29 0 

100 
150 0 
940 I 
360 0 
100 0 

2,530 I 

5 

160 0 
100 0 
343 __________ 6~5o_ 

(0) 

65 

70 

5 
65 
(0) 

As at ~larch 3 1, 201 9 

220 

196 

257 

446 

29 

7 
3 

(3) 
47 
83 

1, 11 9 

1, 11 9 

1, 11 9 

As at IHarch 
3 1,2019 

7 
3 

5 
2 

(2) 
48 

63 

As a l 1\larch 
3 1,20 19 



lntpiT~dby <itlt!llr .. 

1'1 I 'IDUSTH IES 1.1.\IITED 
NOTES TO CONSOL I DATED FI :\.\NC' I.\1. ST .-\TE,\1 I~ .'ITS 

(.·\11 :tmounts i n ~ million , unless otherwise stated ) 
Loans considered good- Sctured 
Loans considr:red good~ Unsccurt!d 
Loans which have significanl increase in credit risk 
Loans- credit impaired 

Less: loss allowance 

7(<1) TRADE HECEI VA BLf.S 

Tra(\t! receivables 
Receivables 1i·01n related parties 
Less: Allowance lor doubtful debts 

Current portion 
Non-current portion 

Break up of security deta ils 

Trttde receivables considered goO<I ~ Secured 
Trade receivables consickred good~ Unsecured 
Trade receivables which hav~ signilicant increase in cred it risk 
Trnde receivables- cred it impaired 

l,ess: Allowan<·c lor doubtful debts 

Refer note 42 ror info tmation on trade receivables pledged as security by the Group. 

7(c) CASH AND CASH EQUI VAL ENTS 

C:tsh & Cash Eq uivalents 
Balance with banl<s 

In Current i\ccounts 
In EEFC acco unt 

Cash on hand 
Deposits with ma tu ri ty of less than 3 months 

TOTAL 

7(1) BA'IK BALANCES OTI-If.R TI-IA 'I CASII .-\ND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

In deposit accounts held tts margin monl.!y 
Fi~cd deposits with bank 
In unclaimed divid\!nd accounts* 

TOT A L 

TOTAL 

TOTA L 

T OTAL 

• Not available lo r usc by the Group as tltey reprcs~nl corresponding unclaimed dividend liabilities. 

147 

1-17 
(3 ) 

IH 

.-\s nt 1\ larch 
3 t, 2020 

6,923 
58 

(5 16) 

6,~65 

6,-165 

A' at ,\lnt·clt 
31,2020 

6.981 

6,98 1 
(5 16) 

6,~65 

,\ s at March 31,2020 

563 
37 

0 
644 

1 ,2-t~ 

As at ~ l a rch 3 1, 2020 
20 
71 
7 

98 

106 

t06 
(2) 

10~ 

As at Mardt 
3 1,2019 

6,939 

(321) 
6,618 

6,618 

As at t\la rch 
3 1,201 9 

6.939 

6,939 
(32 1) 

6 618 

,\sat 1\l:trch 3 1,2019 

As at ~ l arch 31, 201 9 

90 

60 

463 
6 1~ 

31 
240 

7 
278 



PI INDUST ill ES Lh\ IITED 
.'IOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FI NANCIAL STATE,\ I Et'\TS 
(.-\ II amou1115 i11 '{ millinu , u11less olhcrwisc slated ) 
7(g) OTIIE I<S FI NANCIAL ;\SSETS 

Cousitleretf gootluuless sfafetl oflterwise 
lnlcrest and other chnrgcs recoverable from customers 

-Considered good 
-Doublfltl 

Less: i\llowallcc for doubtlitl debts 
Dcposils lodged with Excise & Sales Tax depart men! 
Deposit accounts held as margin money 
Insurance Claims Recoverable 
Other recoverable 
Derivative financial instruments- foreign exchange forward contracts 

7(h) CONTilACT ASSETS 

Comract assets• 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

30 
52 

82 

As at i\ larch 
31,2020 

•Recoverable from cuslomers under contract for supply of goods mrmufactured exclusively tor customers (Reier note 3(h)). 
8 IN\ 'E,\TORIES 

Raw materials l includes stock-in-transit Z 733 (l'vlarch 31, 20 19: <( 1048)} 

Work in progress 
Finished goods l includes stock-in-transit Z I 03 (March 31, 2019 : Z I S3 J) 
Stock in t rad~ {includes stock-in-transit~ Nil (l'vlarch 3 I, 2019: Nil)} 
Stores & spares { mcludes stock-in-transit Z I (March 31, 2019 : Z 6 )} 

TOTAL• 

28 
3 1 

90 
1-19 

As at i\larch 
31,2020 

5,381 
366 

I ,313 
•166 
463 

7,989 

86 
120 

(120) 

105 
122 

313 

*The cost ot'invcntorics recognised as an expense on account of provision o t' obsolete/ slow and non moving invenlories amounting to~ 52 (March 3 1, 2019: Z 68) 

'.1 1:'11\ 'ESTt\IENTS I~ ASSOCI,\TJ:: AC\'D JOINT VENTli RE 

ln vestmcnl in Unquotcll Equ ity Instruments• 
Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited (Associate)*" 
PI Kumiai Private Limited (Joint Venture)**• 

• Unlisted entity- no quoted price available 

As at ill arch 
31 , 2020 

6 
103 
109 

As at i\larch 
3 1,2019 

9-1 
121 

( 121) 

40 

120 
25~ 

As at fi·Iarch 
31,2019 

3,50•1 
595 
735 
:!92 
23 1 

5,357 

As at March 
31 2019 

6 
96 

102 

•• Th~ Group has a 49% interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited. which is tnvolved In the business of all types of agri Inputs. The Group's interest in Solinnos Agro 
Sciences Private Limited is at carrying amount detem1ined using the equity method of accounting. The country of business is India 

••• The Group has a 50% interest in PI Kumiai Private Limited. which is involved in the business of arc manufacturing and trading of Agri Screncc Products The Group's interest in 
PI Kumiai Private Limited is at carrying amount determined using the equity method of accounting. The country of business is India. 

The Group has interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited and PI Kumiai Private Limited that arc accounted for using equity method and are individually immaterial to the 
Group. Refer table below for details: - · 

Aggregate cat tying amount of individually immaterial associate and joint venture 
Aggregate amounts of the group's share of: 

Pro lit/( loss) from continuing operations 
Post-tax pro lit or loss from discontinued operations 
Other comprehensive income 
Totnl comprehensive in<·ome 

As at t\ l arch 
3 1 2020 

109 

8 

8 

As at March 
31 2019 

102 

0 

0 



I' I l i'I DIJSTHIES LI~ IITf.D 

NOTES T O CONSOLIDATED Fli'IA i'ICI. \ L STATEr\! ENTS 
(:\11 amounts in ~ million, unless oth erwise ' tntcd) 
10 CHII EH .\SS ETS 

Considered good 1111le.u stated otherwise 
Cn pital advances 

Considered good 
Doubtful 
Less: Allowance for doubt fu l advances 

Adva nces to vendors 
Considered good 
Doubtful 
Less· Allowance for doubtful advances 

Oalance with Cenlral Excise Authorities, Customs etc. 
Prepayments 
Other statutory advances 
Export incentive receivables 
Right to recover returned goods 
Other miscellaneous advances• 

TOTAL 

As at J\larch 
31, 2020 

30 1 
I 

(I ) 

6 
50 

54 
411 

• Other miscellaneous advances includes amount of ~ 71 t March 3 I, 20 19 ~ 55) deposited with Sales Tax Authorities under pmtcst. 

II Cl' RREt\ T TA:\. .\ SSinS 

Advance income tax (Net of provision lor income tax"{ 8,257 /March 31, 2019 ~ 7,23 1)) 
TOTAL 

12 EQUIT\" SII.\ RE CA I' IT:\ L 

Authol"ised Sha rrs 
72,30,00,000 (March 3 I, 2019: 22,30,00,000) Equity Shares ofH each (March 31, 2019: { I each) 

Nil (March 31,2019: 50,00,000) Preli!rence Shares on100 each (March 3 I. 2019: ~ 100 each) 

Issued Shat·es 
13,82,84,568 (March 31, 2019: 13,82,07.226) Equity Shares of~l each (March 31, 20 19: ~ I each) 

Subscribed & Fully l'aid up Slut res 
13,81 ,07,993 (March 3 1, 20 19 : 13,80,30,65 1 l Equity Shares on I ~ach (March 31, 2019: Z I each ) 
Total subsrri brd anti fully paid up share capital 

a. The difference between the issued and subscribed capital is on account of less number of shues allotted in right issue in earlier years. 

b. Terms/ r ights attached to Eq uity Sharrs 

383 
I 

(I ) 

9 
0 

59 
451 

.\ s at t\I arch 
3 1 2020 

146 
1~6 

As at M:u·ch 
31 , 2020 

223 

223 

138 
138 

138 
138 

3•17 
43 

(43) 
•11 3 

8•1 
288 
36~ 

52 

1,548 

627 
II 

( II ) 
93 
40 

660 
559 
107 

2,086 

As at i\1:1 rch 
31 2019 

As at r'<larch 
31 2019 

223 

500 
723 

138 
138 

138 
138 

The Company has only one class of Equily Shares having a par value of {I per share (March 31, 20 19 ~ I p<!r shar~). Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vole per share. 
The dividend proposed by the 13oard of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in lhe ensuing Annual General Meeting except interim dividend. In the event of 
liquidation, the Equity slmreholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company aflcr distribution of all preferential amounts, in proport ion to their shareholding. 

c. Own shares held hy ESOP Trus l 

In the earl ier years, Pll ESOP Trust was set up to adminisler the employee stock option plan. During the current year Pll ESOP Trust has been consolidated. Reier 
table below for movement of shares on account of consolidation.-

Pn rficu la rs For the year ended For the year r nded 
!\larch 3 1, 2020 !\ la rch 3 1, 2019 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 
Opening balance 2,3 1,200 0 2,7 1,558 

Adjustment on consolidation of F.SOP Trusl during the year 77.342 0 1.23.333 

Exercised during the year 1.59.685 0 1.63,691 

Clos ing balance 1 ,~8,857 0 2,3 1,200 

d. lssur or Shares undCI" cm plo)'cC stoclc Oflliou (ESOI') Scheme 

0 

0 

0 

0 

During the year ended March 3 I, 2020. the Company has issued 77,342 ~qu i ty shares of ~ I ~ach (March 3 1. 2019 123,333 equity sh~rcs of~ I c<lth). us per exercise price to Pll 
ESOP Trust, set up to administer Employee Stock Option Plan. Out of Iota I equity shares issued to the Trust 159,685 equity shar~s of lace value of~ I each (March 31. 2019 163,691 
equity shares of face value ofZ I each) have been allocated by the Trust during the ye Jloyccs upon exercrsc of Stock Option. As on March J I, 2020. 13 I ,036 equity 
shares of lace value of~ I p.:r slmc (March 31. 20 19 23 1,200 of lace value of Z I ~'I ' allocated lo employees upon exercise of Stock Option. (Refer Note 32) 

~ "I'll 
~ " . 
~~ 

"" "'otus~ "-v-;:.:.:~­
*Curu 



1'1 1.'-ID USTili ES I.I~ IITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINA NCIA L STATf:,\1 ENTS 

(. \II amou nts in t m illion, unless otherwise slated) 

e. Reconciliation of shares outs tand ing al thc beginning and all he end of I he repo rt ing period 

Issued share cap ital 

£ · Sl : fjlll/}1 1(11'1!$ 

Par ticulars 

Share outstanding at beginning of period 

Shares issued under employee slack opt ion scheme 

Share outstanding at end of period 

Subscribed & paid up 

£ . Sf ' IJIIIII' wres 
Pa o·ticu la rs 

Share outstanding at beginning of period 

Shares issued under employee stock option plan 

Share outstanding at end of period 

f . S hares reserved fur issu e under option 

Shares reserved for issue under employee stock option scheme is sci out in Note 32 

g . Details of shareholde rs holding mo re lhan S'Yu s ha res in lhc Comp:w y 

E1111ifl' Sltures 
N:une of Shat·cholders 

J'vl r. Salil Singhal 
Ms. Madhu Singhal 
Mr. Mavank Sin •hal 
Ms. Pooja Singhal 
ICICI Prudcmial Val ue Discovery Fund 

Equil\• Sha re No. of Shares) Value of Er uilv Sha res 
2 019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 

13,82,07,226 13.80,83,893 138 138 

77,342 I ,23.333 0 0 

1 3 ,82,8~,568 13,82,07,226 13S t 38 

Ec~toil y Shno·c No. of Shares) Vnlu c of Er uilv Shares 
201 9-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 

13,80,30,651 13.79,07,318 138 138 

77,342 I ,23,333 0 0 

13,8 1,07,993 13,80,30,651 138 138 

2019-20 201 8-19 
No of S hnrcs %of Holding No of Shares %. of Hold inu 

85,54,857 6.20 85,54,857 6.20 
2, 15,60 500 15.62 2, 15.60,500 15.62 
3.20.28,51 0 23.20 3,20,28,51 0 23.20 

86.65,550 6.28 86.6 5,550 6.28 

- 60.73,<166 4.40 



PI INDUSTR IES Ll i\IITED 
NOTES TO CONSOI.IDATED FIN,\NC IAL ST.-\TE,\IENTS 
(A ll :liiJOtllllS i11 t millio11, unless othcnvisc stated) 
13 OTII E I~ EQU ITY 

Reserves & surplus 

a. Cnpital rcscn •c 
llalance at the bcgmning of the financial year 
Addition during the financial yeat 

Cupit(!/ U~ts.:rvc p(lrfllms Jo <mwultl lrtm.y/i:rr.!d ji·om £.'llf)lfal reth:mplum reseJTf! whic.:h was c:retllctf jiJJ· 
redemption ofpre.ferem:e ,·han:. 

h. Capital redempt ion n·servc 
Oalanee at the beginning of the financial year 
Addition during the Financial year 
Deduction during the financial year 

c. Securities premium reserve 
Oalance at the beginning oft he financial year 
Addition during the Financial year 
Add: Premium on issue of equity shares through ESOP 
Add: Exercise or share options 
Less: Own shares held by ESOP Tmst 

Securilies premium resen·e 1\' used 10 record thl! premwm mr 1.\'SIIf! nf.flwn .. '<t. 111e resen•e '·" rtllli.,ed 111 

m:c:urdanc:e wilh I he! prowsums ufthe Ac1. 

d. Share option outstnnding nccount 
Balance at the beginning or the financial year 
Less: Expense on employee stock option scheme 
Less: Shares issued under employee stock option scheme 

71u.~ slwn! opfiun.~ omstmuling acc:mm/1.\' us~J to re(:oguise the lwhllity arising out ufopftoll\' 1ssued to 
employees under Employee stock option .w.:lleme uwil the ,\·lwres are is:wed (Refer Note 32). 

e. Gcncral rcservc 
Balance at the beginning or the financial year 
Add: Transferred during the financial year 

r. Surplus in statement of profit & loss 
Balance at the beginning or the financial year 
Addition during the financial year 
i\dd: Change in accounting policy- Adjustment of lnd AS 115 
Add: Remeasuremcnt gain I (loss) on defined benefit plans through OCI 
Less: Interim dividend 
Less: Final dividend 
Less: Dividend distr ibution tax on equity shares 

g. Own shares held by ESOI' Trust 
Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year 
Add: Adjustment on consolidation of ESOP Trust during the year 
Less: Exercise of share options 

Items of other com urehcnsivc income 

h. Cash flow hedge rrservc 
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 
Add: Other comprehensive income for the financial year 

'111e company use.r. hedgm~ inslrumelll.\' ll.\' pan '?fits mtmagemeut ojforeign currency nsk nfsot:iatet! u·tth its 
highly pruhable fhreca.\'1 sale. For hedgmg_(rn·eign currem.:vnsk, !he cm11pany uses foreign c:urrellc.')' forward 
t..'OIItracls which is designaled a.,. c.·ush jluw hedges. To the exteJII I IIese hedges are effec:lil'e; I he c:lwnge in j{1ir 
wllue ufthe hedging instnmwJII is recogmsec/ inlhe c.·ashjlow hedging resen·e. Amounts recognised in the 
t..•ashJiou· hedging resen•e is reclos.\'lfied lo pn~fil or loss when/he hedged item (sale~) t{Oi!c/s prt?fit orlnss. 

i. Foreign currency translation reserve 
Balance at the beginning and end of the linancial year 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total 

As at ~ larch Jl , 2020 As at i\ln rch 31,2019 

15 

2.055 

80 
80 

(53) 

73 
(4) 

(27) 

1.857 

18,583 
4,566 

(II) 
(4 14) 
(207) 
(1 28) 

(0) 
(0) 
0 

127 
(547) 

2 
2 

15 

2. 162 

15 

1,984 

116 
29 

(74) 

102 
13 

42 ___ _..(•.:.::12"-) 

1,857 
1,857 _ ___ _ 

15,097 
4,102 

2 16 
( I ) 

(345) 
(344) 

22.389 ___ _,(..:.1 4.:.:2:~-) 

(U) 

(0) 

0 ------'0"--

49 
(420) ___ __;7;..::8_ 

2 
4 ____ ..;:0;_ 

26,053 

15 

2,055 

73 

1,857 

18.583 

(0) 

127 

2 

22,716 



1'1 I ~ OtiSTIO ES Ll \liTE I> 
i\'0"1 ES TO CONSO LI D.-\ TEll FL'L\~CI.\ L STATE~ I ENTS 

(A ll :unounl.< in '!' million, unless ulh<•rwis<· Slated) 

I-I OIST IUJil ' 110\ \ I \ IH .\ \IJ f' IWPOSE I> 

,\ Dividends declared an<l paid: 
Final dividend (March 31, 2020 p~llains to linancial )Car 2018-19 and March 31. 20 19 pcrtians to financial year 2017-1 S) 
lntaim di vidend (March 3 1, 2020 pertains 10 fi nancial year 2019-20 and March 31,20 19 pertians lo fi nancial year 2018-19) 
Total dividends 

The Company has paid tax on di1 idencl amounting to~ 127 t tvlarch 3 1,2019 '{ 142) 

fl Dividends not rccogniscclnl lhc end or the reporting period 
In addition to the above dividends. subsequent to the year end the Board of Directors have recommended a final di1 odend of '{ 1.00 
per fully paid equity share (March 31. 2019 '{ 1.50). 

Ta~ on dividend 
This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. 

1.5 fl i\'M\C'I. \ 1. 1.1.\ 1111.1 1'1 £5 

15(a) BORIWWINGS (NO:"-CU RR ENT) 

Secured 
Term Loans - From flan l<s 
Fore ign Currency Loans from 13anks :lt amortised cost 
Rupee T~rm Loan at amortised cost 
Less: Interest accrued but not d<tc on borrowings 1 included in Note 15(d)) 

TOTAL 

a. Foreign currency loa ns inchules: 

As at o\ lareh 
J l . 2020 

2.254 
1.7~0 

J 99~ 

As al ~larch 31, 
2020 

207 
414 
62 1 

As at ~l:lrch 31, 
2020 

138 

99 

99 

109 

12 
97 

.\s :tl o\l :t rch 
31 ,201 9 

3·14 
345 
639 

As a t ~l:orclo 
31.201 9 

207 

42 

395 

2 
393 

(i) 'External commercial borrowings ( ECI3i from I-ISBC 13ank , Mauritius amounting to USD 1.42 MN carrying interest rate or3 months LIBOR plus 1. 10% is outstanding as on March 3 1. 
2020 and is repayable in balance I (one) quarterly instalments ofUSD 1.42 Mn. The maturity date of the loan is May 25.2020. The loan is secured by excl usive charge on movable plant 
and machincoy & building relating to multi purpose plant (MPP)- 6 &7 of the Company situated at SI'M 28, Jambusar (Gttiarat). The loan was taken for the purpose of capital c~penditurc 

for two multi purpose plant designated as tvll' l' 10 and MPI' II at ste rl ing Multi Product SEZ in Jambusar. District, Gujarat. (refer note 42) 

(ii) 'External commercial borrowings (ECI3 ) li·omiiSBC 13ank, Singapore amounting to USD 30.0 MN (drawn) carrying interest rate of3 months LII30R plus 1.25% is outstanding <IS on 
March 3 1. 2020. In addition, an amount of USD 28 MN is approved from IISI3C Bank, Singapore. which is pending to be dmwn. The borrowing from HSI3C Bank, Singapore are 
repayable in 14 (fourteen) equal quarterly instalments ofUSD 4 14 MN each. The maturity date of the loan is October 10, 202~ . The loan is secured by cxdusive charge on movable plant 
and machinety and building relating to under construction multi purpose plant (MI'P)- 10 & II of the Company situated at SPM 29/2, Jambusnr (Gujarat) .The loan was taken for the 
purpose or capital expenditure for two multi purpose plant designated as MPP I 0 and MI'P II at sterling Multi Product SEZ in Jambusnr, District, Gujaral. (refer note 42) 

(iii) 'Rupee Term Loan from Citicorp Finance (India) Limited ("CFIL") amounting to~ 1.740 carrying int~res t rate of8% is outstanding as on March 31. 2020. The borrowings from CFIL 
are repayable in 3 (eight) equal quarterly insta llment. The maturity dale of the loan is December 31,2022. The loan is secured by exclusive charge on moveable fixed assets of multi 
purpose plant (MPP) 8 and under construction Multi purpose plant (MPI') 9 of the Company situated at SI'M 29/2 . .lambusar (Uujarat) The purpose of Loan is reimbursement of capital 
expenditure at various manufacturing faci li ty in FY 20 19 and 1-1 I FY 2020.(rcfcr note 42) 

b. As on the 13alancc sheet date there is no delituli in repayment of loans and interest. 

c. Changes in liaiJilitics arising from financing activities 

This section sets out changes in liabili ties arising from linancing activities pursuant to 
requirements under lnd i\S 7 

Current port ion of long term financial borrowings 
Non-current port ion of long term linancial borrowings 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Ba lan ce as at the beginnin!! of the vcar 
Foreign exchange a<\justmcnts 
Interest expense 
Interest paid 
Amortisation of Prepaid Processing Charges on Tenn Loan 
l.oan taken 
Re-payments 
Balance as at the end of the year 

d. Lmw cnvcnaniS 

TOTAL 

Under the tcnns of the major borrowing faci lities. the group is required to com pi) 11 ith the follo11 ing Jinanco:ol CO\ cu:mts : 

As al o\lareh 31 , As at o\larch 
2020 3 1,201 9 

(97) (393) 

(3.99-1) (99) 
( 12) (2) 

!4,103l !49-tl 

Amount Amount 
(~9~) (836) 
( 154) (56) 
(60) (29) 
50 30 
34 (2) 

(3,886) 
407 399 

!4.103l (49-l! 

n. the Debt service coverage ratio ( DSCR) must be higher than 2. IDSCR = (Pi\ T ' Depreciation t Interest expenses • Deferred tax ' Amortization)/ (Interest pmd (including interest 
b. Fixed assets coverage ratio (f i\CR) must be higher than 1.25 [ Fixed assets coverage ratio= ( llypolhecated Movable Fixed 1\sscts (net book value)+ Immovable assets morlgag~d (boo~ 
c. External Debt!EBIDTi\ lobe maintained bcl<m 2.5. I Total debt or borrowings/ E131DTi\j 
d Extern:d gearing to be maintained below 2.1 Total debt or borrowings /Tangihk net 110rth J 

I' he g10up complied 11 ith these ratios throughout th~ reporting period i\s at Match 31, 2020 Debt servic~ COl erage ratio 11as I 0 95 (1vlarch 3 1. 20 I') 15.03 1. Fi~cd nssets coverage ratio 
\las 3.52 ( 16.64 at March 3 1 2019). Exteo nnl Dcb~EBIDTJ\ 11ns 0.66 (0 OS at tvlarch 31 20 19) and extenwl g~aring ratio was 0.21 IM:uch 31. 20 19 0 O?l 

15(b) 130Hil0\\ 1:-.c;s (CliiUlE;'>/T) 



PI INOUSTRJr.S LI~ I ITED 

NOT ES T O CONSOL JD,\T Eil FINANCJ,\L ST,\ J'E,\1 ENTS 

(All amounts in f million, unless otherwise stated) 

Secured 
Wol'l<ing Capital- Jii'Om lla ni<S 
Working Capilal Loan 
Buyer's Credil 

Shorl lcnn loan: 

TOTAL 

Current 
As at ,\ larch 

31 2020 

950 
133 

1,083 

As at ,\ la rch 
31 201 9 

Working capital loans amounting to INR 950 Mn carrying intetest rate of7.90 to S. 10 % is outstanding as on March 3 1, 2020, matruting within three months !l·om the balance sheet 
date. The loan is secured by floating charge on all current assets The purpose of the loan is to meet working capital requirements of the Company. 

b Changes in liabilities aris ing from financing 
activities 
Bnlance as nt the begiuning or the year 
Interest expense 
Interest paid 
Amortisation of Prepaid Processing Charges 
Borrowings (Net) 
Ba lance as at the end or the ye.,· 

IS(c) TRADE PAYABL ES 

Trade payables 
-Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 37) 
·Other trade payables 

IS(d) OTH ER FINANCIA L LIABI LITif:S 

Employee payables• 
Security deposits from dealers 
Security deposits from contractors 
Current maturities of long-tenn bonowings (Refer Note 15 (a)) 

Interest accrued but not due 011 borrowings 
Unclaimed dividends 
Creditors for capilal purchases 
Deferred Lease Liabilities 
Olltcr payable •• 
Derivative financial instrumen ts ~ foreign exchange forward contracts 

TOTAL 

TOTAl. 

255 
I 

318 

258 
832 

As a t Mnrrh 
3 1,2020 

83 
5.826 

5 909 

As at March 
31 2020 

,13 

(43) 

1,083 
1,083 

As at (\[arch 
3 1 2019 

As nt ivl nrch 
3 1,2019 

48 
5,082 
5,130 



1'1 L'I I)LISTI~I"S 1.1.\IITED 

NOTES TO CO,'(SOLIDATED FINANCIA l. ST i\H:,\I ENTS 

( :\11 am ouuts in Z 111 ill ion, unless olh cn visc .•talcd) 

" Changes in liabilities nrising frOJn financing activtries- OeH~rrcd lease liahililics -

13alanrr as at the IJcginning of th e yc;u· 
Interest c.~pensc 
1\ddition- lease liabilit ies 
Lease rental paid 

Balance as at the end of the year 

• This incllldes due Co directors amollnting co ~ 99 (March J I , 2019 ~ 93) 

** This includes due to llOn-execlltive/ i nckp~nde11 t directors amou11Cin!,! to~ I J I March 3 I. 2019 . ~ 17) 

.\sac ~larch 
31,2020 

412 
~7 

261 
(215) 

505 

As :tt \l:trch 
31.2019 

16 PRO \"ISIOi'iS 

Provision for l'mployct• IJ(•n cfits·~ 
Long. term compensated absences 
Ciratnity (Refer Nole 110. 31) 

Provisions for legal cla ims 

*This includes due Co directors amollnting to ~ 68 (March 31, 20 19 Z 48 ) 

(i) Long term rom pensatcd aOscnces 

124 
IH 

TOT,\L 124 

rite long term compensated absences cover the compa11y's liability tor earned leave which a r~ classilied as ocher long-term benefits. 

Ill 157 s 
179 7 
290 16~ 8 

260 118 
260 li S 

290 424 126 

The entire amount of provision of~ 157 is presented as current. since the compnay does not hme an tlll(Ondicional right to defer sellkment lor any of these obligations. However 
based on past experience. I he company does noc expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment lor such leave within next 12 monlhs. 

A s at i\ larch As at i\ l arclt 
3 1,2020 31 ,2019 

Leave obligations no I expected 10 be seHicd within lhe nexc 12 months 157 

(i) [nformation about provisions for lega l claim s 
(a} An objection was raised by the custom department on classiflcalion of one oflhc imported raw mnterials resulting in demand ofd iOerential custom duty. The Company fikd an 
appeal against I he order and is clearing the goods atler furnishing of hank guarantee for differential duty against each import of such raw material. As on March 31. :w:w total 
dillerential custom ducydemand is ~ 128 (March 31. 20 1'l ~ I 1-1). Case is pending before Assistant CommissionerofCustoms, Mumbai. 

(b) Government of Rajasthan issued a notification result ing imo an excise liability on -1 (March 3 1. 2019. ~ 4 ). The Company has likd ""'il against the notilicacion and has lhrnished 
lixed deposit againsllhe said liability. The case is pending before Honorabk Rajasthan High Cotu1. 

(c) i\ n objection was raised by the custom department on classifkacion of one of the raw materials siapton resulting in demand of diiTcrcnlial excise duty. The Company tiled an 
appeal against lhc order and has given lixcd deposit amounting co Z 2 1 under lein against the said liabilicy.As on tvlarch 3 I, 2020 total dille rcnlial excise duty demand is~ 128 (March 
31.20 19 ~ Nil ) 

(ii) i\ lol'cmcn t in other prol'isions 

As at I April 2018 
Provisions made during the year 

r\s at 31 1\Jarrh 20 19 
Provisions made during the year 
i\ddicions relating to acquisition (reler note <14 ) 

As ac ~larch J l , 2020 

Legal claims 
10 1 

17 
11 8 

14 
128 
260 



J'l INDUSTRIES Llt\ IITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN' \ ' C IAL STATE,\ lENT S 
(A ll amou nls in '! million, unless oth erwise stated) 

17 DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) I Ll\ Ill CITIES 

The ba lan ce comprises temporary differences allrihntahle to: 

Deferred lax liabililies 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 

Deferred 1>1x >IsSeis 
Provision fo r employee benefits 
Other provisions 
Other firumcial liabilities 
Trade receivables 
- Remeasurements on defined benefit plans 
- Effeclive portion on cash now hedges 
-Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 
Others 
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit entitlement 

Ncl deferred tax (assets)/liabililies 

Movement in deferred lax: 

Deferred lax liabilit ies 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Sub- Total (n) 

Deferred lax assets 
Provision for employee benefits 
Other provisions 
Other financial liabilities 
Trade receivables 
Other comprehensive income items 
- Remeasurcments on detincd benefit plans 
-Effective portion on cash now hedges 
- Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 
Others 
Minimum alternate ta'l: (MAT) credit entitlement 
Sub- Total (b) 
Net deferred tax liability (a)-(b) 

• Acquired on December 27, 2019 (Refer note ~4) 

i\l ovemenl in deferred lax: 

Deferred tax liabililics 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Sub- Total (a) 

Deferred lax assets 
Provision for employee benefits 
Other provisions 
Other financial liabilities 
Trade receivables 
Other financial assets 
Others 
Other comprehensive income items 
- Remeasurcments on defined benefit plans 
-Effective portion on cash now hedges 
-Exchange difTerencc on translation of foreign operations 
Minimum alternate tax (MilT) credit entitlement 
Sub- Total (b) 
Net deferred tax liability (a)-(b) 

r\ 

IJ 
TOTAL 

As at March 31,20 19 On account of Recognized in 

1,093 
14 

1,107 

42 
17 
8 

155 

17 
(58) 
( I) 
5 

1,063 
l ,H 8 
(141) 

As at March 31,2018 

1,033 
16 

1,049 

89 

5 
67 
28 
15 

16 
(16) 
(I) 

1.113 
1,316 
(267) 

acct uisition• l'&L 

37 377 
(0) 

37 377 

8 9 
47 
(I) 

38 (24) 

33 33 

79 64 
(42) 3 13 

Recognized in 
P&L 

60 
(2) 
58 

(<17) 
17 
3 

88 
(28) 
[10) 

(66) 
(43) 
101 

• Actualisation ofMATcredit utilisauon for the FY 20 17-18 on the basis of tax return filed. 

As at t\1 arch 
3 112020 

1.507 
14 

1,521 

(58) 
[64) 
(7) 

( 169) 
(25) 

(236) 
I 

(7 1) 
(790) 

(1 ,41 9) 
102 

Recognized in 
OC I 

(I) 

8 
294 

30 1 
(301) 

Hecognized in 
OCI 

(42 ) 

(4 1) 
41 

Utilisation 

(273) 

[273) 
273 

Othe r 
Ad justments• 

16 
16 

(16) 

As at t'vlnrch 
31 2019 

1,093 
14 

1,107 

(•12) 
(17) 
(8) 

( 155) 
(17) 
58 

I 
(5) 

( 1,063) 
(1,148) 

(1 41 l 

As at March 
31,2020 

1,507 
14 

1,521 

58 
64 

7 
169 

25 
236 

(I) 
71 

790 
1,419 

102 

As al March 
3 I. 2019 

1,093 
14 

1,107 

42 
17 
8 

155 

17 
(58) 
(I) 

1.063 
1,248 
(1 4 1) 



PI INDUST RIES l.h\IIT fW 

NOTES TO CONSO LI I>AT IOD FIN;\ NC 1A L STr\TEi\1 ENTS 

(.·\ II amoun1s in f million, unless olhcrwisc slaiC<I) 
18 OTIIER Ll.\lll l Ill ES 

Advance from cuslomcrs 
Refund/ Relurn liabililies 
Su11u1ory dues payable 

TOTAL 

As al t'l·larch 
31,2020 

95 
117 
575 

As al March 
31, 2019 

125 
208 
102 
~35 

The group has a cuslomary praclice ofaccepling relllrn and accordingly, lhe group has recognised a refund liabilily fo r the amount of consideration received for which the group does 
not cxpectlo be enti1led amounting to Z 95 (March 31,2019: Z 208 ). The group has also recognised a right 10 recover the returned goods ~ 52 (March 3 1, 20 19: ~ I 07). The costs to 

recover I he producls Me not material because lhc cuslorncrs usually rclurn lhc producl in a saleable condilion. 

19 C l ' RI~ENT '1".\.\: 1.1.\IJILITI ES 

Provision for Income Tax (Nel of Advance Income 1:1x { 8,3 10 (March 31, 2019 ~ 7,226 )) 

TOTAL 

As al !\larch 
31,2020 

44 

As al i\ larch 
31 2019 

5 



ln(Qir~rl b y Stl~n rr 

1'1 INDUSTRI ES I,I~IITED 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCI,\ I, STATE~ I I::NTS 
(All ;unounls in '{ million, unless otherwise sial eel) 

20 H.£ \'ENUE FRO~ I OPEHATIO.\ S 

Revenu e from operations includes 
a) Sale of products (including excise duty) 
b) Sale or services; 
c) Other operating revenues: 

Scrap sales 
Export incentives 

Revenu e From Operati ons (Net) 

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price: 

Contract Price 
Adjustments for: 
Refund liabilities 
Discount/Incentives 

H.cvcnue from Operations 

C ritical judgements in revenue: 

Yea t· ended Y car ended 
i'l•lnrch 31 , 1020 Mnrch 31 , 20 19 

33,054 27,9 18 
12 2 

17 18 
582 471 

33.665 28,409 

Year ended Year end ed 
Ma r ch 3 1, 2020 1\larch 31 , 2019 

34,85 1 29,886 

(95) (208) 
(1,702) (1 ,760) 

33,054 27,918 

The group has recognised Provision for discounts and sales returns amounting to~ 479 from sale of products to various custom~rs during the year ended March 31, 
2020 (March 3 I, 20 19 ~ 4 74 ). The provision has been determined by the management based on the current and expected operating environment. Sales returns 
variabili ty, expected achievement of targets against various ongoing schemes noatcd. 

21 OTHEn INC0 1\IE 

Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost 
Unwinding of discount on securi ty deposits 
Net gain/ loss on sale of Plant, property and equipment ; 
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 

-Realised Gain 
-Unrealised Gain/ (Loss) 

Net foreign exchange differences * 
Di vidend Income 
Miscel laneous Income 

TOTAL 

Year ended 
March 3 1,2020 

175 
3 
9 

13 

264 
0 

25 
489 

*Net of amount of loss ~ 149 (March~ I, 2019 ~ 55) which has been transferred to Capital work in progress during the year. 

22 £ ,\'I PLOYEE O£NEFTT EXI'ENS£ 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident & other funds 
Gratuity (Refer Note 31) 
Long term compensated absences 
Employees Welfare Expenses 
Expense/( Reversal) on Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Note 32) 

TOTAL * 

Ycnr ended 
March 3 1,2020 

2,859 
116 
53 
46 

139 
4) 

3,209 

• Net of amount of~ 494 (March 31 , 20 19 ~ 169) which has been transferred to Capital work in progress during the year. 

Year ended 
!'I larch 3 1.201 9 

194 
10 

198 
(89) 
240 

0 
42 

595 

Year ended 
March 3 1,2019 

2,372 
96 
38 
25 

103 
13 

2,647 



lntpit~dby :idtur~ 

1'1 INDUST RI ES I.IWTED 

NOT ES T O CONSOI.I DATED I'IN,\ ,'.;C I,\ 1. ST ,\TE.\IE•'>TS 
(All amounts in~- mill inn, unless otherwise .stated) 

a. 

23 OTIIER E."\ PE.\SES 

Power, Fuel & Water 
Consumption of stores & spares 
Repairs & Maintenance 

- 13uildings 
- Plant and machinery 
- Others 

Environment & Poll ution Control expenses 
Laboratory & Testing Charges 
Freight & Cartage 
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 
Travelling and conveyance 
Rental charges [Refer note 33 (c); 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance 
Donation 
Loss on Sale/Retirement of property, plant and equipment (Net) 
Payment to auditors (Refer note 23 (a) below: 
Telephone and communication charges 
Provision for 13ad and Doubtfu l debts & Advances 
Director sitting fees and comm ission 
Legal & professional fees 
Rank charges 
Corporate social responsibility expenditure i Refer note 24 below} 
M iseellaneous Expenses 

Auditors' Remuneration 

-Audit Fees 
- Limited Review Fees 
-Certificates & other matters 
-Re imbursement of expenses 

TOTAL '' 

TOT A L 

Year ended 
,\ la rch 3 1.2020 

1,094 
353 

46 
249 
178 
480 
24S 
314 
44<1 
393 

8 1 
2 

11 4 
8 

5 
47 
75 
15 

310 
20 

104 
124 

4.304 

Yea r end ed 
ivlar eh 3 !, 2020 

3 

I 

0 
5 

" Net of amount of ~ 134 (March 3 1. 20 19 ~55) which has been transferred to Capital work in progress during the year. 

24 CORPOIUTE SOCI.\L RESPO\'S inlL!TY E."\I' END!Tl 'l"l.£ 

Contribution to PI Foundation Trust for CSR activities 
Amount required lobe spent by the Company during the year as 
per Section 135 of the Act 

A mount spent during the year on : 
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset 
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 

2~ DEP !"l.ECIATION AND .\ !I IOHTIZAT!ON li:XPENS ES 

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 4) 

Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 5 ) 

26 FIN.-\ :>ICE COST 

Interest on financial liabil ities measured at amortised cost 
Less: transferred to CWI P 
Interest and finance charges on lease liability 
Other borrowing costs 

TOTAL 

T OTAL 

Yea r ended 
il la r r h 3 1,2020 

104 
104 

104 

Yea r ended 
March 31 ,2020 

1,330 
37 

1,367 

Year ended 
'" la rch 3 1, 2020 

140 
(19) 
<17 
2 

170 

Yea•· cudcd 
March 3 !, 2019 

9 12 
251 

GO 
2 16 
129 
454 
2 14 
-106 
372 
431 
!59 
45 
42 
59 
13 
5 

46 
179 

19 
218 

21 
93 

152 
4,496 

Yea r CJHkd 
Ma rch 3 !, 2019 

3 
I 
I 
0 
s 

Year ended 
Marc h 31. 2019 

93 
93 

93 

Year end ed 
March 3 1,2019 

91 0 
20 

930 

Yea r end ed 
Mar ch 3 !, 2019 

47 

so 



PIINDUSTHIES Ll~ IITED 

NOTES T O CONSQLJJ)ATED FINANCIA L STATE,\ l £t\'TS 

(All :~mounts in f million, uulcss othc1·wisc sc:u cd) 

n) 

27 li\C0.\ 1 E Tt\ X EX PENSE 

In co me lax expense r ecognized in Profit und Loss 

C urren I tax expense 
Current ta~ on profits for the year 
Adj ustment of current tax for prior year periods 
Total Current tax expense 

Oefen·cd tax ex pense 
(Decrease) I Increase in Deferred ta~ liability 
Decrease I (Increase) in Deferred tax assets 
Net Deferred tax expense 

Tota l In co me tax expense 

b) Income tax related to it ems r ecognised in Other comprehensive income during the yea r 

Remeasuremcnt of defined benefit plans 
Effective portion on cash tlow hedges 
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operation 

Income tax charged to Oth er comprehensive i111·omc 

c) Recon cilinlion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied l>y Ind ia 's tax ra te 

Accounting profit before tax 
Tax at India's statutory income tax rate@ 34.944% (March 31, 2019: 34.944%) 
Adjustment in respect of current income ta~ of previous years 
Adjustment in respect of interest under 2341\/BIC of Income Ta~ Act 
Effect of concessions (expenditure on research and development) 
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (operations in tax free zone) 
Difference in overseas tax rate 
Effect of lower income tax rate 
Effect of change in tax rate 
Effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income 

I ncornc Tax Ex pense 

d) Uru·ccognized temporary diffcrcntcs 

T emporary diffe rence re l~ting to inves tments in subsidiaries for which deferred 
tax li~ b ili t i cs hnve not been r·ecognised: 

Undistributed earnings 
Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities relating to the above temporary 

differences@ 34.944% (March 31, 2019: 34.944%) 

Year ended 
i'vl nrch 31,2020 

1,246 
13 

1,259 

377 
(64) 
313 

1,572 

Yea r ended 
Ma rch 31,2020 

(8) 

(294) 
I 

(301) 

Year ended 
March 3 1,2020 

6,138 
2,1-15 

13 

( 156) 
(426) 

(0) 
{16) 

12 

1,572 

Year ended 
March 3L 2020 

2.607 
911 

Ye11r ended 
Mardt 31 ,2019 

1,192 
(16) 

I 176 

58 
43 

LOJ 

1,277 

Ye>ll' end ed 
March 31,201 9 

{I) 

42 
0 

.j) 

Year end ed 
March 3 1, 2019 

5,379 
1,880 

(16) 

(121) 
(486) 

(0) 

I 
8 

II 

1,277 

Year ended 
March 3 1, 2019 

222 
78 

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have undistributed earnings which, if paid out as dividends, would be subject to ta~ in the hands of the recipient. An assessable 
temporary difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has been recogn ised as the Group is al>le to control the timing of distribut ions from the subsidiaries. These 
subsidiaries are not expected to distribute these profits in foreseeal>lc future. 



PI INDUSTRIES Lli\ IITED 

NOTES T O CONSOLI Dr\ TED FINANCIAL ST ATE,\ lENTS 

(All :11nounts in ~ 111illion, unless otheow isc stated) 

28 RESEA I~CI I & 1) 1':\'ELOP.\' IENT EXI'L'\SES 

Details of Expenditure on Resea rch & Developmeut Facilities/ d ivision of t he group recog nised by Department of Scieutitic & lnd ustrial Research inclu ding 
new facili ty fo t· which a ppli~a t ion has been made duriu g I he yrar. 

a) Revcuuc Expcnditut·c 

O th er In come 

E mployee Beuclit 1\ xpcnscs 

Salaries, Wages & Bonus 
Contributions to Provident & other funds 
Employee Welfare Expenses 

Raw & Paclting i\ laterials C ons umed 
Other Expenses 
Laboratory & testing Material 
Power. Fuel & Water 

Consumption of stores & spares 
Testing & analysis 
Travelling & conveyance 
Rates and taxes 

Printing & Stationery 
Bank Charges 
Legal & professional fees 
l'vl iscellaneous Expenses 

Depreciation 

Depreciation 

Total Expend itu re 

b) Ca pita l Expend iture 

Descri pt ion 

Buildings 
Equipments & Others 

29 [o;,\ RNING PER S I I.\. R£ (EPS) 

a) Net Profit for Basic and Diluted EPS 

b) Number of Equity Shares at the begi nning of the year 
Add: Issue of Shares under ESOP 

Sub-tota l 
Less : Adjustment of own shares held under ESOP T rust 
Tota l Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the Period 

TOTA l . 

TOTAL 

T OTAL 

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the period- Basic 
A dd : Weighted Average number of Equity Shares arising out of grant of Employee Stock optiun 
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year- Diluted 

Earning Per ShHc - Basic('() 
Earning per share- Diluted ('t') 

Face val ue pe r shnre (~ 

Year ended Year ended 
Marc h 31, 2020 Ma rch 31,201 9 

0 0 

0 0 

374 290 
26 20 
8 7 

-108 3 17 

11 5 109 

7 1 58 
51 40 
47 65 
26 13 
21 17 
0 0 
I 0 
0 0 

3 1 33 
4 1 36 

289 262 

108 100 
920 788 

920 788 

Year ended Yeao· end ed 

1\larch 31 ,2020 i\•l a r ch 3 1,2019 
55 0 

174 50 

229 50 

Year end ed Year end ed 
March 31 , 2020 March31 ,2019 

4,SGG 4,102 

13,80,30,65 1 13,79,07,3 18 
77,342 1,23,333 

13,8 1M ,993 13,80,30,651 
( I ,48,857) (2,31 ,200) 

13,79,59, 136 13,77,99,451 

13,80,35, I 0 I 13,79,47,190 
2,840 40,927 

13,80,37,941 13,79,88,11 7 

33.08 29.74 
33.08 29.73 

1.00 1.00 



PI INDUSTRIES LIM ITED 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
(All amount in~ million, unless otherwise stated) 

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

In respect of entities incorporated in India, the Group participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, 

the assets of which are held (where funded) in separately administered funds. For defined contribution schemes 

the amount charged to the statements of profit or loss is the tota l of contributions payable in the year. 

Provident Fund 

In accordance w ith the Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (EPF and MP Act), 

employees are entitl ed to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. Employers and employees both contribute 

@12% of wages in contribution accounts. Further, the employers also contribute towards administration of the 

benefits under th e EPF and MP Act. All employees have an option to make additional voluntary contributions as 

permissible under the Act. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Employee 

Provident Fund organ ization. The Group has no further obl igations under the fund managed by the Employee 

Provident Fund Organization (EPFO) beyond its month ly contributions which are charged to the statements of 

profit or loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or 

resignation f rom th e EPFO. 

Gratuity Plan 

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, PI Industries Limited has established a defined benefit 

plan (the "Gratuity Plan"). The Gratu ity Plan provides a lump sum payment to t he employees at the time of 

retirement or resignation (after 5 years of continued services of employment), being an amount based on the 

respective employee's last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Group. Based on 

actu arial va luations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in fu ll for the benefit obligation over and 

above the funds held in the Gratu ity Plan. Remeasurements as a resu lt of experience adjustments and changes in 

actuarial assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Long term compensated absences 

The liabilities for compensated absence namely earned and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly 

within 12 months after the end of t he period in which the employees render the related service. They are 

th erefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided 

by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected un it credit method. Remeasurements as a 

result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit and loss. 

a) Defined Contribution Plans:-

The Group has recognised an expense of~ 116 (Previous Year~ 96) towards the defined contribution plan. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 
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b) Defined benefits pl ans - as per actuarial va luation 

Change in present value of obligation during the year 

Year ended March 31, 2020 

Gratu ity 

Funded Non-funded 

Present value of obligation at the beginning 259 0 
ofthe year 

On account of Acquisition (refer note 44) 83 

Total amount included in profit 
and loss*: 

-Current Service Cost 44 0 
- Interest Cost 21 0 
- Past Service Cost - -

Tota l amount included in OCI: 
Remeasurement related to gratu ity: 
Actuariallosses/(gains) ar ising from: 
- Demographic Assumption 0 -

- Financia l assumption 25 0 
-Experience Judgement 0 0 
Others 
Benefits Paid (23) -

Present Value of obligation as at year-end 409 0 

* Includes expenses reclassified to capital work in progress~ 6 (March 31, 2019 ~ 4) 

II Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during t he year 

Year ended March 31, 2019 

Gratuity 

Funded Non-funded 

223 0 

32 1 
17 0 

0 -

0 -

1 0 
2 0 

(16) -
259 1 

Year ended March 31, 
2020 

Year ended March 
31,2019 

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 
On account of acquisit ion (refer note 44) 

Included in profit and loss: 
Expected return on plan assets 

Included in OCI : 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets 

Others: 
Employer's contribut ion 
Benefits paid 
Claim received during the year from fu nd manager 
Pending claim with fund manager 

Plan assets at the end of t he year 

81 
61 

6 

6 

148 

(20) 

(2) 

280 

88 

7 

2 

(3) 
(13) 

81 
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The plan assets are managed by t he Grat uity Trust form ed by the Group. The management of 100% of the fu nds is 

entrusted w ith the Life Insurance Corporat ion of India, HDFC Standa rd Life Insura nce Company Ltd. and J<ota k 

Mahindra Old Mutual Life Insurance Ltd., whose pattern of investment is not ava ilable w ith th e Group. 

Ill Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Present Value of obligation as at yea r-end 
Fa ir va lue of plan assets at year-end 
Funded st at us {Surplus/(Deficit)} 

Net Asset/(Liability) 

IV Bifurcation of PBO at the end of the year 

1 
2 

v 
1 
2 
3 
4 

Current Liabi lity 
Non-Current Liability 

Actuarial Assumptions 
Discount Rate 
Expected rate of return on plan assets 
Morta lity Table 
Sa lary Esca lation 

Year ended March 31, 2020 
Gratuity 

Funded Non-funded 

409 1 
280 -

{129) (0) 
{129) (1} 

Year ended March 31, 2020 
Gratu ity 

Funded Non-funded 

- -
129 1 

6.79% 6.79% 
7.50% NA 

IALM (2006-08) IALM {2006-08) 
7.00% 7.00% 

Year ended March 31, 2019 

Gratuity 
Funded Non-fu nded 

259 1 
81 -

(178) (O) 
{178} {1} 

Year ended March 31, 2019 
Gratuity 

Funded Non-funded 

- -
178 1 

7.65% 7.65% 
7.50% NA 

IALM (2006-08) IALM {2006-08) 
7.00% 7.00% 

VI The expected contribution for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financia l yea r w ill be' 65. 

VII Sensitivity Analysis 

Gratuity Year ended M arch 31, 2020 

Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (0.50% movement) (16) 16 

Future salary growth (0.50 % movement) 17 (17) 

VIII M aturit y Prof ile of Defined Benef it Obligatio n 

Year ended March 31, 2020 

Within the next 12 months 

Between 2-5 years 

Beyond 5 years 

Gratuity 

Funded Non-funded 

34 

90 

0 

0 

Year ended M arch 31, 2019 

Increase Decrease 

(11) 11 

12 (12) 

Year ended March 31, 2019 

Gratuity 

Funded Non-funded 

14 

41 

204 

0 

0 

0 
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IX Description of Risk Exposures: 

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over t ime. As such Group is 

exposed to various risks as follow-

A) Sa lary Increases- Actual sala ry increases wil l increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate 

assumption in future valuations wil l also increase the liability. 

B) Investment Risk - If Plan is fu nded then the mismatch between assets and liabil ities and actual return on assets 

being lower than t he discount rate assumed at the last valuat ion date can impact the liability. 

C) Discount Rate: Reduction in discount ra te in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability. 

D) M ortality & disability- Actu al deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher t han assumed in t he valuation 

can impact the liabi lities. 

E) Withdrawa ls - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed wit hdrawals and change of 

withdrawa l rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan's liabi li ty. 

C) Long term compensat ed absences 

The provision for long term compensated absences covers the Group's liability for earned and sick leave, the 

amount of provision recogn ised is~ 157 (March 31, 2019 ~ 119). 

32 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS 

Employee St ock Option Plan 

The Group provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The relevant details of the scheme are as 

fo llows: 

In December 2010, the Board of Directors approved the Pll ESOP 2010 Scheme in order to reward the employees 

for their past associat ion and performance as we ll as to mot ivate t hem to contribute to the growth and 

profitability of the Group (including subsidiary companies) w ith an intent to attract and reta in ta lent in the 

organization. The aforesa id scheme was duly approved by shareholders in its EGM held on January 21, 2011 and is 

adm iniste red th rough independent trust. The Compensation Committee of t he Board has granted following 

options under Pll ESOP 2010 Scheme to certain category of employees as per criteria laid down by Compensation 

Committee of t he Board. 

l<ey terms of t he scheme 

Date of Shareholder's Approval 

Total Number of Options approved 

Vesting Requ irements 

The Pricing Formula 

M aximum t erm of Options granted (years) 

Method of Settlement 

Source of shares 

Variation in terms of ESOP 

21-Jan-11 

62,62,090 

Opt ions sha ll vest after a lock in period of one year from the date 

of grant. Option sha ll vest in four years as per the Group's ESOP 

plan. (Refer vest ing schedule below) 

10% discount t o market price on Nat iona l Stock Exchange a day 

prior to date of grant 

10 yea rs 

Shares 

Primary-Fresh equity allotment by Group to the Trust 

Nil 
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Vesting schedule 

Exercisable period 

Vesting condition 

Under the plan, pa rt icipants are granted opt ions which vests at 

15%, 25%, 30%, 30% respectively each year over a period of 4 

years or as defined in Grant letter. 

Once vested, t he options remain excisable for a period of six 

years 

Vesting shall be computed t hrough performance evaluation 

method based on cond itions pre-communicated to employees. 

I. Option Movement during the year ended March 2019 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

No. of Options Wt. avg exercise No. of Wt. avg exercise Price 
Price {in ~) Options (in~) 

No. of Options Outstanding at 4,39,351 592.87 6,87,924 492.55 
the beginn ing of the year 
Options Granted during the - NA - NA 
yea r 
Options Forfeited I 72,488 711.90 84,882 581.35 
Surrendered during the year 
Total number of shares arising 1,59,685 499.27 1,63,691 177.59 

as a resu It of exercise of 
options 
Money realised by exercise of 80 NA 29 NA 

options (~ Mn) 
Number of options 2,07,178 623.36 4,39,351 592.87 
Outstanding at t he end of the 

year 
Number of Options 1,31,036 574 .. 51 2,31,200 499.46 

exercisable at the end of the 
year 

II. Weighted Average rema ining contractual li fe 

Range of Exercise Price M arch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

No. of Options Weighted average No. of Options Weighted average 
Outstanding contractual life Outstanding contractual li fe (years) 

(years) 

25 to 75 - NA - NA 

75 t o 150 24,349 3.16 54,716 4.11 

150 to 450 5,254 4.47 45,958 5.34 

450 to 750 177,575 5.57 3,38,677 5.55 

Ill. Weighted average Fair Value of Options granted during t he year 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Exercise price is less than market price (in ~) * NA NA 
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IV. The weighted average market price of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2020 is~ 1327 (March 

31, 2019 is~ 84) 

V. Method and Assumptions used t o estimate t he fa ir va lue of options gran ted during the year ended: 

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Opti on Pricing model 

The Assumptions used in the model are as follows: 

March 31, 2020 

Variables Weighted Average * 

1. Risk Free Interest Rate NA 
2. Expected Life(in years) NA 
3. Expected Volatil ity NA 
4. Dividend Yield NA 
5. Exercise Price ( in ~) NA 
6. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of NA 
the opt ion grant.(in ~) 

* No options granted during the year ended M arch 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019. 

VI. Particulars 

Employee Option plan expense 
Total liability at the end of the period 

33 CAPITAL & OTHER COMMITMENT 

March 31, 2020 

(4) 
42 

March 31, 2019 

Weighted Average 

NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 
NA 

March 31, 2019 

13 

73 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
A Estimated Amount of Contracts remaining t o be executed on capital 

account and not provided for {Net of advances~ 298 (March 31, 2019: ~ 
385) 

B Export Commitment 
c Leases 

Operating lease commitments - As lessee 

388 1,461 

5712 5,202 

The Company leases various offices, warehouses, godown, IT equ ipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are 

typica lly made for fixed periods of 6 months to 9 yea rs. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and 

renewa l rights. From April 1, 2019, the company has recogn ised Right of Use Assets for these leases except for 

short term and low va lue leases, see note 24 and Note 41 for further information 

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable short term operating leases for each of the 

f ollowing periods: 

-Payable within one yea r 
-Lat er than one year and not later t han f ive yea rs 
-Later than f ive years 
-Lease payments recognised in Statemen t of Profit and Loss (Refer note 
24) 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

24 
26 

0 

81 

156 
172 

0 

260 
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

March 31, 2020 

a. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt; * 
(refer note (i) below) 
- Sa les Tax including Goods and Service Tax 62 
- Excise Duty 248 
- Income Tax 125 
- ESI 1 
- Oth er matters, including claims relating to customers, labour 19 
and third parti es etc. 

b. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees; 
- Performance bank guarantees 442 

c. Other money for which the Group is contingently liable 
- Letter of Credit 1,393 

Notes: 

(i) Represents amounts as stated in Demand Order excluding interest and pena lty 

March 31, 2019 

48 
21 

78 
1 

35 

259 

1,427 

* Pending reso lution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to est imate the timings 

of t he cash o utflows, if any, in respect of th e above as it is determinable on ly on receipt of the judgements/ 

decisions pending with various forums I authorities. 

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequat ely provided for where 

provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities wh ere applicable, in its financial stat ements. The 

Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings t o have a materially adverse effect on its financial 

position. 

In Group's assessment the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir 

And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal" and t he re lated circu lar (Circular No. 

C-1/ 1{33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya M andir/284) dated March 20, 2019 and circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekanand 

Vidyamandir/717 dated August 28, 2019 issued by th e Employees' Provident Fund Organisation in re lation to non­

exclusion of cert ain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of 

dete rmining contribution to provident f und under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions 

Act , 1952 and computation of liability to be done as per provision of Para 2(f) of EPF Scheme, 1952, the aforesa id 

matter is not like ly to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provis ion has been made in these Financial 

Statements. 
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35 OPERATING SEGMENT 

An operating segmen t is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities from which it 

earns revenues and incurs expenses and for wh ich discrete financial information is ava ilable. The operating 

segments are based on the Group's internal reporting structure and the manner in which operat ing results are 

reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). 

The Group has evaluated the applicability of segment reporting and has concluded that since the Group is 

operating in the f ield of Agro Chemicals both in the domestic and export markets and the CODM reviews the 

overal l performance of the agro chemica ls business, accordingly the Group has one reportable business segment 

viz. Agro Chemicals. 

I Revenue: 

A. Information about product revenues: 

The Group is in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro Chemicals. The amount of its revenue 

from external customers broken down by products is shown in the table below: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Active Ingredients and Intermediates 25,737 19,205 
Formulations 7,700 9,030 
Others 228 174 

33,665 28,409 

B. Geographical Areas 

The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location 

of the customers is shown in the t able below (also refer note 40}: 

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
India 9,003 9,574 
Asia (other than India} 8,615 3,893 
North America 11,911 11,012 
Europe 2,715 2,802 
Rest of the World 1,421 1,128 

33,665 28,409 

II. The total of Non-current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets), broken down by 

location of the assets, is shown in the table below: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 
India 20,854 11,260 
Asia (other than India) 6 3 
Europe 5 3 

20,865 11,266 
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36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

Related party disclosure, as required by Indian Accounting Standard-24, is as below: 

a) Nature of Related Party relati onship 

I - Joint Ventures, Associat es and Controlled Trust: 

(a) So linnos Agro Sciences Private Limited. Associate 

(b) Pl l<umiai Private Lim ited . Joint Venture 

II - l<ey Management Personnel (I<MP) & their relatives with w hom t ransactions have taken place: 

(a) l<ey Management Personnel 

M r. Mayank Singha l Vice Chairman and Managing Director 

Mr. Rajn ish Sa rna Whole-Time Director 

Dr. Raman Ramachandran Managing Director & CEO (W.e.f July 1, 2019) 

M r. Narayan 1<. Seshadri Non-executive Director (Chairman) 

Mr. Pravin 1<. Laheri Non-executive Director 

Ms. Ramni Niru la Non-executive Director 

Mr. Ravi Narain Non-executive Director (Unti l May 1, 2019) 

Mr. Arvind Singhal Non-execut ive Di rector 

Dr. Tanjore Soundararajan Ba lganesh Non-executive Director 

(b) Relatives of l<ey M anagement Personnel 

Mr. Sa lil Singhal Father of Mr. Mayank Singhal 

Ms. Madhu Singha l 

Ms. Pooja Singhal 

Mother of Mr. Mayanl< Singhal 

Sis ter of M r. Mayank Singhal 

Ill - Ent ities controlled by I<MP with w hom t ransactions have t aken place: 

(a) PI Foundation 
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b) The followi ng transactions w ere carried out with re lated part ies in the ordinary course of business : 

2019-20 2018-19 

Type of Transa ctions Ba lance Transactions Balance 
Nature of Transaction 

re lation during t he out standing during the outst anding 

period Dr {Cr) period Dr (Cr) 

Com~ensation to I<MP 

-Short term employee benefits 212 159 

-Post employment benefits 27 19 

-Commission and other benefits a(ii ) (a) 15 19 

to non-executive/ independent 
directors 

Total 254 (180) 197 (158) 

Other transactions 

Purchase of services a(ii) (b) 13 {2) 14 {4) 

Purchase of services a(i )(a) - - 1 -

Purchase of goods a(i)(b) 239 (181) - -

Sa le of services a(i)(a) 1 - 1 -

Sa le of goods a(i)(b) 161 58 - -
Rent & Power cost Received a(i){a) 4 - 1 -

Rent & Power cost Received a(i)(b) 4 - - -

Rent & Power cost paid a(ii){b) 2 0 2 -

Recovery of Dues on account of a(ii)(b) 0 - 0 -

expenses incurred 
Donation a(iii) 5 - 4 -

Investm ent purchased a(i)(b) - - 95 -

Dividend paid a( ii)(a) 147 - 164 -

a(ii)(b) 175 - 194 -

Travel & Other expenditure a(ii)(a) 37 11 25 6 

incurred a(ii)(b) 5 - 3 

Contribution t owards CSR a(iii) 102 - 93 

Act ivit ies 

c) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parti es 

The sales and purchases I se rvices rendered to and from related part ies are made on te rms equiva lent t o t hose 

that preva il in arm 's length transact ions. Outst anding balances at the yea r-end are unsecured and inte rest f ree 

and settlement occurs in cash . There have been no guarantees provided or rece ived for any related pa rty 

receiva bles or payables. For t he yea r ended March 31, 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment of 

receivabl es relating to amounts owed by relat ed parties (M arch 31, 2019 : '< Nil). This assessment is undertaken 

each fi nancial yea r th rough examining t he f inancial pos it ion of t he related party and the market in w hich th e 

re lated party operates. 

-

-
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37 DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 

2006 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Principa l Interest Principal Interest 
Amount Amount Amount Amount 

Principal amount and Interest due th ereon 83 - 48 -
remain ing unpaid to any supplier as on 31st 
March 

Interest paid by the Group in t erms of 277 1 53 1 
Section 16 of the MSMED Act along w ith 
th e amounts of the payment made t o the 
supplier beyond th e appo inted day during 
the accoun t ing year 

Interest due and payable for the period of - - - -

delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appo inted day during 
the year) but w ithout add ing the interest 
specified under MSM ED Act. 

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at - - - -

the end of the year 

Further interes t rema ining due and payable - - - -

in succeeding years, until such date w hen 
th e interest dues as above are actually paid 
to the sma ll enterprise for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure 
under Section 23 of MSMED Act. 
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38 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE Ill TO COMPANIES ACT 2013, OF ENTITIES 

CONSOLIDATED AS SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURE AND OTHER CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

March 31, 2020 

Name of the Entity Net Assets, i.e., total Share in profit or loss Share in other Share in total 

assets minus total comprehensive comprehensive 

liabilities income income 

As% of Amount As% of Amoun t As% of Amou As% o f Amount 
conso lida consolidate conso lid nt consol id 
t ed net d profit or a ted a ted 
assets loss profit or profit or 

loss loss 

Parent 
PI Industries Limited 87.97% 25,911 96.30% 4,423 -100.4% (560) 95.88% 3,864 

Subsid iaries Ind ian 
PI Life Science 
Limited 1.03% 303 0.54% 25 -0.00% (0) 0.60% 25 

PILL finan ce and 
investments Limited 0.14% 42 0.02% 1 0.00% 0 0.02% 1 

Jivagro 0.01% 2 0.00% (0) 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 

lsagro (Asia) 
Agrochemicals 
Private Ltd 10.41% 3,067 2.82% 130 0.40% 2 3.28% 132 

Subsidiaries Foreign 

PI Japan Limited 0.07% 22 0.07% 3 0.00% 0 0.07% 3 

Associates 
Solin nos Agro 
Sc iences Private 
Limited 0.02% 6 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 

Joint Venture 
PI l<umiai Privat e 
Limited 0.36% 103 0. 17% 8 0.00% 0 0.20% 8 
Controlled Trust 

PI ESOP Trust -0.01% -3 0.07% 3 0.00% 0 0.07% 3 

TOTAL 100% 25,453 100% 4,593 100% 558 100% 4,030 
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Name of the Entity Net Assets, i. e., total Share in profit or loss Share in other 
assets minus total comprehensive 

liabi li t ies income 

As% of Amount As% of Amount As% of Amou 
consolida consolidate consolid nt 
ted net d profit or a ted 
assets loss profit or 

loss 

Parent 
PI Industries Limited 98.56% 22,523 99.41% 4,078 99.75% 77 
Subsidiaries Indian 
PI Life Science 
Limited 0.77% 177 0.46% 19 -0.02% (0) 
PILL finance and 
investments Limited 0.18% 41 0.03% 1 0.00% -

Subsidiaries Foreign 
PI Japan Limited 0.07% 17 0.05% 2 0.27% 0 
Associates 
Solinnos Agro 
Sciences Private 
Limited 0.03% 6 0.01% 0 0.00% -
Joint Venture 
Pll<umiai Private 
Li mited 0.42% 96 0.00% 0 0.00% -

Controlled Trust 
PI ESOP Trust -0 .03% (6) 0.04% 2 0.00% -
TOTAL 100% 22,854 100% 4,102 100% 77 

March 31, 2019 

Share in total 
comprehensive 

income 

As% of Amount 
consolid 

a ted 
profit or 

loss 

99.41% 4,155 

0.46% 19 

0.03% 1 

0.05% 2 

0.01% 0 

0.00% 0 

0.04% 2 

100% 4,179 
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39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

1 Financial instruments- Fair values and r isk management 

A. Financial instruments by category 

March 31 2020 

Notes FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost 

Financial assets 

Non-current assets 

Investments 7(a) 70 - -

Loans 7(c) - - 61 

Derivative financial 7(g) - - -
instruments 
Other financia l asset 7(g) - - 82 

Current assets 
Investments 7(b) 1,325 - -
Tra de receivables 7(d) - - 6A65 

Cash and cash 7(e) - - 1,244 

equivalents 
Bank ba lances other 7(f) - - 98 
than cash and cash 
equiva lents 
Loans and advances 7(c) - - 83 

Derivative finan cial 7(g) - - -

instruments 
Other financial asset 7(g) - - 312 

TOTAL 1,395 - 8,345 

Financial liabilities 

Non-current 
liabilities 

Borrowings 15(a) - - 3,994 

Derivative financial 15(d) - 258 -

Other financial 15(d) - - 574 

liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Borrowings 15(b) - - 1,083 

Trade payables 15(c) - - 5,909 

Derivative financia l 15(d) - 508 -

Other financial 15(d) - - 2,460 

liabi liti es 

TOTAL - 766 14,020 

FVTPL 

70 
-

-

-

1,119 
-
-

-

-
-

-
1,189 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

March 31 2019 

FVTOCI Amortised Cost 

- -

- 41 

90 -

- 59 

- -

- 6,618 
- 614 

- 278 

- 63 
120 -

- 134 

210 7,807 

- 99 
- -

- 190 

- 5,130 
- -

- 2,419 

- 7,838 
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B. Fair va lue hierarchy 

This section expla ins the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial 

instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair va lue and (b) measured at amortised cost and for wh ich 

fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs 

used in determining fair va lue, the Group has classified its financia l instruments int o the th ree levels prescribed 

under the accounting standa rd. An explanation of each level fo llows underneath the table. 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements 

March 31 2020 March 31 2019 

Notes Levell Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level2 Level 
3 

Financial assets 
Investment in equ ity instruments 7(a) 5 - 65 5 - 65 
Investment in mutual funds 7(b) 1,325 - - 1,119 - -

Derivative financia l inst ruments 7(g) - - - - 210 -

1,330 - 65 1,124 210 65 

Financial liabilities 
Derivat ive financia l inst ruments 15(d) - 766 - - - -

- 766 - - - -

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Notes Level 1 Level2 Level3 Level 1 Level 2 Level3 
Financial assets 

Security deposits 7(c) 
89 - - - - 48 

Loans and advances to 7(c) 
- - -

related parties - - 3 

TOTAL - - 89 - - 51 

Financia l li abilities 
Security deposits from 

15(d) 
contractors - - 3 - - 4 

TOTAL - - 3 - - 4 

The fair value of cash and cas h equiva lents, bank ba lances other than Cash and cash equiva lents, trade 

receivables, short term loans, contract assets, current financial assets, trade payables, current financia l liabilities 

and borrowings approximate t he ir ca rry ing amount, largely due to t he short-term nature of these inst ruments. 

Long-term debt has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short intervals. Accordingly, 

the ca rrying va lue of such long-term debt approximates fair value. Fair value for security deposits (other than 

perpetua l security depos its) has been presented in the above table. Fair value for all other non-current assets and 

liabilities is equiva lent to the amortised cost, interest rate on them is equiva lent to the market rate of interest. 
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Fair va lue hierarchy 

The table shown above analyses financial instruments ca rried at f ai r va lue, by va luation method. The different 

levels have been defined below: 

Level 1 - Th is includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The mutual funds are valued using 

closing net assets va lue (NAV). 

Level 2- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using 

valu ation t echniques which maximise the use of observable market data and re ly as little as possible on entity­

specif ic estimates. If all sign ificant inputs required to fair va lue an instrument are observable, the instrument is 

included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 

included in leve l 3. 

There are no transfers between Ievell, leve l 2 and level 3 during the yea r. 

Valuation technique used to determine fair value: 

Specif ic valuation techniques used to value financia l instruments include: 

- the use of quoted market prices 

-the fair va lue of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forwa rd exchange rates at the balance 

sheet date 

- th e fair value of the remaining f inancial instruments is determined using discounted cash f low ana lysis. 

The fair va lues for security depos its (assets & liabilities) were ca lculated based on present values of cash flows 

and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own credit risk. They are class ified as level 3 fa ir 

va lues in the fai r va lue hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inpu ts including counterparty credit. 

40 FINANCIAL RISJ< MANAGEMENT 

Risl< management framework 

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Th e Group's board of directors has the overa ll 

responsibility for the management of these risks and is supported by Management Advisory Committee that 

advises on the appropriate f inancial risk governance framework. The Group has risk management policies and 

systems in place which are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and price risk along w ith the 

Group's activit ies. The Group's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the financial 

risk management pol icies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of risk management framework in relat ion to 

the risks faced by the Group. 

This not e explains the sources of risk which the ent ity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and 

impact of hedge accounting in the financia l statements. 

I. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is th e risk of f inancia l loss to the Group if a customer or coun terparty to a f inancial instrument fa ils to 

meet its contractual ob ligation, and arises from the operating activities primarily (trade receivables) and from its 

financing activities including cash and cas h equivalents, deposits w ith banks, derivat ives and other f inancial 

instruments. The carryi ng amount of f inancial assets represents the maximum cred it exposure and is as fo llows: 
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Trade and other receivables and contract assets 

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 

However, management also considers the fa ctors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including 

the defau lt risk of the industry and country in which customers operate. 

The Group has established a cred it policy under which each customer is analysed individually fo r cred itworthiness 

before the Group's cred it terms are offered. Credit risk is managed th rough credit approvals, establish ing credit 

lim its and continuously monitoring the creditworth iness of customers to wh ich the Group grants credit terms in 

the normal cou rse of business. Cred it limits are established for each customer and reviewed period ica lly. Any 

sales order exceeding those limits require approval from the appropriate authority. There is one customer having 

revenue of~ 12,353 (March 31, 2019 ~ 9,551) including an amount of~ 7,039 and~ 5,314 (March 31, 2019 ~ 

7,053 and~ 1,578) arising from shipments to United States of America and Japan respectively. 

The concentration of credit risk is limited in do.mest ic market due to the fact that the customer base is large and 

unrelated. Th e Group's exports are mainly carried out in countries wh ich have stable economic conditions, whe re 

the concentration is relatively higher, however the credit risk is low as the customers have good credit ratings. 

The Group computes an allowance for impairment of trade receivables based on a simplified approach, t hat 

represents its expected cred it losses. The Group uses an allowance mat rix to measure the expected credit loss of 

trade receivables. Loss rates are based on actua l credit loss experienced over t he past 3 years. These loss ra tes 

are adjusted by considering the available, reasonable and supportive forward looking information. 

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss: 

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables and lni'erest and Other charges recoverable from 

customer 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Opening balance 442 273 
On account of acquisition {refer note 44) 153 0 
Changes in loss allowance 41 169 
Closing balance 636 442 

Cash and cash equivalents, deposits w ith banks, mutual funds and other financial instruments 

Credit risk from balances with banks and other financial instruments is managed by Group in accordance with its 

policy. Investments of surplus funds are made on ly with approved counterparties and within credit l imits ass igned 

t o each counterparty. Counterparty cred it limits are reviewed by the management and may be upda ted 

throughout the year. Group also invests in mutual funds based on the credit ratings, these are reviewed for 

safety, liquidity and yield on regu lar basis. 

Impairment on cash and cas h equiva lents, deposits and other fina ncia l instruments has been measured on the 12-

month expected credit loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Group considers that its 

cash and cash equ ivalents have low credit risk based on external credit ratings of counterparties. 

Based on the assessment there is no impairment in the above financia l assets. 
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Derivatives 

The derivatives are entered into with banks and financial institution counterparties which have low credit risk 

based on external credit ratings of counterparties. 

Exposure to credit risk: 

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses recognized represents the maximum 

credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 was as follows: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Trade receivables 6,465 6,618 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,244 614 
Bank balances other than above 98 278 
Investments 1,325 1,119 
Loans 144 104 
Other financial assets 317 403 
TOTAL 9,593 9,136 

II. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to 

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Group's reputation. Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, the Group maintains 

flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. 

Management monitors rolling forecast of Group's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities 

below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expect ed cash flows. In addition, the Group's liquidity 

management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets 

necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against interna l and external regulatory 

requirements and maintaining debt financing plans. 

(a) Financing arrangements 

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Expiring within one year 

- Fund based (Floating rate) 3,983 1,999 

-Non fund based (Fixed rate) 631 1,164 
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(b) Maturities of f inancial liabi lities 

The following are the rema ining cont ractual maturities of f inancial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts 

are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting 

agreements. 

Contractual cash f lows 

March 31, 2020 Total 3 months or 3-12 1-2 years 2-5 More 
less months years than 5 

years 

Non-derivative f inancial liabilities 
Term Loans from Banks 4,128 108 219 1,361 2A40 -

Interest Accrued but not due on 12 12 - - - -
Working capita l 1,083 1,083 
Interest Payment on Term Loan 691 47 193 234 217 -

Trade Payables {Due to micro and small 83 83 - - - -

ent erprises) 
Trade Payables {Other Trade Paya bles) 5,826 5,826 - - - -

Employee payables 642 231 411 - - -

Security Deposits f rom Dealers 255 - - - - 255 
Security Deposits from Contractors 3 3 - - - -
Unclaimed Dividends 7 7 - - - -

Creditors for Capital Purchases 502 502 - - - -

Lease liability 504 71 113 133 157 30 

Other Payable 1,013 652 361 - - -

TOTAL 14,749 8,625 1,297 1,728 2,814 285 
Contractual cash flows 

March 31, 2019 Total 3 months 3-12 1-2 years 2-5 More 
or less months years than 5 

years 

Non-derivative financia l liabi lities 

Term Loans from Banks 492 99 294 99 - -

Interest Accrued but not due on 2 2 - - - -
Borrowings 
Trade Payables (Due to micro and small 48 48 - - - -
enterprises) 
Trade Payables (Other Trade Payables) 5,082 4,801 281 - - -

Employee payables 523 180 343 - - -

Security Deposits from Dealers 189 - - - - 189 

Security Deposits from Contractors 4 1 2 1 - -

Unclaimed Dividends 7 7 - - - -

Creditors for Capita l Purchases 371 371 - - - -

Other Payable 1,120 287 833 - - -
TOTAL 7,838 5,796 1,753 100 - 189 
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Ill. Market risk 

Market risk is the risk t hat changes in market prices - such as fore ign exchange rates, interest rates and equity 

prices- will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financia l instruments. The objective of market 

risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising 

the return. 

The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to fore ign exchange rate risk (currency risk), interest rate 

risk and market va lue of its investments. Thus t he Group's exposure to market risk is a function of investing and 

borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies. 

Foreign Currency risk 

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primari ly with respect 

to the US$ and Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial t ransactions and recognised assets and 

liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional currency (~). The Group uses forward 

excha nge contracts to hedge its cu rrency risk and are used exclus ively for hedging purposes and not for trading 

and speculative purposes. These forward exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varied maturities 

depending upon t he primary host contract requ irement and risk management strategy of the Group. The 

objective of t he hedges is to min imise the vo latility of the~ cash flows of high ly probable forecast transactions. 

The Group's risk management policy is to hedge around SO% to 100% of the net exposure w ith forward exchange 

contracts. The remaining exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling fore ign currencies at spot 

rates when necessary to address short term requi rements. Hedging decisions are based on roll ing forex cash flow 

statement prepared and reviewed on a monthly basis . Such contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. 

The foreign exchange forward cont racts are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable future sa les 

transaction, t herefore the hedge ratio is 1:1. The Group's hedge policy allows for effective hedge re lationships to 

be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relat ionship, and through 

period ic prospective assessments to ensure t hat an economic rela tionsh ip exists between the hedged item and 

the hedged instrum ent. The Group enters into hedge instruments where the crit ica l terms of hedging instrument 

are aligned with terms of the hedged item. 

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash f low hedge where the cumu lat ive change in the va lue of the hedging 

instruments exceeds on an absolute basis the change in the va lue of the hedged item attributable to the hedged 

risk. Hedge ineffectiveness may arise due to the following: 

- the critica l terms of the hedging instrument and the hedged item differ (i.e. nominal amounts, timing of the 

forecast transact ion, interest resets changes from what was originally estimated), or 

-differences arise between the credit risk inherent withi n the hedged item and th e hedging instrument. 
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Foreign currency risk exposure -

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabi lities as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 expressed 

in Indian Rupees (~)are as below: 

Non derivative 

Particulars 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equ ivalents (EEFC 
Account) 
Tra de receivables 

Financial liabilities 
Borrowings (Term Loan) 
Trade payables 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (EEFC 
Account) 
Trade receivables 

Financial liab il iti es 
Borrowings (Term Loan) 
Trade payables 

USD 

10 

4,032 

4,042 

2,363 
3,227 
5,590 

USD 

60 

3,180 

3,240 

494 
1,396 

1,890 

March 31, 2020 

EURO JPY GBP CHF 

27 

81 15 

108 15 

93 1 1 
93 1 1 

M arch 31, 2019 
EURO JPY GBP CHF 

146 

146 

18 2 0 0 

18 2 0 0 

The following signif icant exchange rates have been appl ied during the year. 

Year-end spot rate (~) 

M arch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

USD 75.67 69. 16 

EUR 82.77 77 .67 
JPY (100) 69.63 62.42 
GBP 93.50 90.53 
CHF 78.29 69.43 
AUD 46.08 49.02 

AUD 

0 
0 

AUD 

0 

0 
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Sensit ivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee at March 31 would have affected t he 

measurement of financia l instruments denominated in foreign currencies and affected equ ity and profit or loss by 

the amounts shown below. This ana lysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 

constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. Impact of hedging, if any has not been 

considered here. A 5% increase or decrease is used when report ing foreign currency risk internally to key 

management personnel and represents management's assessment of th e reasonably possible change in foreign 

currency rate. 

Profit or loss, net of tax Impact on other components of 
equity, net of tax 

Effect in ' Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

March 31, 2020 
5% movement 
USD (SO) so - -

EUR 0 (D) - -
JPY (100) 49 (49) - -
GBP (O) 0 - -

(1) 1 - -

Profit or loss, net of tax Impact on other components of 
equity, net of tax 

Effect in ' Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 
March 31, 2019 
1% movement 

USD 9 (9) - -

EUR 1 (1) - -

JPY (100) (2) 2 - -

GBP (0) 0 - -
8 (8) - -

Interest rate risl< 

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long t erm foreign currency and working capital borrowings at 

variable rates. Group's investments are primarily in fixed deposits which are short term in natu re and do not 

expose it to interest rate risk. The Group regu larly eva luates the interest rate hedging requ irement to align w ith 

interest rate views and defined risk appetite, in order to ensure most cost effective interest rate risk 

management. 
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Exposure to interest rate risk 

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of 

th e Group is as follows. 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

Fixed-rate instruments 
Financia l assets 817 833 
Financial liabilit ies 1,740 -
Variable-rate instruments 

Financial liabilities 3,434 492 

TOTAL S,991 1,32S 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for f ixed-rate instruments 

The Grou p does not account for any f ixed-ra te financia l assets or financial liabil it ies at fa ir value th rough profit or 

loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date wou ld not affect profit or loss. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 

A reasonably possible change of 50 bp in interest rates would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss 

by t he amounts shown below. This ana lysis assumes that all other variables, in particu lar foreign currency 

exchange rates, rema in constant. 

Profit or loss Impact on other components of 
equity, net of tax 

SO bp increase 50 bp decrease SO bp increase SO bp decrease 

March 31, 2020 

Variable- rate instruments (11.17) 11.17 - -

Cash flow sensit ivity (net) (11.17) 11.17 - -

March 31, 2019 
Variable-rate instruments (1.61) 1.61 - -

Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1.61) 1.61 - -

IV. Price r isk 

The Group's exposure to price risk arises from investment in mutual funds and classified in the balance sheet as 

fair va lue through profit and loss. Mutua l fund investments are susceptible to market price r isk, ma inly arising 

from changes in the interest rates or market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments. 

However, due to very short tenor of the underlying portfolio in the liquid schemes, these do not pose any 

significant price risk. Group reviews t hese mutua l fund investments based on safety, liquidity and yield on regular 

basis. 
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V. Impact of Hedging activities 

(a). Disclosure of hedge accounting on fin ancial position 

March 31, 2020 

Type of hedge and risk No. of Nominal Carrying M aturity 
outstanding Value value of date 
contracts hedging 

instrument* 

Foreign exchange forward 217 17,758 765 April 2020 -

contracts September 
2023 

March 31, 2019 

Type of hedge and risk No. of Nominal Carrying Maturity 
outstanding Value value of date 
contracts hedging 

instrument* 

Fore ign exchange fo rward 150 11,637 210 Apri l 2019 -
contracts December 

2021 

* Refer Note No. 7(g) 

(b). Disclosu re of effects of hedge accounting on financial perform ance 

March 31, 2020 

Type of hedge Change in Hedge Amount 

Hedge Weighted 
ratio average 

strike 

price/rat 
e 

1:1 US$1: ~ 
75.89 

Hedge Weight 
ratio ed 

ave rag 
e strike 

price/r 
ate 

1:1 US$1: ~ 
69.16 

line item 
value of ineffectiveness reclassified affected in 
hedging recognised in from cash statement of 
instrument profit and loss f low profit and loss 
recognised in account hedging account 
other reserve to because of 
comprehensive profit and t his 
income (loss) reclassif ication 

Foreign exchange forward contracts (779) - 62 Revenue 

March 31, 2019 

Type of hedge Change in Hedge Amount Line item 
value of ineffectiveness reclassi fied affected in 
hedging recognised in from cash stat ement of 
instrument profit and loss f low profit and loss 
recognised in account hedging account 
other reserve to because of 
comprehensive profit and this 
income (loss) reclassification 

Foreign exchange forwa rd con tracts 1145) - (265) Revenue 

~~""") 
.... 0 

91 MC·30o ~_, 
I ~ .I .. ~~ 

Cu~1'' 
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(c). Movement in t he cash flow hedge reserve 

Effective portion of Cash flow Hedges Amount 

As at April 01, 2018 49 

Add: Effective portion of gains/(losses ) on cash f low hedges {145) 
Less: Amount reclassified to profit and loss account (265) 
Less: Deferred tax re lating to above 42 
As at March 31, 2019 127 

Add: Effective portion of gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges {779) 
Less: Amount reclassified to profit and loss account 62 
Less: Deferred tax relating to above {294) 

As at March 31, 2020 (420) 

(d) . Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonably possible strengthening (weaken ing) of t he Indian Rupee against US dollars at March 31 would have 

affected the measurement of foreign forward exchange contract designated as cash flow hedges and affected 

eq uity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 

parti cular int erest rates, rema in constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. A 5% increase 

or decrease is used w hen report ing foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and 

represents management 's assessment of the reasonably possible cha nge in foreign cu rrency rate. 

Profit or loss, net of tax Impact on other components of 
equity, net of tax 

Effect in~ St rengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

March 31, 2020 
5% movement 

USD - - 578 (578) 
March 31, 2019 
1% movement 
USD - - 76 (76) 

41 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market conf idence 

and to sustain future development of th e business. The primary objective of the Group's Capital management is to 

maximise shareholder's value. The Group manages its capital and makes adjustment t o it in light of the changes in 

economic and market conditions. 

The Group manages capital using gearing ratio, which is t otal debt divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at the 

end of the reporting period was as follows: 

Borrowings (Non-current) 
Borrowings (Current) 
Tota l Debt 
Total Equity 
Debt to Equity rat io 

A 

As at March 31, 2020 

3,994 
1,180 
5,174 

26,191 
0.20 

As at March 31, 2019 

99 
393 
492 

22,854 
0.02 
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital of the Group during the current 

and previous yea r. 

Also refer note 14 relating t o deta ils on dividend declared and distributed. 

42 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are: 

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 

Property, plant and equipment 
First charge 6,169 1,805 
Second charge 11,707 6,378 

Floating charge 18,400 16,875 
TOTAL 36,276 25,058 

43 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLI CIES 

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IND AS 116 Leases on the Company's consol idated f inancial 

statements. 

The group has adopted IND AS 116 Leases retrospectively f rom 1 April 2019 with the cumulative effect of 

initially applying the standard recognised at t he date of init ial application but has not restated comparatives for 

the 2018 reporting period. The group has measured right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, 

adjusted by the amounts of prepa id lease payments relating to lease recognised in the balance sheet 

immediately before the date of initial application. 

For leases previously classified as f inance leases the entity recognised the ca rrying amount of the lease asset 

and lease liability immediat ely before transition as the carrying amount of the right of use asset and the lease 

liabil ity at the date of ini t ial applicat ion. 

The measuremen t principles of lnd AS 116 are only applied after that date. 

(i} Practical Expedient Applied: In applying lnd AS 116 for the f irst time, the group has used the fo llowing 

practical expedients permitted by the standard: 

• Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 

2019 as short-te rm leases 

• Excluding all lease having underlying asset having va lue less than INR 0.25 for lease accounting as 

low value assets. 

• Exclud ing init ial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of in it ial 

application, and 

The group has also elected not t o reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at the date of initia l 

application. Instead, for contracts entered date the group relied on its 
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assessment made applying lnd AS 17 and Interpretation for Determining whether an Arrangement contains 

a Lease. 

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities 

On adoption of lnd AS 116, t he group recognised lease liabilities in re lation to leases which had previously 

been class ified as 'operating leases' under the principles of lnd AS 17 Leases. These liabilit ies we re 

measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incrementa l 

bor rowin g rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the 

lease liabil ities on 1 Apri l 2019 was 10% p.a. 

Particulars Amount 

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019 328 

Discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of at the date of initi al 

Application 462 

Add: finance lease liabi lit ies recognised as at 31 M arch 2019 0 
(Less): short-term leases not recognised as a l iabil it y {17) 

(Less): low-va lue leases not recognised as a liability (25) 

Add/( less): adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and (3) 
termination options 

Lease liabil it y recognised as at 1 April 2019 417 
Of which are: 

Current lease liabilities 120 
Non-current lease l iabi lities 297 

(iii) Measurement of Right-of-Use assets 

The associat ed right-of-use assets for offi ces, wa rehouses, IT equipment and vehicles assets were 

measured at the amount equal to t he lease liabi lity, adjust ed by the amount of any prepa id or accrued 

lease payments relat ing t o that lease recognised in the balance sheet as at April1, 2019. 
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(iv) Amount recognised in the balance sheet related to leases: 

Particulars Ba lance as at M arch 31, Change on adoption of 

2019 IND AS 116 

Property, Plant and - 425 

equipment: Right of 

use assets 

Other Assets: Prepaid 8 0 

rent 

Other Financia l - 417 

liabilities: Lease 

Liability 

Retained Earnings 22,716 -

Deferred Tax Asset 141 -

(v) Amount Recognized in the statement of Profit or loss relating to leases 

Particulars Year ended 31st March, Changes d ue to 

2020 before adopt ing 

IND AS 116 
IND AS 116 

increase/ (decrease) 

Other Expenses 5,001 (197) 
Finance Cost 124 46 
Depreciation and 

1,183 184 
amortisation expense 

Profit before tax 
6,005 

[(increase)/ decrease] 
33 

Balance as at Apri l 1, 
2019 

425 

8 

417 

22,716 

141 

Yea r ended 31st March, 

2020 as reported 

4,804 

170 

1,367 

6,138 
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(vi) The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases: 

Particulars March 31, 2020 

Right of Use Asset: 

Bui ldings 

Office Equ ipment 

Vehicles 

Leasehold Land 

Tota l 

Lease Liabilit ies 

Current 

Non-Current 

Total 

Add ition of Right-of-use Asset during the 2019-20 financial year was ~ 184. 

44.BUSINESS COMBINATION: 

On December 27, 2019, the Group acquired 100% of t he issued equity shares in lsagro (Asia) 

Agrochemicals Private Limited, for consideration of INR 4,432. 

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acqu ired and goodwill are as fo llows: 

Purchase consideration Amount 

Total Purchase consideration (Refer note (ii) below) 4,432 

The assets and l iabilities recognised as a result of th e acquisition are as fo llows: 

258 

14 

190 

576 

1038 

184 

320 

504 
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Cash and cash equiva lents 

Fixed Deposits 

Current Investments 

Property, plant and equipment including Intangibles Assets (refer note 3) 

Intangibles (refer note 4) 

Capital Work in Progress 

Inventories 

Trade and other assets 

Trade and other payables 

Net deferred tax assets 

Net identifiable asset s acquired 
Add: Goodwill 

Total purchase consideration 

Fair Value 

87 

11 

1,037 

750 

327 

14 

780 

1,475 

(918) 

41 

3,604 

828 

4,432 

If any new information is obtained with in one year of the date of acquisition about facts and 

circumstances that existed at the date of acquisition identifies adjustments t o the above amounts, 

or any additional provisions that existed at the date of acquisition, then the accounting for the 

acquisition will be revised.(Aiso, refer note (i i) below) 

The goodwill is attributab le to lsagro's strong position, profitability and synergies expected to 

arise after the company's acqu isition of the subsidiary. 

i. Acquisition-related costs 

Acquisition-related costs of~ 7.4 are included in other expenses in profit or loss. 

ii. The Consideration for acquisition of lsagro (Asia) Agrochemica ls Private Limited includes an 

amount of~ 212 which is subject to final adjustments in accordance with share purchase 

agreement. 

iii. Acquired receivables 

The fair value of trade and other receivables is~ 1,475 and includes trade receivables with of 
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iv. Revenue and Profit Contribution 

The acquired business contributed revenues of~ 601 and net profit/( loss) after tax of~ 130 
to the group for the period from 28 December 2019 to 31 March 2020. If the acquisition had 
occurred on 1 April 2019, consolidated revenue and consolidated net profit for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 wou ld have been~ 36,077 a nd ~ 4,485 respectively. 

The goodwill is tested for impairment annually. The recoverable amount of Goodwill has been determined from a 

va lue in use calculation which require the use of assumptions. The value in use calculation uses cash flow 

forecasts based on the most recently approved financial budgets and business projections by the management, 

which cover a period of five years. Key assumptions underlying the value in use ca lculat ion are those regarding 

expected revenues and introduction of new trading products and a pre-tax discount rate of 15% per annum. Sales 

growth projections cons iders managements' expectati on of market development, current industry trends and 

pre-tax discount rate based on the relevant risks. 4% growth rate has been used to extrapolate the cash f low 

projections beyond the five-year period of the approved financia l budgets. The management believes that any 

reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the ca rrying amount to exceed the 

recove rable amount of the cas h generating unit. 

The lsagro business is to be reorganized such that the domestic retail activities undertaken by lsagro wi ll be 

transferred to Jivagro Limited and rest of the activities wi ll be merged into PI Industries. This reorganization will 

be undertaken with effect from the date of acquisition of the lsagro bus iness by PI Industries viz December 27, 

2019 through a scheme of reorganization to be filed before the National Company Law Tribuna l. The Board of 

Directors of the Company has authorised to submit scheme of arrangement for filing with the Court. 

45. Consequent to the nationwide lockdown announced on 24th March 2020, Company's operations were disrupted 

at R&D facil it ies at Udaipur, manufacturing facilities at Gujarat and sales depots across the country. This resulted 

in partial deferment of Company's domestic and export revenues for the month of March 2020 to the next 

quarter. The Company has since been able to resume operations at its various sites from the beginning of Apri l in 

a gradual manner and management believes that being into an essential commodity, there is no sign if icant impact 

of COVID-19 pandemic on the current and future business condition of the Company, financia l statements 

liquidity position and cash flow and has concluded that no material adjustments are required in the financial 

statements. Management will continue to closely monitor the situation. 
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46. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE 

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 04 2020 have recommended f inal dividend for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 which is subject to the approva l of shareholders in the ensuing annua l general meeting. Refer not e 

14(B) for details. 

This is the notes to the consolidated financial statements referred to our report of even date 
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